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CORPORATE PROFILE
AE#A

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ["CMRU" or the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) are a fastgrowing manufacturer of recycled
copper products, also known as copper semis, in Southwest China.
The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 21 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

We process recycled scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we have also sold a range of communication cables and
power fransmission and disfribution cables using copper wirerods that
we produce as the principal raw material. We plan o broaden our
product range and pursue opportunities for further vertical integration. In
light of favourable development trends in China and our advantages in
raw material supply, facility location and preferential governmental
policies, we believe we are well positioned to become a leading
infegrated recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key
value- creating activities in the industry chain.

We currently own several production facilities for recycled copper
products. These facilities are located in Sichuan Province, Hunan
Province, Hubei Province and Henan Province. We are also operating
our frading business of copper, aluminium and nickel products.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company's website af http://www.cmru.com.cn/ .

Shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may at any time change
their choice of languagels) [either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
languagel(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd. at 17M Floor
Hopewell Cenfre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

TEEEERMNABRAR((HEEEE
BRAMAIHARF]) B —FKKR20135F2 A
RAEHSHEEMRINEREERA
Ale ARBIREMBAR ([AEE]) ZF
B aE KA RN B AERER (B RHE
FRRm) BER - ARG ([ ]) 8
201452421 B ([ T EE)) EF B
ERHMBRAR (BT TR LD o

AEEETENTEWRER  HXZER
o EmEESBIFER  BRIFGN i
AR SRBEANSROK - B2013F &2 - FAPI IR 4
EZRBEERNARLESR ELERMU
HAEENREMER T ZRME - H M
AEBAERBY USKESE—FF
EEA -ZRNTEMNANEREBEE KK
R LR ~ 305 P AE 30 B R 4F B9 U
BRETENEE  HERMS EGHERMF
RRthBEBEENGEBERERHTER
MEEFBANTE2EEA/ELS -

AEE B AR BE B REREERNE
AZEFRBANI)IIE - HrE - #dtE &
ME - BFIMGEE SN - ta SIRBMET -

RERNP BNAEBHN AR R HI

http:/ /www.cmru.com.cn/ ©

ARBBER (TBR]) 7T BE By 3 2O R 2 3
A RE T R AN R E 32 (AN XA g P SR
A EXK) o

P R AT A E HBE A AR R EE B R E
FEROR BETREFBELARAQA
Wit SEBEFE2R/KBRI8IFA MF
DI7MEB - IRE BB ABBEAMES
ARZNH)IEEE



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Direcfors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
hereby present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries [collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31

December 2022.

2022 has been the most challenging year in the history of our Group
so far. The rippling effect of the bursting of the bubble in the property
market which began in 2021 not only significantly affected the
demand of copper and copper products, it also seriously affected
China’s economy as a whole. In addition, the resurgence of
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) during the year has further
dampened the already weakened economy. Furthermore, cities and
regional lockdowns which were carried out as measures to counter
COVID-19 caused significant disruptions to industrial activities as well
as supply chains. Consequently. Our business has been materially
adversely affected. Our Group recorded a decrease in copper sales
by 68.8% in 2022 as compared fo 2021 and recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB4,763.2 million for 2022.

In order to weather this situation and safeguard our businesses and
assets, we have taken the initiative to apply for bankruptcy
reorganization for some of our operating subsidiaries. These
applications have been approved by the relevant courts. The effect of
the bankruptey reorganizations would be that the debts of the operating
subsidiaries are restructured as well as reduced so that the infrinsic
value and business potential of the quality assefs held by the
subsidiaries can be released, allowing the subsidiaries to fully utilize
such assefs fo increase their revenue generation ability.

Going forward, our immediate priority is to complete successfully the
bankruptcy reorganisations of our subsidiaries as soon as possible. In
working through the bankruptcy reorganizations, short term operational
and financial results are expected to be adversely affected.
Nevertheless, we are confident in our long term business prospects as
we see future demand for our products, particularly copper, should
remain strong, especially in areas such as new infrastructure
constfruction, new energy automobile and facilities, high tech home
appliances and electronic devices. As we progress through the
bankruptcy reorganization, we should be well placed to benefit from
such copper demands.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, business partners and AR AZLL RO EF - HIER - BB
Shareholders for their continued support, my fellow directors for their RIRRH —EX#HF ZEFREHEEZR
wise insight and active participation, and our management team for  REBLE - LR ERBEBFKHTHE H &
their continued dedication and commitment fo the success of the Group.  JR/Lx  EAKE —H AREIFHKI) - AEE
The Group is confident in its ability to create shortterm and longterm ¥ B MR AR R BI:E G HA Rk RHAB (A A B8
value for our Shareholders and would like to thank Shareholders for  J1FE M 0 » WHLAR R — B AR ¥ A& E

their support and trust in the Group over the years. X FFREERTHE
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director TEITTHARFERITEE
Mr. Yu Jiangiu MEMEE

31 January 2024 20241 A 31 H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The resurgence of Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("COVID-19")
pneumonia pandemic together with the continued decline of the
property sector since last year have had a significant negative impact
on the Chinese economy in the year 2022 which have not been seen
in recent years. The lockdowns of cities in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") have caused severe disruptions to industrial activities
as well as supply chains. The decline in industrial production and
construction activities has led to a significant reduction in the demand
for basic raw materials, especially metal materials. Consequently, the
demand for our copper related products fell significantly. As a result,
the Group recorded a decrease in copper product sales by ©8.8% in
the year 2022 as compared fo the year 2021. In addition, under this
weak economic environment, our suppliers and our customers faced
unprecedented difficulties in their ability to carry on their business.
Moreover, the tight liquidity resulting from such economic environment
has put many of our suppliers and customers info severe financial
difficulies and even bankruptcy. Consequently, asset impairment and
bad debt provision have increased substantially for the year. Amidst
such difficult economic environment, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB4,763.2 million. loss per share amounted to
RMB1.10 (2021: RMBO.03).

During the year under review, the Company announced that Mianyang
Tongxin Copper Co., lid. (48 /5 i & & % B R 2 &) ("Tongxin"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mianyang Jin Xunhuan
Metal Materials Co., ltd. (&85 BERETBEM B AR 2 F) (“in
Xunhuan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tongxin and in turn an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (collectively, the
"Relevant Subsidiaries”), intended to restructure their existing
indebtedness through the applicable provisions of the Enterprise
Bankruptcy law of the PRC. The restructuring involved the filing of a
voluntary application for bankruptcy reorganisation (the “Bankruptcy
Reorganisation Application”) with the People’s Court of Youxian District
(the “Court”) of Mianyang City, Sichuan Province of the PRC on 6 June
2022. And the update of the Bankruptcy Reorganisation Application is
reference fo the Company’s announcements dated 3 August 2022, 5
August 2022, 3 January 2023, 28 March 2023, 25 May 2023, 14
August 2023, 15 September 2023 and 13 October 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE RS

By filing the Bankruptcy Reorganisation Application with the Court
voluntarily and, if approved, there would be a platform for the Relevant
Subsidiaries to restructure their existing indebtedness with the relevant
creditors, with the sanction by the Court (“Debt Restructuring”).The Debt
Restructuring would reduce the debts of the Relevant Subsidiaries,
release the intrinsic value and business potential of the quality assefs
currently held by the Relevant Subsidiaries, and allow the Relevant
Subsidiaries to fully utilise such assets to increase the revenue
generation ability. Although the Relevant Subsidiaries presently face
difficulties in repaying their debts, the Board is of the view that (i the
assets held by the Relevant Subsidiaries are of strategic value; |ii] the
Relevant Subsidiaries possess strong technical capabilities pedigree;
and (i) the production and recycling industries in which the Relevant
Subsidiaries operate have promising prospects in the PRC in light of the
14th Five-Year Plan published by the PRC government. After the Debt
Restructuring, the Board believes that the Relevant Subsidiaries will be
able fo confinue to operate as a going concermn and improve the overall
financial position of the Relevant Subsidiaries and the Group. Further,
through the Debt Restructuring, the Company hopes to preserve the
welfare of the staff of the Relevant Subsidiaries, as a matter of social
responsibilities, and contribute to the local community.

On 25 May 2023, the Company announced that, in addition fo the
bankruptcy reorganisations of the Relevant Subsidiaries, Mianyang
Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co. Lid. 4855 (& F1 2 # i (5 47
BB MR QA ("Taiyue"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, also intended to restructure its existing indebtedness through
the applicable provisions of the Enferprise Bankruptcy Law of the PRC.
A voluntary application for the aforementioned bankruptcy
reorganization of Taiyue (the “Taiyue Bankruptcy Reorganisation
Application”, and together with the Bankruptcy Reorganisation
Application, the "Bankruptcy Reorganisation Applications”) has been
filed with the Court on 18 May 2023.

On 14 August 2023, the Company announced that Hunan Yinlian
Xiangbei Copper Co., lid.* (87 #REE ML AR AR 2 7)) ("Yinlian
Xiangbei”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
received a civil ruling (the “Civil Ruling”] from the People's Court of
Miluo City, Hunan Province in relation to a petition for winding-up
against Yinlian Xiangbei filed by Hunan Miziyuan Asset Holdings Co.,
td.* (HEHZ REFEE B BR A A) ("Miziyuan"), a creditor of
Yinlian Xiangbei, on the ground that Yinlian Xiangbei was unable fo
repay the debits falling due. The debts involved were in the amount of
approximately RMB11.9 million. Yinlian Xiangbei opposed the petition
and applied to the Court for bankruptcy reorganisation instead.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the Civil Ruling, after taking info account the situation of
Yinlian Xiangbei and the bankruptcy reorganisation of the Company’s
other three subsidiaries in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, the Court
rejected Miziyuan's petition for winding-up and accepted Yinlian
Xiangbei's bankruptcy reorganisation application (the “Yinlian Xiangbei
Bankrupfcy Reorganisation Application”).

On 15 September 2023, the Company announced that Hubei
Rongsheng Copper Co., Uid* it R EBEHMmABR A A ("Hubei
Rongsheng”], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
received (i) a decision dated 12 September 2023; and |ii] nofice fo
Hubei Rongsheng dated 12 September 2023 from the People’s Court
of Yunmeng County, Hubei Province in relation to Hubei Rongsheng's
application for pre-restructuring (the “Pre-restructuring”) in accordance
with the pre-restructuring procedure under the applicable provisions of
the Enterprise Bankruptcy Law of the People’s Republic of China to
prepare for ifs intended bankruptcy reorganisation application.

After considering the opinions of Hubei Rongsheng, its main creditors
and interested investors and the relevant government authorities, the
Court approved the Pre-restructuring of Hubei Rongsheng and
designated Hubei Gongshun Accounting Firm* (#81E A JIE & 50 = 7%
FfT) as provisional administrator of the Pre-restructuring per the
discussion of Hubei Rongsheng and its main creditors.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 May 2023,
14 August 2023 and 15 September 2023 for further defails.

PROSPECTS

Our immediate priority is to complete successfully the bankruptcy
reorganisations of our subsidiaries as soon as possible. In working
through the bankruptcy reorganisations, short term operational and
financial results are expected to be adversely affected. Nevertheless,
we are confident in our long term business prospects as we see the
demand for our products, particularly copper, should remain strong
going forward.

With the cancellation of pandemic prevention restrictions across the
globe, the economies are anticipated to create solid increase in
demand for basic metals. We expect the Chinese economy to keep
improving. PRC’'s GDP in the first three quarters of 2023 reached a
fofal of RMBR1.3 trillion, growing 5.2 percent yearon-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the 14th Five-Year Plan (“14th FYP") we expect China fo
continue to pursue its main goal of becoming a manufacturing
powerhouse, leveraging innovation and connectivity within the
manufacturing industry to promote high-quality economic development.
With 5G, the industrial infermet of things, big data analytics and other
new infrasfructure, the manufacturing industry is sef fo begin a new era
of transformation. With the strategic advancement of “carbon dioxide
reaching the peak” and “carbon dioxide neutralization”, strong
demand for copper from China is expected to confinue going forward,
particularly in areas such as new infrasfructure construction, new energy
automobile and facilities, high tech home appliances and electronic
devices. We believe as we progress through the bankruptcy
reorganisations, we are well placed to benefit from this increase in
demand for copper.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue represents the amounts accepted fo be enfifled for sales of
goods and services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue
recognised is net of VAT and other taxes, returns and discounts after
eliminating sales within our Group.
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Revenue from trading of electrolytic copper

Sales of recycled copper products BAREMEE

Sales of power transmission and A EEBHE
distribution cables

Sales of communication cables RIEBEHE

Sales of scrap materials FEEM KL H &

Others H Al
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted fo
approximately RMB2,391.7 million, representing a decrease of
69.02% from approximately RMB7,719.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. The decrease in sales volume was principally
from the decrease in trading of electrolytic copper and sales of
recycled copper products. It was mainly due to the decline in industrial
production and construction activities has led to a significant reduction
in the demand for copper during the year 2022.

Since the Group intended fo focus on the sales of recycled copper
products, no revenue was generated from trading of electrolytic
copper.

Revenue from recycled copper products amounted to approximately
RMB2,383.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing a decrease of 66.4% from approximately RMB7,089.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. It was mainly a
decrease of 66.4% in the sales volume of recycled copper products
from 131,864 metric fons for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
44,241 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2022, with an
increase of 0.2% in average selling price from RMB53,766 per ton for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB53,870 per fon for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2022 totaled
approximately RMB2,679.8 million, representing a decrease of 64.6%
from approximately RMB7,567.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021,

Gross profit

Our gross loss was approximately RMB288.1 for the year ended 31
December 2022, as compared to the gross profit of approximately
RMB151.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Our gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2022 was negative of
12.0%, as compared to a gross profit margin of 2.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 due fo the increase in production overhead
cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other income/ (expenses), gain/(loss), net

Our other income and gain for the year ended 31 December 2022
were RMB136.1 million as compared to other income and gain of
RMB269.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was primarily atiributed fo the dropping of (i) VAT refunds in
respect of comprehensive utilisation of resources; [ii) and grants and
subsidies obtained from government.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 were RMB7.9 million, representing a decrease of 56.6% from
RMB18.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was in line with the sales were dropped during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022
were RMB195.2 million, representing an increase of 47.9% from
RMB132.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase was primarily due fo the additional surcharge of overdue tax
payment amounted to RMB66.2 million arising from the unsetiled value-
added tax and corporate income tax payable to PRC tax authority.

Finance costs

Our finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
RMB234.2 million, representing an increase of 5.7% from RMB221.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was

primarily due to the additional inferest on the overdue borrowing
amounted fo RMB86.7 million.

Loss for the year

Our loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB4,763.2
million as compared fo the loss of RMB25.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. The increase in loss is mainly attributable to the
decrease in gross profit of RMB151.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to gross loss of RMB288.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2022, whilst the additional tax surcharge increased by
RMB66.2 million, the provision for bad debts, net increased by
RMB2,119.1 million and the impairment of advance payments to
suppliers increased by RMB1,948.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the capifal structure of the Group mainly
consisted of shareholder's equity, note payables, interestbearing bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities and liability component of
convertible bonds. There is no material seasonality of borrowing
requirements for the Group.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's total
inferestbearing borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

EHEE®R 5

BEXER

R2022F12A31 0 AEBENEREHE
TEmkRED  BURE  SHERITRHE
fER HERBELRATRRESNWAER
D FTAARX © $%jﬁ4ﬁié7§§§ﬁ’lﬁ{%#\%¥/\ °

TREINAKEAEBRBENREHR
GEIESS

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2022F12A31H 202112 A31H

WACC Amount WACC Amount

InEF 33 InHEF

Fixed rafe borrowings: TEER:
Note payables ARES
Interestbearing bank and i BERTT R A MAER
other borrowings
lease liabilities MERE
Converfible bonds AR & 25
Total fixed rate borrowings BEREE

The following table sets forth the maturity profile of the Group's interest-

bearing borrowings at the dates indicated:

Note

payables

ERRE

RMB’000

ARBT T
Within one year or —ERIRBRER

repayable on demand 23,511
After one year but —F L HERFAR

less than two years

23,511

23,511 12.50 21,519

1,338,370 709 1,185,554
2,230 18.20 7,158
231,720 12.00 585,733

1,595,831 1,799,964

TR AKEF BERRAR A A
HIIE R

As at 31 December 2022
M2022% 128318

Interest-
bearing

bank and

other lease  Convertible

borrowings liabilities bonds Total

SRR

kAR  HERE THARES At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

1,338,370 y 231,720 1,595,459

372

1,338,370 ; 231,720 1,595,831
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As at 31 December 2021
R2021%€12A31H

Interest- Liability
bearing component
bank and of
Note other lease  converfible
payables  borrowings liabiliies bonds Total
At RRTT AR B
ERRE REMETR HEAE HAERS @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT AR%TR
Within one year or —ERFRBRERE
repayable on demand 21,519 1,185,554 3,046 585733 1,796,752
After one year but —FEULERFAR
less than two years - - 1,321 - 1,321
After two years but MEALERFAR
less than five years - - 1,891 - 1,891
21,519 1,185,554 7,158 585,733 1,799,964
Huarong convertible bonds ERTBRRES

Reference is made to the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 issued to Huarong International Holdings
Limited ("Huarong”) and Prosper Rich Investments limited ("Prosper
Rich”) by the Company on 11 August 2017 (the “August 2017 CBs").
The August 2017 CBs issued on 11 August 2017 was matured on 11
August 2019 and a repayment of principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 was made to Huarong on 12 September 2019.
The amendment and extension of ferm of convertible bonds issued fo
Huarong and Prosper Rich were completed on 7 May 2020.
Following the completion, the maturity date of convertible bonds issued
to Huarong and Prosper Rich was extended to 11 August 2020.

On 31 December 2021, the Company enfered into the Huarong 2nd
amendment deed (the “2nd Amendment Deed”) which, amongst others,
propose fo amend cerfain terms of the convertible bonds issued to
Huarong (the “Huarong CBs”) and to extend the maturity date of the
Huarong CBs [the "Huarong Maturity Date”). On the same date,
Huarong issued the Huarong waiver lefter pursuant to which Huarong
waived the conversion right under the Huarong convertible bonds
subscripfion agreement.

ZIRMARTIN2017F8 A 11 BRAIZERE
BERERAR ((FER]) RFEREAR
RaEl([F&])BETAL LR 600,000,000
BT AR E S ([2017F 8 A A # iR (E
#1) 20178 A 11 BETH 20174
AR MRESFEMN2019F8 A 11 HEH
BER2019F0H12ARMEREERSHE
10,000,000/ 7 &2 MIE R 1T T E R/l
RFTENARRESFZFHEN20204F5
A7BAZEK - REKE BT TERLTE
WA MR ESFHNE B2 ERE 202048
A118 -

2021 F12A318 - ARARIBRIZEZ
MEFTRE ([F M EFIRE]) - (B
FERE) ZREINEREREITZARRK
BEx ((ERATBRRES])WE THRRRE
RERAIRBREFNEHE ([F 2 H
Bl -ABE EFBREHERBLLME B
o ERRRERAIRBRESREHER
T2 EkE -
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The amendments were completed on 31 March 2022 pursuant fo the
terms and conditions of the 2nd Amendment Deed. Following the
completion of the amendments, (i) the Huarong Maturity Date was
extended to 31 December 2022 (subject fo potential further extension
to 31 December 2023 (the "Further Extension”)); and |ii) the conditions
precedent sef ouf in the Huarong waiver letter have been fulfilled and
the waiver of the conversion rights under the Huarong CBs has taken
effect from 31 March 2022.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2023,
the Huarong CBs have matured on 31 December 2022.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 31 July
2017, 22 April 2020, 27 April 2020, 7 May 2020, @ July 2020,
31 December 2021, 31 March 2022 and 1 January 2023 and the
circular dated 4 February 2022 for further defails.

ISSUANCE OF NEW SHARES UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATES

The Huarong Subscription

On 31 December 2021, the Company and Huarong enfered into the
Huarong Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to issue and Huarong conditionally agreed to
subscribe for 500,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.465 per subscription share (the “"Huarong Subscription”).

Upon the completion of the Huarong Subscription, the Company and
Huarong entered into a deed of setoff, pursuant to which the Huarong
subscription consideration in the sum of HK$232,500,000 payable
by Huarong fo the Company shall be sef off against the equivalent
amount of the outstanding principal amount and accrued interests under
the Huarong CBs on a dollarfordollar basis. On 24 February 2022,
the Huarong Subscription was complefed.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22 April
2020, 27 April 2020, 7 May 2020, 9 July 2020, 31 December
2021, 22 and 24 February 2022 and the circular dated 4 February
2022 for further defails.

R ECY AR

FHIERTERBE —_MHETREBENKRR KR
M7 2022F 3 A 31 B e » MEmi%
(ZFERAIBERESHNIHADERE2022
F12A31 B (AgEgE—FRRE20234F
12A3TB (HE—ZFER])) ¢ R (i) 2 @ #
R FTE ) STOR IR E R - R
mkERE T EREZHRE 8202243
HA31BRERR-

MARAR BB A2023F 1 A3AM RS
W ERABKRESFDR2022F12 A
3T HEH-

E—THBEFRLHARRBMA2017F7
H31H 20204 A22H -~ 2020F 4 H
278 2020 5RA78 - 2020F7 A9
H- 2021128318 202243 A31H
K2023F1 A1 AN REARA#AF2022
F2R4BHBEEK -

BB B R ERATHIR G

ERMABBER

R2021F12A31 R ARG EERE Y
ERRBEIHE - B ARFEHEBRERE
TITMER D A IRIFRERE 500,000,000
Beietn - REBESESRRBERD 0.4658 7T
([ERBBEERED -

RNERABBEETKR AR EERET
VHEIERE B EREMNARBAER
R (B 232,500,000 7T & 1% S 58 A %
HHERTERRESFE TN REELS
BRFES AR - R2022F 28248 » #/h
RIBERD T °

E—FHBFLHEALRA A /202054
H228 -20204H27H - 2020F5R7
H-2020F7H9H 202112 A31
B 2022F2HA228 k2482 ERHA
HIR2022F 2 A4 2K -
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The Prosper Rich Subscription

On 31 December 2021, the Company and Prosper Rich entered info
a subscription agreement (the “Prosper Rich Subscription Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to issue and
Prosper Rich conditionally agreed to subscribe for 525,537,194
Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.465 per ordinary Share
(“Prosper Rich Subscription”).

Upon completion of the Prosper Rich Subscription, which took place on
24 February 2022, the Company and Prosper Rich entered info a
deed of setoff, pursuant to which the Prosper Rich Subscription
consideration in the sum of HK$244,374,795 payable by Prosper
Rich to the Company was set off against the equivalent amount of the
oufstanding principal amount and accrued interests under the
convertible bonds issued to Prosper Rich (the “Prosper Rich CBs”) on a
dollar-for-dollar basis, which represent all the outstanding principal
amount and accrued inferests under the Prosper Rich CBs.

Each of the Company and Prosper Rich agreed fo irevocably and
unconditionally fully release and discharge the other party from all
claims, liabilities and demands available to it and any claims, right or
liabilities which have accrued fo it against or are owed fo it by any of
the other party under or in connection with the Prosper Rich CBs.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22 April
2020, 27 April 2020, 7 May 2020, 9 July 2020, 31 December
2021, 22 and 24 February 2022 and the circular dated 4 February
2022 for further defails.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
[excluding pledged deposits of RMB703.9 million) amounted to
approximately RMB2.4 million (2021: approximately RMB12.0
million).

The Group's inventories decreased by RMB88.6 million to
approximately RMB100.9 million (2021: approximately RMB189.5
million). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the overall
inventory turnover days of 19.8 days increased compared to 12.2
days for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in invenfory
turnover days is mainly due to the decrease in market demand for
copper producis.

FERBEE

R2021F12A31 R ARAFIETFER L
REHZE((ZERBHRED Bt AR
AIEERHREZTMT EER KRR
REE525537 104y - REBERTK
EE0.4658 T ([FERBEERE]) °

RTERBEEML2022F2A24H TK
% ARREFTEAILEBERZE &L=
BRMNARBINZERIENE 244,374,795
ATERFBVELEEHETEAIERRES
BTN REERBNMEFNENFTER
BACATERTZ2AERES (T8
AmEkEFDETHNERREERNSER
FEFTFIE. -

ARAEFEDEBRETAHE M K E
R B BRER R RRER T & BHRK
BEFRBETHRFTEASRBESAIAS —
TRENAMBERR  BEHREFR  UEER
FEABBRBESZE NI T B A BBRK
BHFELERTMNZ—TERENEAER
RERKIETS ©

E—FHBFLHEALRA A /202054
H22H8 -2020F4H27H - 2020F5R7
H-2020F7H9H 202112 A31
H-2022F12A31B&2022F2 248
ZRERBER2022F2R4BZBHK

R2022F12A31 R AEENR & LI
T EEER (TEREERFRARE
703 90BEL)NA/ARE 2488 T (2021
FHRARKI120BETT) -

AEBNFERIARBEBOAETELN
BARBEI009BET(2021F  HB/AR
W180.5B&EIL) B E2022 12831 H
LEE SEFEABRBA/I08K B
HEZE2021F12A31BIEFERNI12.2X
- ZFERBREENEZHRTS
HIHEMNFT IR
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Trade and bills receivables decreased by approximately RMB2,075
million to approximately RMB236.5 million as at 31 December 2022
(as at 31 December 2021: RMB2,311.5 million). Trade and bills
receivables turnover days in 2022 of 176.4 days increased compared
to 105.0 days in the year 2021. The increase in trade and bills
receivables turover days is mainly due fo the fight liquidity situation of
customers as a result of the effect of COVID-19.

Trade and bills payables increased by RMB269.9 million to
RMB1,613.6 million as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31 December
2021: RMB1,343.7 million), the payable turnover days were 91.6
days, compared to 58.2 days in 2021. Payable turnover days for the
year increased as compared with last year. The increase in payable
furnover days as compared to last year was mainly due fo the decrease

in purchase from the suppliers of electrolytic copper during the year
ended 31 December 2022, which had a shorter credit period.

The Group's total inferestbearing borrowings decreased by RMB204.2
million to RMB1,595.8 million as at 31 December 2022 (as at 31
December 2021: RMB1,800.0 million). The overall decrease was
mainly due fo the sefflement of principal amount and accrued interests
under the convertible bonds by issuance of ordinary shares.

Bank loans and other borrowings included three entrusted loans
totalling approximately RMB300.0 million from Mianyang Science
Technology City Development Investment (Group) Co., ltd.* 4% 5 &
B ERIEE (B )BR QA ("Kefa"), a stateowned enterprise in
the PRC. Pursuant to the entrusted loan agreement signed among
Tongxin, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Kefa and the
entrusted bank, the entrusted loans expired on 27 August 2016, 23
September 2016 and 18 November 2016 respectively. Kefa, the
entrusted bank and Tongxin further agreed that the entrusted loan would
not be repayable until further agreed otherwise. On 16 July 2020, the
Company entered into a nonegally binding framework agreement with
Kefa. Under the framework agreement, it is intended, among others,
that Kefa will subscribe for Shares for a consideration of more than
RMB300 million. The intended uses of the proceeds from Kefa will
include, but not be limited to, the repayment of entrusted loans
amounting fo approximately RMB299 million as at 31 December
2020 owed by the Group to Kefa. As of the date of this report, the
discussion with Kefa on the potential subscription for Shares is sill
ongoing.

R ECY AR

20226124318 - B 5 B RIE K&
WERBRDOARE2075BBTENAR
¥236.5B&E T (R2021F12A318 - A
R¥E2311.5887) - 2022FWE 5K
AR EREBENEAERER 764K B
2021 M 1050 KRB AFTIEN - B 5 &
WHRIBERERRENEAEREUEMEZH
RCOVD-19ORIEMEREFERARBES
RSP ER ©

2022 12A31 R B S ENMNRIEKE
NEBEMARE200BETE AR
1,613.6B8 7T (R2021F12A31H8 - A
R¥1,3437 B8 T) - B FKIEFAEXE
ROT.O6KR - M2021 FAIRS582K - F KX
ENRIBEEBREEEFRL AL -
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B ZE2022F 12 A3 B IEFEEEHERE
ERRREEEIR D RBATE

R2022%12A31 B - REBE®E BEK
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E MBELKIXERTERENZEERD
#HREERERDANRN2016F8 27
H- 2016F9HA23AK2016F 11 A18H
FH - RE XRABTLAECE-—FEE
ZAEFHBABEEZE - RITHE °
20207 A16H » AR A EREERT I &
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The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of the Group as at
the dates indicated:

TREFINFRAMAEENE THHL R

Current ratio B R
Quick ratio R K
Debt to equity rafio EIERE S R

Net debt to equity ratio FERRER X

The negative debt to equity rafio and net debt fo equity ratio were a
result of net liabilities of RMB2,702.0 million (2021 net assets
RMB1,709.4 million) mainly attributable to the losses for the year
amounted to RMB4,763.2 million.

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
72022 5 R2021 %
12H31H 12H31H
0.3 1.2

0.3 1.2

-59.1% 105.3%
-59.0% 104.6%

FEHRRFABEEARBLTO32EBE
TN FEEAARKE27020EE8 T
(2021 F - FEEABARE 709 4HETT)
EES S R FE BRI R ARE -

Charge on assets

The following table sets forth the net book value of assefs under pledge
for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities, proceeds from
factorer, lease liabilities and outstanding future contracts as at the dates

included:

EEER

TREERAREHERE TRITRE
BNRERE  KEBREANMERE H

ERERARTFRNHMEAR

ERREFE ¢

2022

2022 %
RMB’000

AR®TR

Property, plant and equipment

ME - BER&E

Rightofuse assets EREEE

Inventories rE

Trade receivables B 5 RWRIR

Deposits with guarantee companies RERRARHER
Deposits with banks RIRTTHF R

Deposits with lessors of finance leases REtEHERAINER
Deposits with other companies A E AL 2 BB FE R

246,180
86,913
27,078

2,720
1,075
672,657

30,196

1,066,819

DK E

2021

2021 %
RMB'O00

ARETT

284,174
88,526
136,840
641,947
1,075
841,760
16
30,508

2,024,846
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Commodity risk

The major raw materials used in the production of our recycled copper
products are scrap copper. We are exposed tfo fluctuations in the
prices of raw materials as well as finished goods which are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the copper prices could adversely affect our financial
performonce. The Group will use copper futures contracts to mifigate
part of its exposure against price fluctuations of copper. The market
value of futures contract is based on the quoted market price as at the
date of consolidated statement of financial position. The Group did not
have any outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil). No loss or gain was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021 Nlil).

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are setffled in RMB. However, we are
exposed fo currency risk primarily related to the cash and cash
equivalents, the convertible bonds, all of which are mainly
denominated in HKD. The balance of cash and cash equivalents as af
31 December 2022 including approximately HK$O.1 million and
approximately USD4,534 (in total equivalent fo approximately RMBO. 1
million) were held in banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's interestbearing bank and other
borrowings were denominated in RMB but the convertible bonds were
denominated in HKD, with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$227.7 million. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group has completed the acquisitions of cerfain
farget groups, the considerations are subject to adjustment pursuant o
eam-out arrangements and will be settled partly by cash considerations
in HKD and partly by allotment and issue of consideration shares which
are denominated in HKD. The Group did not commit fo any financial
instruments fo hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the year
ended 31 December 2022. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company incurred an exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of entities outside of the PRC equivalent to
RMB39.7 million, part of which was resulted from translating the
convertible bonds and contingent consideration liabilities from HKD 1o

RMB.

Significant investments held

Except for investments in subsidiaries and associates, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other companies
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

R EREY SR

7 fm 2L B

BMPEEBLEREMMABEIERME SRR
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Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries or affiliated companies. during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's capital
expenditures payments represent additions to property, plant and
equipment (including construction in progress) and land use rights of

approximately RMBO. 1 million (2021: RMB1.9 million). The capital
expenditures were mainly financed from infernal resources.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments
on lands contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to RMB25.8 million (as at 31 December 2021
RMB44.8 million).

Contingent liabilities

Other than the contingent liabilities as mentioned in note 38 of this
report, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2022.

Events after the reporting period

On 19 May 2023, the Company received a letter issued by the Stock
Exchange, which sets out the guidance in relation fo the resumption of
frading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. The
Stock Exchange requires the Company to meet all Resumption
Guidance, remedy the issues causing the Company’s trading
suspension and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock
Exchange's satisfaction before trading in the Company's securities is
allowed to resume. Under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may cancel the listing of any securities that have been
suspended from trading for a continuous period of 18 months. In the
case of the Company, the 18-month period expires on 2 October
2024. It the Company fails fo remedy the substantive issues causing
the Company’s trading suspension, fulfill the Resumption Guidance and
fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange's safisfaction
and resume frading in ifs shares by 2 October 2024, the Llisting
Division of the Stock Exchange will recommend the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange to proceed with the cancellation of the Company's
listing.

EXRNBRHEENBLARAREELQF

REEREZE2022F12A31BIEFEN
BEEAEAWESRHENBEARIBBE LR

BEAXRREX

BHE2022F12A31BLEFE  AEER
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REZIR) ARTHERENARKO]
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The Group is in the process of restructuring the debt of Mianyang
Tongxin Copper Co., ld. (425 # & i 3 F R 2 7]) and Mianyang
Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials Co., lid. (485 & BIR S BM AR AR
with the existing debt holders in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Enterprise Bankruptcy Law in the PRC. The restructuring
involved the filing of a voluntary application for bankruptcy
reorganization with the People’s Court of Youxian District in the
Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. Subsequently, on 3 January
2023, the Company received from the Court conceming the Court’s
civil rulings, court decisions and notice to the Relevant Subsidiaries
regarding the reorganisation. Pursuant to which, the Court accepted the
application from the Relevant Subsidiaries for bankruptcy reorganization
in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy Law in the PRC. The first
creditors’ meetfing was held on 28 March 2023.

In addition fo the bankruptcy reorganisations of the Relevant
Subsidiaries, Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co. lid.
(BB RMEHBEERERR QA also infended to restructure its
existing indebtedness through the applicable provisions of the Enferprise
Bankruptey Law of the PRC. A voluntary application for the bankruptey
reorganization of Taiyue has been filed with the Court on 18 May
2023. On 24 May 2023, the Company received the Court’s civil
ruling dated 23 May 2023. According fo the civil ruling dated 23
May 2023, the Court has accepted the Taiyue Bankruptcy
Reorganisation Application after taking into account various
considerations, including the Court's acceptance of Bankruptcy
Reorganisation Application by the Relevant Subsidiaries on 29 July
2022. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 May
2023 for further details.

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. (/8 m #REE AR AL A B R A
A]) received a civil ruling from the People's Court of Miluo City, Hunan
Province in relation to a petfition for winding-up against Yinlian Xiangbei
filed by Miziyuan on the ground that Yinlian Xiangbei was unable to
repay the debits falling due. The debts involved were in the amount of
approximately RMB1 1.9 million. Yinlian Xiangbei opposed the petition
and applied to the Court for bankruptcy reorganization instead.
According to the Civil Ruling, after taking info account the situation of
Yinlian Xiangbei and the bankruptcy reorganization of the Company’s
other three subsidiaries in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, the Court
rejected Miziyuan's petition for winding-up and accepted Yinlian
Xiangbei's Bankrupfcy Reorganisation Application. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2023 for further defails.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R E SR

Hubei Rongsheng Copper Co., Uid (Mt R BHRHMAR 2 7))
received (i) o decision dated 12 September 2023; and (i) nofice to
Hubei Rongsheng dated 12 September 2023 from the People’s Court
of Yunmeng County, Hubei Province in relation to Hubei Rongsheng's
application for Pre-restructuring in accordance with the pre-restructuring
procedure under the applicable provisions of the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’s Republic of China to prepare for its intended
bankruptey reorganisation application. After considering the opinions
of Hubei Rongsheng, its main creditors and interested invesfors and the
relevant government authorities, the court approved the Pre-restructuring
of Hubei Rongsheng and designated Hubei Gongshun Accounting
Firm* (A4t 2 B & 5180 S % FT) as provisional administrator of the
Pre-restructuring per the discussion of Hubei Rongsheng and its main

creditors. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15
September 2023 for further defails.

Subsequent to the reporting period, pursuant to various court orders,
various bank accounts with balances of RMB261,000 were frozen
and various properties, plant and equipment, rightofuse assets and
inventories with carrying amounts of RMB78,856,000,
RMB43,317,000 and RMB2,384,000 were seized respectively.

Save as disclosed in above and disclosed in other sections in this
report, there is no material significant event undertaken by the Group
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yu Jianqiu (BTE#K), age 58, is the founder of the Group and the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of the Group. He also serves as a director of our certain
subsidiaries. Through his personal interests and holdings in Epoch
Keen, Mr. Yu is a major shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu has over
20 years of experience in corporate operations and management in
the petrochemical, automobile and renewable energy sectors. He was
the chairman and principal executive officer of Gushan Environmental
Energy limited ("Gushan”), a company whose American depositary
shares were listed on the New York Stock Exchange from December
2007 to October 2012. Mr. Yu also founded a number of subsidiaries
of the Gushan group between 1996 and 2008. Mr. Yu received his
degree of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA] from
Hautes Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 13 December, 2010. In
2002, he was elected as a member of the Fuzhou Committee of the
10th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee and a member
of the Santai County Committee of the 11th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee. He was appointed as a Direcfor on 22
February 2013 and redesignated as an executive Director on 16

August 2013.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (B 15), age 59, is an executive
director of the Company. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
development of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also a director of certain
subsidiaries, and a director of our associates companies: Deda
Holdings Limited and Hongkong Fujian Investments Limited. Mr. Kwong
was the President of Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”).
He is also an independent non-executive director of C.banner
International Holdings Limited, the principal business of which is the
manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear, since 26 August
2011, China Ouffitters Holdings Limited, the principal business of
which is the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of apparel
products and accessories in China with a focus on menswear, since 8
June 2011, Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sale of solar wafers, solar
cells, solar modules and related products as well as developing and
operating solar power plants, since 16 July 2014, China New Higher
Education Group Limited, the principal business of which is the
rendering of education services, since 20 March 2017, and East Buy
Holding Limited (formerly known as Koolearn Technology Holding
Limited), the principal business of which is the provision of online after-
school tuforing and test preparation service in China since 15 March
2019, which are listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 September

EFRERERE

HITES

MEMEE 58 eAEEMAIPEA -
ARARNBER  ITHEEZNTES @
EEFTEHEASENBEBEBRKE -
BHEERARBDETHERAFTNESE @
90 A iR L A\ R A Mo A B R Y AR RE T K
ABEARRTMEERE - artER A BT -
REMAIBERRITERBA 2050 %E
ZERERELR FEEOERRERS
RAR((HE)MEFEREFBITHEE
ZARMERTELRMDE200/FI2AE
2012F 10 ARMBABS R ZAT LT o g%k
HERI1996F = 2008 FE M Al 2 £ H
METHEBRA -artER 20106124
13HEE R 5% 26t (Hautes Etudes
Commerciales de Paris)| B XS HEEAE T
EERELTEMN - R2002F KEEASF
IOEFBRARBGGHEEEZEINTEZES
ME UEBINEFRBARBGGHESE
—aBZTEEKE - FR2013F2H22H
EZEAESF WHK2013F8 A16HHAT
BHRITES °

BMBISSCE - 505 RARRIMNAITES °
WMEEARAEENKBER - BELET
BARBETHELARNESZARLARTR
ZHERR  RERRABRARLEERE
BREBRAFNEFTE -BEEBALHE
RREERERRQA ([HEZ]) WEE - BT
B2011F8HA20ARATEREREKREZERE
RAR(EXEXBREHMERHERE) -
01MFOA8EERTRERMIZTMERA
A(REXZXBEETERG  BE - 2
NI ERKERNMECH » WAS T RE A
F) 201457 R16RBRIEREEE R
ERRARAR (AT 2XBEHERFEEXN
FBRettmm b - ABBEEA - KEGaeE Mt K&
MEREEMR - URFEMEEARBGRETM)
2017 3A20BERFTEHFSHEEEAR
nE (RX2EBRREHE RS X 2019
FIANSBREARTBEZEKAR AR (A
WHRDERNMRERABRAA) (A&
EBRETFRIERGS R ERINFEENE
R NBLIFATES  ZFERAD
B2011F9H23H  2011F12H98

21



22

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Conrinved)

2011, 9 December 2011, 13 July 2011, 19 April 2017 and 28
March 2019, respectively. Mr. Kwong has over 10 years of
experience in corporate finance and equity capital markets in Asia,
having previously worked at a number of investment banks in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining Gushan in 2006, he was the managing direcfor
of investment banking and he held the position as the head of Hong
Kong and China equity capital marketfs at CLSA Equity Capital Markets
Limited since March 2004. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was a
director and the head of equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia
Limited, an investment bank. After graduating from University of
Cambridge, England with a bachelor of Arts degree in 1987, he
qualified as a chartered accountant in the United Kingdom in 1990.
Mr. Kwong is currently an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 16 August 201 3.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (& £ %), age 62, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial management. She is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting and accounting affairs of the Company. Ms. Zhu is also the
vice presidenf in chorge of the finance of Mianyang Jinxin Copper
Co., Id. (#BI52&ZMEFR LA (inxin"), since July 2009. Prior
fo joining Jinxin, she was a vice general manager and the head of
finance department of Mianyang Santai Vise Co., ld. (85 =8 % &
#H B BR A7), the principal business of which is the manufacture and
sale of vises, from 1978 to 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Mr. GAO Qiang (&%), aged 54, graduated from Shanghai Theatre
Academy in 1994 with a bachelor degree in acting. Mr. Gao has
been serving as an executive director of Yawei Culture Media
(Shanghai) Co., lid.* H#k XL B & ( L&) B R A Flaond Xing Jiv
Culture Media (Shanghai) Co., lid.* EAXILBE (| LE)BR AR
since January 2019 and March 2019, respectively. He also currently
serves as the secrefary general of China Lliterature and Art Foundation
Folk Art Special Fund* (FEIX 22 ME S RBEANEERES)
and an honorary curator of Jin Shangjing History Museum* (& £ R &
SEIHEWEE). Mr. Gao's background and experience in corporate
management and project management would allow him fo contribute
to the Group by providing leadership and views from a different
perspective and assist the Group in navigating through challenges and
seizing business opportunities. Mr. Gao was appoinfed as an execufive
director of the Company on 2 September 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Wei (Z1&), oged 47, graduated from Sichuan University in
2000 with a bachelor degree in economics. He has been the general
manager of A EMAERE X HFR A A (Henan Wangxiang
Ecological Industry Co., lid.)* since June 2019. He was the vice
general manager and project general manager of # 15 % M EE A A
(Xiexin Duoli Chongging Company)* from April 2018 to April 2019,
the general manager of PJII R A XL k¥ A R 2~ A (Sichuan
Xianggu Cultural Tourism Co., ltd.)* from June 2016 to March 2018,
the general manager of each of I9)I /G I & % & R 2 & (Sichuan
Haike Industrial Co., lid.)*, 4358 EE X B R A &) (Mianyang Bojie
Industrial Co., lid.|*, B EEFHERZEBR 2 A (Deyang
Yongxin Real Estate Development Co., ltd.)* from July 2014 to June
2016, May 2012 to June 2014, and May 2010 to May 2012,
respectively. Mr. Li is experienced in corporate management, real
estate development, markefing and project management. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company

on 28 June 2022.

Mr. Fang Guanghua (77 £ Z %4 ), aged 57, obtained a certificate
of building construction and management from The Open University of
China in January 2011. Mr. Fang has been serving as a director of
Sichuan Gangfu Decoration Design Co., ltd.* FOJI1& & fFiER T2
BBR AR, Ganghua Tongda Industrial (Chengdu) Co., lid.* &R
EEE(KE)BEMR 2 A, and Sichuan Xinduguicheng Villoge Bank
Co., Ud.* W RIEFEATERITBEREER A since May 1994,
November 2017, and March 2011 respectively. Mr. Fang is
experienced in corporate management, building and construction, civil
engineering, sales of communication electronic products, and general
banking business. Mr. Fang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 13 October 2022.

Mr. Yu Rengzhong (81 3 "8 £ %), aged 45, graduated from Xian
Jiaotong University with a bachelor degree in investment economic in
July 2001. Mr. Yu has been serving as the financial controller of Fujian
Minhai Energy Co., lid.* @22 &8EIRE R QA since June 2020.
From January 2019 to March 2020, Mr. Yu served as the general
manager of Xiamen Bangfu Investment Management Co., lid.* EFI#B
EREEEABRRAA, mainly engaging in initial public offering
planning. From September 2001 to June 2007, Mr. Yu worked in
Fujian Mindu Certified Public Accountants Co., Lid.* &2 B &R & &+ Al
E% AR 2 A (currently known as Fujian Lixin Mindu Certified
Public Accountants Co., lid.* B Z AL 5SS ER 2 A)
with his last role as the audit manager. Mr. Yu has approximately 21
years of experiences in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Yu is a member of The Chinese Institute of Cerified
Public Accountants. Mr. Fang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 13 October 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continved)

Mr. Huang Weiping (Z & 3¥%), age 63, is an executfive Direcfor. Mr.
Huang co-founded Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., lid.
(“Xiangbei”) in 2010 and is currently a director of our certain
subsidiaries in China. Mr. Huang is in charge of the overall operation,
production fechnology and engineering of the Group. Mr. Huang has
more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metal material industry.
Prior fo the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a manager at
Fujian Lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., lid. (1838 & HIRIR B
B R 2 7A]), the principal business of which is the design and
construction of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou
Kebi Chemical Materials Co., Limited (& INELELAL T EHH R AR,
the principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic
wax, from 2006 to 2009 and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal
business of which is the trade of chemicals and metal materials, from
2001 to 2005. He is a fellow member of the Investment Casting
Institute and an executive member of China Precision Casfing Branch
Association of China Foundry Association (1 Bl$ZiE R & B H B iE D
& ). Mr. Huang also serves as an executive member of the Chinese
and Foreign Entrepreneurs’ Club of Fujian Province (f@&32& FHME S

FHEEEE ) and the Association of Entrepreneurs of Private Companies

of Fuzhou City (#& N 1 AL & 1 E K % & ). Mr. Huang received his
degree of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA] from
Hautes Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 6 July 2015. Mr. Huang was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 August 2013. Mr. Huang
retired on 30 June 2023.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management”, there was no change to any of the information required
fo be disclosed in relation to any director pursuant to paragraphs (a) fo
(e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rule since the Company's last
published annual report.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known
as copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group
started to sell a range of communication cables and power fransmission
and distribution cables using copper wire and copper rods produced
by the Group as the principal raw material. Beginning in 2015, the
Group also entered info trading activities of electrolytic copper. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 1o
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncerfainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section. The discussion forms
part of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS

During the year and up tfo the date of this annual report, the Directors
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping (refired 30 June 2023)

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Mr. Gao Qiang (appointed 2 September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan liansheng (resigned 13 October 2022)
Mr. Llee Ting Bun Denny [refired 28 June 2022)

Ms. Ren Ruxian (retired 28 June 2022)

Mr. Li Wei (appointed 28 June 2022)

Mr. Fang Guanghua (appointed 13 October 2022)
Mr. Yu Rengzhong (appointed 13 October 2022)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 13, 25, and 41 respectively to the financial
statements and in this annual report, no director or any entity connected
with a direcfor had a material inferest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not deferminable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, there was no change to any of the information required
fo be disclosed in relation to any director pursuant to paragraphs (a) fo
(e) and [g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the Company's
last published annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were i)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong] [the “SFO"), or (i) otherwise nofified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix C3 fo the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company
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EERFETBAERARAR
T AE Bt O B B9 AR 40 K AE BB IR 4 Y
BERAR

20226 12A31H KARRAIEERTE
TBRABRARR R EBE AR (EELE
7 R B EBIE XV #B) B B tn M RR D 2
BHER (| REEREDIE S/ BEES L
SR (135 75 R E 5RB]) 5 352K R E
ATHFNECMAAHE  K(i)RiE TR
AT ERCIFTEBAN L BT AERETR
7 X 5 W IR AE ST B BB A AR X A) FBE S P
B SOXR AT ¢

(1) REQXARGHHEFR

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
Espns B HEEME FREROGHBE SIYFREIEN
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Beneficial owner 6,204,000 0.14%
ATERKSE A EnfEBA
Inferest in a controlled corporation? 532,794,400 11.89%
R EE R
Mr. Huang Weiping Inferest in controlled corporations®! 310,317,000 6.92%
=EFSEAE REHEE R
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner 3,272,600 0.07%
BMEE R A EnfEBA
Notes: M -

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number

of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

(2)  The Shares were held by Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, together with Epoch Keen, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yu

Jiangjiu.

(3) The Shares were held by First Harvest Global Limited, Gold Wide Enterprises
Limited and Ocean Through Limited. All these companies are wholly-owned by

Mr. Huang Weiping.

(1 BEBILAREBEREEBRAADEN2022
FI12A31 AR EITRMMOEE -

2] REBRMEAARFALIEFRDITEFHERE
EBERERETEZERFNDRRERE

(3 ZEROHBELERMERAR BEXEF
BRABRFERRRABFE -AAEZFQA
HRERNYEETERE -

27



28

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continuved)

(2) Long Position in the underlying shares of the Company

BEERFETHRAEREARATR
HEEBEZENKRGO RABBERKREN
R KE #)

(2) RAXREERDNER

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding'"
Exsns B REntE FEROEBE BMAOKREIED
Ms. Zhu Yufen Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.07%
REFLL EmEAEAW
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner® 4,000,000 0.09%
BMEE LA EnEB AL
Notes: B aE -
[4)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Zhu Yufen under the (4)  HERATETARRIEAREERE &

Share Option Scheme of the Company on 14 December 2021. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further defails.

(5] These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 14 December
2021. Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted fo any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by
them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any
arrangement fo enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate during the year ended 31 December 2022.

R2021F 12 T4ARTRES LKL ZER
BB H B2 ERERTE ] —& -

(5] REBRATETARBBEARABEKEE
R2021 F12R14RRTEEEREZER
#eBEFBHLHIERES] & -

EEREROIEFHER

BRAFHREMBOBREEN  REBE
2022 12A3VBIEFE  MERTEM
EXAREEEZIRBARMISENTX
BBBARRARNDIESFN T AMERE
MRS i ST ZSER - TR &
MARBREEMMERARIELLZ NS
ERSAREFEAZIEBARMISHEANTL
REREMEABRESZFER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

FERRRAQARD R ABERK
DR R KR

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (not being a director ~ 7820224 12 A31 A - R AR R AR IE & 7
or chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more interests or short & B3 & 1§ HI % 330 1&E T 17 B #) & L AT
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as &8k - M FA LT (WA RRESFHF BT
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant  BUA B) IR AR A BB IR 1D R #E B 5%

to section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company:

A ERRER SRR -

Capacity in which

interests are held

BURRRENSH

(1)

Number of
shares held

BERE

RELTEBROEFR -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings!"

BRBRED O

Quaetus Capital Pre Lid Beneficial interests 280,312,902 6.25%

Quaetus Capital Pre Ltd EankEn

Kwek Steven Poh Song Interests in a controlled 280,312,902 6.25%
corporation

Kwek Steven Poh Song Rt s

Mianyang Fule Investment Co., Lid.* Beneficial interests and 717,994,566 16.02%

(LR ERRAT) inferests in a controlled

corporation

G EERERRAT EntEn kI
EEE R

Prosper Rich Investments Limited Beneficial interests 557,627,268 12.44%

SEREARLDA Enkn

leung lisa Interests in a controlled 557,627 268 12.44%
corporation

REMR TG EEER

Mianyang Yuan Cheng Ronghe Development Beneficial inferests 500,000,000 11.16%

Group Co., ld *| B EM A EREE
BREFAH) ("Mianyan Yuan Cheng')

GHEERRAEREBEERETAT
(&R ])

=
i
B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)

(1) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company:
(Continued)

Notes:

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares divided by the number

of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

These interests represented Quaestus Capital Pid Lid's beneficial inferests in
280,312,902 Shares. The inferests were disclosed based on the disclosure of
interest filing made by Quaestus Capital Pid Ltd on 3 April 2020.

Quaestus Capital Pte Lid is 80% controlled by Kwek Steven Poh Song. Kwek
Steven Poh Song was deemed to be interested in such Shares under the SFO.

The interests were disclosed based on the disclosure of interest filing made by
Kwek Steven Poh Song on 3 April 2020.

These interests represented Mianyang Fule's beneficial interests in 694,470,566
Shares and interests in a controlled corporation of 23,524,000 Shares.
Mianyang Fule is 100% ultimately controlled by The People’s Government of
Mianyang Municipality | 455 1 A R BT ).

These interests represented Prosper Rich beneficial interests in 557,627,268
Shares. The interests were disclosed based on the disclosure of interest filing
made by Prosper Rich on 25 February 2022.

Prosper Rich is 100% controlled by leung lisa. leung lisa was deemed fo be
interested in such Shares under the SFO. The interests were disclosed based on

the disclosure of interest filing made by Leung Llisa on 25 February 2022.

These interests represented Mianyang Yuan Cheng's beneficial interests in
500,000,000 Shares. The interests were disclosed based on the disclosure of
interest filing made by Mianyang Yuan Cheng on 17 June 2022.

FTERRRALQ KRG RAEBRRK
HEZRAE &)

(1)

REQBDEBRNERE : (B)

BEE

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

B REBREE BRIAADFN2022
F12RA31BEBEITRMN 2 EE -

#% % B 7 X R Quaestus Capital Pte Lid B¢
280,312,002 P B - B R
% 1% B2 2 R 8 Quaestus Capital Pid Lid 7 2020
FARSARZMEARBEMRKE

Quaestus Capital Pte Ltd B3 Kwek Steven Poh
Song 1% A% 80% ° R & (E # R & &)
Kwek Steven Poh Song #4% 41 72 & I {7 £
e o BB 2R 1B Kwek Steven Poh Song
R2020F4 A3 ARKMBAKEMKE -

ZERDERRBEEERN 694,470,566 Bz
MR EEER K 23,524,000 i 8 %
EHDEEER - BB E100%HEE T A
RERFSAEAZH)

RERBRERSZEN557,627, 268 A+
NEZEZ BHEZEREEREZERN
202242 A25 ARRMESHEEMHRE -

FEI00% M RBMHZARZES - REBEEFHF R
HEEY - REMBERARZERNTHES
Wi ARG K ERRERBMN 2022
F2RARTMBRBEMKE

%% 35 1 X 15 5% 500,000,000 B
(R 26 125 - B RIME S R R RIS IS
BN 2022F6 A 17 ARZMEZHEEM
B -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(2) Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company: (2)
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TERRRA QR R REER
DS KRR )

RAELTHEEARGNETR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings"
BOBERBES LD

Number of
shares held
BEERH

Capacity in which

interests are held

HEUBAEZENGH

Mianyang Science Technology City Persons having a 310,317,000 6.92%
Development Investment (Group| Co., security interests in
ld.* (4B R B RIEE (£E) shares
BRRF])

HMERMRRERRE (EF) By A B AR
BERAT] ZAE

China CITIC Financial Asset Interests in controlled 790,485,295 17.64%
Management Co., Limited (formerly corporation/persons
known as “China Huarong Asset having a security
Management Co., Limited”) interests in shares

PEPEERHEEEERND AR RSB R
NA(AIEI P EEREEETR iy A H R
i BERAE ) @z At

Notes: FiteE -

(M

On 15 August 2014, Ocean Through Limited, First Harvest Global limited and
Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, shareholders of the Company, has each entered
into share charges in respect of their respective shareholding of 39,401,600,
167,952,400 and 102,963,000 shares of the Company in favour of Kefa as
the secured party.

These interests represented (i) Huarong's beneficial interests in 90,485,295
Shares; [ii] derivative inferests in 200,000,000 underlying shares derived from
the share charges entered info between Epoch Keen and Huarong; and |iii)
derivative interests in 500,000,000 underlying shares derived from the share
charge entered info between Mianyang Yuan Cheng and Huarong.

Epoch Keen entered info a share charge, a confirmatory share charge and a
supplemental share charge with Huarong on 8 August 2017, 22 April 2020
and 31 March 2022, respectively, pursuant to which Epoch Keen charged
200,000,000 Shares in favour of Huarong as security for the payment and
discharge of obligations owing from the Company to Huarong pursuant fo,
amongst others, the subscription agreement of the Huarong CB 2017.

These Shares are held by China CITIC Financial Asset Management Co., limited
through Huarong Real Estate Co., ltd., Huarong Zhiyuan Investment &
Management Co., ld. and China Huarong International Holdings Limited, based
on the disclosure of inferest filing made by China Huarong Asset Management

Co., ltd. on 1 June 2022.

(1) M2014F8A158  FEBRAA FY
BERERAFARSHECERRAT (AKX
REABRR)SERBEERARAZ
39,401,6000% ~ 167,952,400 & &
102,963,000 A& 17 2 BR 4 + AR — 75 89
Bl tE B2 m AFT LD IR ©

(2] ZERERK)ERRN 0,485,205 BA ()Y
Hamfl (i) RE N REERFTZROMC
74200,000,000 B AH B A 10 B0 0T At em + %
(i) 2K & 47 5 [E] 9k 62 % @ 2T 32 A {0 3 52 70
500,000,000 P A8 B R O T AR 25 ©

REHRIN2017F8 488 - 20204 A
22 B %2022 3 A 31 B EERFET R IR
A0 FERRR D MR AC M R R MR A - Bk
I DA ZE 0 R X 2 AR 200,000,000 A% A%
o ERXNRBERARRRE (KPR
2017 % B m] 2 B AE 25 1O R B8 196 7 B 1) 2E L
BITZEEZER -

RETFTHEREEZEROERAARN
202260 A1 AEHMBEERBEE %5
BORTET EEREETERNERAT
BRERBEXARAERT  ERRERE
EREREERTRTEERBEBEZRAR
REFE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
directors had not been notified by any person (not being the directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had 5% or more interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required fo be kept pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either direcily or indirecly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the arficles of
association of the Company (the “Arficles of Association”), or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a proata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
seft out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page /7 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are sef out in
nofe 16 to the financial statements.

FTERRRALQ KRG RAEBRRK
HEZRAE &)

Br EXCATEEE SN - R2022F 12 A 31
B BEEWAL (LIARFEFTHRS
THRAB)MEERER AR R KA
Bt P B IR IE 8 75 M BB 15 6 55 336 1k
ATHFENECMATCERS%EIA L

AR o
EENHEEXBNESR

M2022F12A31H HEBEEELEESR
ENBMBEARBEASEEBEXL AL
BRERIEERFIEFANERBESR
A E R o

Hﬁl%l\

EESTREMREE 2021 22022412 A
31 AL FEIREXTIREMMABE -

BriEmeE

ARPAHSERAR ((AEERAA)) K
MRS APETTLEERECEREN
BE - BEARNR R AR LI EERIRE K
REBEHB

RERoE

REBEHZE2022F12A31BIEFEMNE
BENAFRE/7ENGZAEENEME
K

M BERRE

AEBYE  BMFEERBOFBEHERTH
HARMFEIO-



SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in nofe 35
fo the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in nofe 28 fo the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Directors” emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
fo their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are sef out in notes 12 to the financial statements
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the Direcfors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Direcfors and senior
management and comparable markef practices.

PENSION SCHEMES

Pursuant fo the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
refirement benefit schemes (the "PRC Schemes”) organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Schemes, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual confributions.
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PENSION SCHEMES (Continued)

The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF") (together with the PRC Schemes, the
"Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF. The Group confributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs to the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000, and which contribution is matched by the employees.
The assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are
100% vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF
and subject fo cerfain conditions being met, and all benefits derived
from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee
either reaches the normal refirement age of 65 or meefs certain
specified conditions whichever is earlier.

The Group's contributions to the Refirement Benefit Schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December

2022 were RMB4,620,000 (2021: RMB6,5%96,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered infto
or existed during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 37 fo
the financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company does not has any
distributable reserves available for distribution calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands.

BIKEETE (#)

AEECDRBBNEZEREEZ N T RHE
~iERFE ([afEE]) CERFEGE - &
A DRKERE S - b AR EHFURK
TS - HRNREEEAFHFEHNAD
atE YR RERBES 2 RAUEA TN
RN ERE WS R - NEB A RE S AT
ERHASEBIERANZS% (XE A
B A £ R 30,0008 TTATIR) » M & B &)
WL R AR - RTEE W EE R AN K E
MEEDHIEAE WESHAHERAE
B RIMHFTBABRESR  2HFE
BFTA - Bome s TIRIFRVIE IO - oa il 1
R I EBEREEREFE TR
PRRRES REKE TR ERE AREES
B)ATAERE -

REBREE2022F 12831 B IEFE&
AFARaEXNRREMNFTEHERISAR
W 4,620,0007T (2021F : AR
6,596,0007T) °

EEEH

MNAFE  NRRLEL AR R 2B
M E 2D XHR LR FEMEENIT
BEHL -

mE R Ao IR E

RARRANEEBE2022F12A31 81k
FENBHEZEBFBED RIS B REM
A/ MG EREEEEE

M20229F12A318 REEFAEHS QA
ENBREE - NRBDEA T A DR
ffé 88 ©



HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a fofal of 507 employees
(2021: 592). The Group's sfaff costs for the year ended 31 December
2022 were approximately RMB44.0 million {2021: RMB44.9 million).
The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration packages. In
addition, discrefionary bonuses and share options may also be granted
fo eligible staff based on individual and Group’s performance. The
Croup is committed fo nurturing a leaming and sharing culture in the
organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the fraining and
development of individual staff and team building, as the Group's
success is dependent on the contribution of all functional divisions
comprising skilled and motivated professionals. The Group is also
committed to social responsibility as demonstrated by employing
disabled staff and providing appropriate working conditions and
protection to them.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year affributable fo the
Group's maijor suppliers and cusfomers are as follows:

Purchases

—  The largest suppliers: 16% of cost of sales
—  Five largest suppliers combined: 37% of cost of sales

Sales

—  The largest customer: 29% of revenue
—  Five largest customers combined: 62% of revenue

The scrap copper that we process comes from a variety of sources,
including used household appliances, electrical equipment and
fransportation equipment, used cables and wires and scrap materials
from certain industrial manufacturing processes. We purchase our scrap
copper mainly from domestic suppliers located near our production
facilities and elsewhere in other provinces of the PRC. We conduct
rigorous quality control tests at different stages of our production
processes, including rigorous quality fests of our raw materials. Before
enfering info a business relationship with a new supplier, we conducted
due diligence on the supplier's background and reputation in the
markef fo assess its suitability. In addition, we physically inspect each
delivery of raw materials to ensure its compliance with contract
specifications, including purity and copper content.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continved)

Maintaining strong relationships with our customers is important fo us
and we believe that our customer’s willingness to work with us reflects,
among others, our record of producing high quality products that meet
industry standards and customer requirements.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Direcfors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and five largest suppliers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme’) to provide incentive and/or reward to eligible persons for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
our Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved
by a wriffen resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28

January 2014 and came into effect upon the Company's listing on 21
February 2014.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/
or reward to eligible persons for their contribution o, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, our Company.

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discrefion, offer opfions ("Options”) to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set
out in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the
Group and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in
the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will confribute to the
Group ("Eligible Persons”).

Further details of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 28
January 2014. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company
has no other share option scheme currently in force. As at 31
December 2022, 4,481,557,261 Shares were in issue and a total of
149,483,334 share options to subscribe for up to 149,483,334
Shares, representing 3.34% of the issued Shares as at 31 December
2022 have been granted and remained outstanding since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continved)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and in compliance with Rule
17.03 of the Listing Rules, the maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s| of the Company,
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
date of the approval of the Share Option Scheme or of the approval of
the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit {the “Scheme Mandate
Limit").

The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders at general meeting provided that (1] the
scheme mandate limit so refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue as af the date of the Shareholders” approval
of the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit; (2) Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemels) of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, or
lapsed in accordance with the relevant scheme rules or exercised share
options) shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed; and (3) the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemel(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to fime.

The Company refreshed the Scheme Mandate Limit at the annual
general meeting held on @ June 2015. Under the Scheme Mandate
Limit as refreshed on @ June 2015, the Company may issue up fo 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit, which is 210,514,560
Shares.

The Company had refreshed the Scheme Mandate Limit at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 22 February
2022, since over 99.61% of the Scheme Mandate Limit as refreshed
on 9 June 2015 has been utilized. Under the current Scheme Mandate
Limit as refreshed on 22 February 2022, the Company may issue up to
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the
approval of the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit, which is
345,602,006 Shares. The number of Shares that may be issued under
the Share Option Scheme will be an aggregate of 495,085,340
Shares [comprising 345,602,006 Shares allotted and issued upon
exercise of the Options to be granted under the refreshed Scheme
Mandate Limit and 149,483,334 Shares to be allotted and issued
upon full exercise of the outstanding Options), representing
approximately 11.05% of the Shares in issue at 31 December 2022
and is within the 30% limit in issue from time fo time as required under
the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continved)

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the tofal
number of Shares issued and fo be issued upon exercise of Options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company'’s issued share
capital from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entifled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in ifs absolute discrefion select to subscribe at
the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may
(subject fo the terms of the Share Option Scheme] defermine (provided
the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

There is no minimum period for which an Option granfed must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise imposed by the Directors.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its
absolute discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such
conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those
sef forth in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when
making an offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as to
any performance criteria which must be safisfied by the Eligible Person
and/or the Company and/or ifs subsidiaries, and any minimum period
for which an Option must be held, before an Option may be exercised,
it any), provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent with any
other ferms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discrefion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription price
shall be at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business
day;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c]  the nominal value of a share.

BIRESTE @)

BRESEHESHE (@)

REESARE BH8ZEM+ @A E
A BEEREA A TR BBEE - BUERTT
FERTHERTRALTZBREMETT
R TETZBENDEEBERARRTRZ
EEITIRA%

REBEBREAS 2GR EFTSHERNEK
MERETSRBRR T FARKRIANE
FENREBZAERATIFLRLBK
REXD ARABEIBEFTSAE (RE
BRES S 2R BEZAREE 2kin
(IEERBEARBNIRBIMEE 2T

BEEEMUSAETEER -

BRIFEZE ST - B R a0 I8 I i I 8
WAFREABAITEN &K HRE -

REBREAS 2GR EFSA2ER
BRI 1% B i 2 A0 B 72 B8 R i T &)
FRELASMII AR B RN A A ERALEL
REBHREAE A B 8GRE - R
HRR (BIHEETERRAERALR A
RAR/SIEMBRAREER I EMKRER
BERRITEBREMN ZEARIHE Y
[R(E)) - AR IR AR ST
A HL At f5RBRER MR — 2K -

THHEBERREIRABERAETENE
HAERE RN 2 EBERE LENRESR
BROBBREZN 2N FRIIH) - EREE
TRERTIRS

() BORBEHBH(BASEXBD) EE
RFTSARER EAHKRHE

b) BROREERZHEHMAEEXAE
BRPTE R MER LA FHRH
B: R

(c] BXDEIE -



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continved)

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part within the option
period which is the period to be determined and notified by the Board
fo the grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and
in any event shall not exceed fen years commencing from the dafe on
which the offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme [i.e.
28 January 2014, after which no further options will be granted or
offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any subsisting Options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year
period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Movements of the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows:

Changes during the period
bk 1)
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Number Number Price of
of of Share
Options Options Exercise at the
held ot held ot price grant
1 January 31 December Exercise period of date of
Category 2022 Granfed  Exercised  Cancelled 2022 of Options Options  Options
R2022F R2022%F
1A18 128318 RIERE
BEZ BEZ BHAH
8/ E BREYA BREYE TEH fifeE REGER
Directors
Bz
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson 14 December 2021 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
BERxE 2021€12R14R 2021F12R14822031 6128138
Ms. Zhu Yufen 14 December 2021 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
REGLL 20215128148 2021F12R148220316128138
Mr. Pan Liansheng [refired] 14 December 2021 1,000,000 - - - {1,000,000) - 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
BEBAE(BRE) 20215128148 2021612R14BE2031 51278138
Mr. Lee Ting Bun
Denny [Refired) 14 December 2021 1,000,000 - - - {1,000,000) - 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
FEMEE(BRE)  2021F12A148 2021612R14BE 20315128138
Ms. Ren Ruxian [Refired] 14 December 2021 1,000,000 - - - {1,000,000) - 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
Lt (BERE) 2021€12R14R 2021F12R14822031 6128138
Eligible Persons other
than Directors
ESoMEERAL
Employees 7 May 2015 14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 7 May 2015 fo 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68
E= 201565878 2015F5878Z2025%5A68
Consultants 7 May 2015 13,000,000 - - - - 13,000,000 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68
B 201565878 2015%5R70Z2025%5R6H
Others — suppliers 12 December 2017 744,224 - - - - 744,224 31 March 2019 1o 30 March 2024 370 370
Hi — R 2017%128128 2019F3A31BZ202453R308
Others — customers 12 December 2017 64,110 - - - - 64,110 31 March 2019 o 30 March 2024 3.70 370
i - BF 2017€12R 128 2019F3A31BZ2024%E3 308
Employees 14 December 2021 127,000,000 - - - 12,325,000 114,675,000 14 December 2021 to 13 December 2031 0.465 0.168
&2 20216128148 2021F12R148220316128138
Total 164,808,334 - - - (15,325,000 149,483,334

&5t
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables set out information regarding the Options granted
under (i} the original Scheme Mandate Limit as of the adoption of the
share option scheme on 28 January 2014; and (ii] the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit adopted on @ June 2015:

Original scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme adopted
on 28 January 2014

BTS2

BREGFEZESFHE B

TERBHEARENBEER2014F1 A28
B 5% 0 B AR S 81 A IR AT B X AERR 2R ¢ K (i)
R2015F 6 A0 B R H) L E 3ot 81X 1
[REMEEOBREER

R20145 1 A28 BERARE R ST BBV RET
IR R

Number of

Categories of Share
grantees i.e. Options
Directors, Number of Number of Number of Number of outstanding
Scheme employees, Number Share Share Share Share as at 31
mandate limit consultants and/or of Options Exercise Options Options Options December Reason for the
approved Date of grant others) grantees granted price cancelled lapsed exercised 2021 grant
R2021 %
12A3182
ARAD R (WES B BN 1o RATE
BEHER S WH AERA 2R BRE BRE BT BRE
SHERERE R/HE ) A BREYA ¥R #B BREHA ¥R
209,832,160 2July 2014 Directors: 3
5
1. Mr. Huang Weiping 2,000,000 1.13 667,000 0 1,333,000 0 Inrecognition of
[Note 1) their efforts and
contributions fo
the Group
201457828 1 EEFAEMT) RAKEMTIE
RUREENER
2. Ms. Zhu Yufen 10,000,000 1.13 3,334,000 0 6,666,000 0
(Note 1)
2. REFLL (M)
3. Mr. Liv Hanjiv 12,000,000 1.13 0 12,000,000 0 0
(Note 2
3 BEREE (ME2)
Employees 87 89,000,000 1.13 6,215,000 16,202,000 66,583,000 0
B8
7 May 2015 Directors: 4
B3
1. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun 5,000,000 1.68 5,000,000 0 0 0 In recogniion of
Wilson their efforts and
(Note 1) contributions o
the Group
01585878 1. BEELEWFE) AARENTIE
RUREENE
2. Mr. Lee Ting Bun 1,000,000 1.68 1,000,000 0 0 0
Denny
[Note 3)
2. FEMEE (D)
3. Mr. Pan Liansheng 1,000,000 1.68 1,000,000 0 0 0
[Note 3)
3REBEE(MED)
4. Ms. Liv Rong 1,000,000 1.68 0 1,000,000 0 0
[Note 4)
4. Bkt (Mitd)
Employees 97 73,360,000 1.68 41,480,000 17,880,000 0 14,000,000
k8
Consultants (Note 5 321,000,000 1.68 8,000,000 0 0 13,000,000 See note 5 below
EEIGER) BT XMaS
Tofal 194215,360,000 66,696,000 47,082,000 74,582,000 27,000,000

st




SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Original scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme adopted
on 28 January 2014 (Confinued)

Nofes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

An executive Director.

A former executive Director.

An independent non-executive Director.

A former independent non-executive Director.

The Share Options were granted to (i) Ms. An Ran Annie in light of her contributions and
corporate strategic and business development services provided to Baohe Fushan (an
associated company of the Group) ; and (i) Mr. Cai Gong and Ms. Ju Li in light of their
confributions in procuring the access fo the operation of renewable metal electronic
commerce platform in the PRC and delivery services operated by Sichuan Jin Xunhuan
E-commerce Trading Co., lid., a company which the Group had acquired a 25% stake
in 2017 (defails of the acquisition were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 October 2017) and subsequently disposed of by the Group in 2021 (defails
of the disposal were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 November
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 22 April 2021).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved) BRETE (2
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continved) BRESEESHEE)
Refreshed scheme mandate limit adopted on 9 June 2015 R201556 A9 BIRMEE T B REMREE
Number of
Categories of Share
grantees i.e. Options
Directors, Number of Number of Number of Numberof  outstanding
Scheme employees, Share Share Share Share as at 31
mandate limit consultants and/or Options Exercise Options Options Options December Reason for the
approved Date of grant others) grantees granted price cancelled lapsed exercised 2022 grant
R2022%
ERADR 12A3182
[%: £19:3: (HES- BRH Ba# BN BT R AT
SHERE &8 BE BRE BRE BRE B BRE
B R/HE ) %8 %8 %8 #B #E BRERE
210,514,560 23 July 2015 Others — suppliers 25 6,700,000 2.16 0 3,200,000 3,500,000 0 Seenote 1 below
01577238 Rt - HERE EAS ¢
Others — customers 9 3,300,000 2.16 0 2,300,000 1,000,000 0
At - &P
31 May 2016 Directors: 1 In recognition of

their efforts and
contributions fo

the Group
2016558318 ES: RAREHTER
HEASEHER
Ms. Ren Ruxian 1,000,000 3.66 1,000,000 0 0 0
(Note 2)
Bzt (ME2)
Employees 38 26,930,000 3.66 20,640,000 6,290,000 0 0
E8
Others — suppliers 7 5,200,000 3.66 5,200,000 0 0 0 Seenofe | below
Hit — fhERS RT3
12 December 2017 Others — suppliers 68 17,338,000 37 0 16593776 0 744,224 See nofe 1 below
20175128128 Hft — fifEE BT
Others — customers 39 12,226,000 37 0 12,161,890 0 64,110
it — &P
14 December 2021  Directors: 5 In recognifion of
iheir efforts and
contributions o
the Group
20215128148 &%: RABENTIER
HAKEHER
1. Mr. Zhu Yufen 3,000,000 0.465 0 0 0 3,000,000
(Note 3)
1 RESLL (H3E3)
2. Mr. Kwong Wai 4,000,000 0.465 0 0 0 4,000,000

Sun Wilson (Note 3

2 BEERE M)

3. Mr. Lee Ting 1,000,000 0.465 0 1,000,000 0 0
Bun Denny (Note 2)

3 EERAE (M2)

4. M. Pan liansheng 1,000,000 0.465 0 1,000,000 0 0
(Note 2)

4. FER R (5 2)

5. Ms. Ren Ruxian 1,000,000 0.465 0 1,000,000 0 0
(Note 2)

5B L (M3 2)

Employees 127,000,000 0.465 0 12,325,000 0 114,675,000

E&

Tofal 209,694,000 26,840,000 55,870,666 4,500,000 122,483,334

st
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BIRESTE 2

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continved) BRESEESHEE)

Refreshed scheme mandate limit adopted on 9 June 2015 (Confinved) HR2015F6 A9 R KM E E F s B R ER
B(E)

Notes: P 5E -

(1) The Share Options were granted with a view to align the interests of the Group's (M RHERENBAEERFE &,/ 45 /e F a5 8

customers and/or suppliers with the Group and secure their long-term support and AEENMNEREFE B THRARSHALENR
commitment to the Group. HISC 8% Bk o

(2) An independent non-executive Director. (2) BYLIEHITES -

(3) An executive Director. (3) HITESE ©

The fair value of the relevant Options granted were estimated as at the BRIz BEBERE 2 A FERE L B H
dates of grant using a binomial model, taking info account the terms A —EARAGHE - EERKT L E@E

and conditions upon which the relevant Options were granted. PR AR 2 AGR TR S Ak
The following table sets out the inputs to the model used: TRETIZEA R 2w AR

23 July 12 December
2015* 2017 14 December 2021
2 July 2014 7 May 2015 Options Options Options
Grant date Options granted fo Options granted to granted fo 31 May 2016 Options granted to granted fo granted fo
2014% 2015% 2015% 2017%
7TR28B 5A78 TABA* 128128 20215128148
RiLAH BRERT BRERT BRERT 01655831 ABRERT BRERT BRERT
Certain Certain Certain
Other Other eligible Other eligible eligible Other

Directors  employees Directors  employees participants Directors  employees participanis  parficipants Directors  employees
AETRER ETRER EHTREK
Bz AftEs ¥z HitkE S5E ¥z HitRE 5% S5E EE  AftlES

Fair value of measurement ~ REHEAEZ

date [HKS) DFEET) 0.44 0.39 071 0.58 0.22 1.22 1.17 1.45 145 0.1003  0.08111
Share price (HKS) REET) 1.07 1.07 1.68 1.68 1.67 3.05 3.05 3.05 370 0.168 0.168
Exercise price [HK) 1fECET) 113 113 1.68 1.68 216 3.66 3.66 3.66 370 0.465 0.465
Expected volatilty BHRE 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20% 49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 41.61% 84.7% 84.7%
Historical volaiilty BRI 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20% 49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 41.61% 84.7% 84.7%
Expected life BHFH 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 1.5 years 10 years 10 years 10years 6.3 years 10 years 10 years
104 105 104 104 155 105 104 104 63% 105 0%
Expected dividends BHRS 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 1.47% 1.47% 1.47% 0.92% 0% 0%
Riskdres inferes rafe EERHE

[based on Hong Kong ~ (BABTESME
Exchonge Fund Notes] ~ E& BEF%
REX) 2.059% 2.059% 1.745% 1.745% 0.239% 1.286% 1.286% 1.286% 1.647% 1.271% 1.271%
Exercise muliple fT6fEH 28 22 2.8 22 - 2.8 22 - - 2.8 22
Postvesting exit rate GERRAE 0% 5.44% 0% 16.12% - 9.22% 9.22% - - 0% 8.05%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

No other feature of the relevant Options was incorporated info the
measurement of fair value.

The value of the relevant Options is subject to the limitations of the
binomial model and a number of assumptions which are subjective and
difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Further details relating to the Share Option Scheme and Options
granted thereunder are set out in note 4 and nofe 38 fo the financial
statements and the announcements of the Company dated 2 July
2014, 7 May 2015, 23 July 2015, 31 May 2016, 12 December
2017 and 14 December 2021. Apart from the above, the Company
had not granted any Options under the Share Option Scheme fo any
other persons as required to be disclosed under the Rule 17.07 of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 8 August 2017 and 22 April 2020, Epoch Keen entered into
2017 Share Charge and a confirmatory share charge respectively,
with Huarong. Please refer to the announcements of the Company

dated 8 August 2017 and 22 April 2020 for further defails.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the section above

headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME".

Details of the equity linked agreements are sef out on pages 12 to 14
to the MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS under the
sections headed "Huarong convertible bonds” and ISSUANCE OF
NEW SHARES UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATES.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 44 to the financial stafements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the year

ended 31 December 2022.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Yu Jiangiu and Epoch Keen, the then controlling shareholders of the
Company, entfered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, details of which have been set
out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
prospectus of the Company dated 11 February 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors confirmed that based
on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained sufficient
amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules and agreed
by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited who will retire upon the forthcoming adjourned annual general
meeting. A resolutions for the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited as auditors of the Company was passed at the general
meeting of the Company dated 30 June 2023.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any Shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act,
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts (except such is
incurred or sustained through his own fraud or dishonesty). The
Company has not maintained Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Company will consider and provide appropriate cover for the Directors
of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed fo mainfaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of ifs business. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Croup has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation fo its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group understands that a better future depends on
everyone's participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.

The Group is operating in the environmental protection industry by
virtue of recycling scrap metal materials in the society. Contributing fo
resolving a significant part of pollution problem in the vicinity of our
plants, the Group is highly praised and encouraged by the local
governments. The Group also advocated conservation of resources in
the office and encouraged employees to develop good habits,
conserve resources and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment.

For a more comprehensive review, please refer to the 2022
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company that will
be dispatched to the Shareholders and available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance

Code (the "CG Code”") as set forth in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules

save as disclosed below.

Code Provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the
Group and has extensive experience in operations and management,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Yu taking up both roles for continuous effective management and
business development of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like fo take this opportunity to express our sincere
thanks to all the Shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support and the entire staff for their dedication and
confribution to the Group during the year.

CONTINUED SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been
suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on Monday, 3 April 2023 and
will remain suspended pending fulfilment of the Resumption Guidance
and any supplement or modification thereof.

Shareholders and potential investors of the Company should
exercise caution when dealing in the shares of the Company.

By Order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
YU Jianqiu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 January 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance fo the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed fo achieving a high standard of corporate govemnance as an
essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied the principles of and is in compliance with
all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code") except for deviations disclosed and explained below.

Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as
well as details relating to the deviations are summarized below.

MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the Direcfors’
securities fransactions on terms not less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules. After specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding the Directors’
securifies fransactions for the year ended 31 December 2022.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board's main roles are to provide leadership and fo
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.
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THE BOARD (Continved)

Responsibilities (Continved)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, infernal confrol and risk management systems,
material fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. Any Director and Board Committee
may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable
request fo the Board.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-fo-day
management and operation of the Croup fo the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit and
corporate governance committee [the “"Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”), the remuneration committee |(the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective ferms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year under review and as af the date of this report, the
members of the board of Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping (refired 30,/06,/2023)

Mr. Gao Qiang (appointed 2,/09,/2022)

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Llee Ting Bun Denny [refired 28,/06,/2022)
Mr. Pan liansheng (resigned 13/10,/2022)
Ms. Ren Ruxian (retired 28,/06,/2022)

Mr. i Wei (appointed 28,/06,/2022)

Mr. Fang Guanghua (appointed 13/10/2022)
Mr. Yu Rengzhong (appointed 13/10,/2022)
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BOARD COMPOSITION (Continved)

There are three Board committees. The composition of the Board
committees are sef out below:

Audit and
Corporate

Board Committee

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Governance

Director Committee

Mr. li Wei M M C
Mr. Fang Guanghua M C M
M:r. Yu Rengzhong C M M

Notes:

C Chairman of the relevant Board commitiees

M Member of the relevant Board committees

Biographical defails of the Directors are sef out in the secfion headed
"Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism fo the Board for ifs efficient
and effective functioning. Moreover, through active participation in
Boord meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various confributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a board diversity policy whereby it recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company's competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender, age and other qualities of
the members of the Board. These differences will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible
should be balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of
the Board are made on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and
experience the Board as a whole requires fo be effective.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continved)

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy, as
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board fo
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Under Code Provision C1.4, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

Directors are encouraged fo partficipate in continuous professional
development so as to refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging
their duties and responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2022, relevant reading materials including regulatory update and
seminar handouts, etc. have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.

Each newly appointed Director would attend fraining and receive an
induction package covering the statutory and regulatory obligation of a
director of a listed company. Directors may participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. All Directors
are provided with materials on latest changes in applicable legal and
regulafory requirements and corporate governance practices fo assist
them to discharge their dufies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, all the Directors had partficipated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of attending frainings
organized by professional firm and/or reading materials relevant fo the
Company's businesses or fo the Direcfors’ dufies and responsibilifies.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 sfipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best inferest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Coniinved)

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The appointment of independent non-executive directors, subject fo re-
nomination and reelection by the Company in general meeting, shall
be for a term of two years unless previously terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions specified in their appointment.

The director’s fee specified in the letter of appointment of each of
independent non-executive Directors are HK$ 180,000 per annum.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and/or industry expertise and management experience
and have provided their professional advice to the Board.

INSUFFICIENT NUMBER OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-Compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules

According fo Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company is required
fo have at least three INEDs. According fo Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, at least one of the INEDs of the Company must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise (the “Qualification”). According to Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company must comprise a
minimum of three members, and at least one of whom is an INED who
has the Qualification.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 June
2022, following the retirement of Ms. Ren Ruxian and Mr. lee Ting
Bun Denny as INEDs af the conclusion of the AGM on 28 June 2022
and the appoint of Mr. Li Wei at the AGM as an INED:

(1) the Company only has two INEDs, thus the number of INEDs falls
below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules;
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INSUFFICIENT NUMBER OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continved)

Non-Compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules
(Continued)

(2) there is no INED who has the Quadlification as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

(3)  INEDs do not represent at least one-third of the Board as required
under Rule 3.10A

(4) the audit and corporate governance committee (the “Audit
Committee”) comprises no INED with the Qualification as
required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; and

(5)  the Audit Committee only has two members, thus the number of
members falls below the minimum number required under Rule
3.21 of the listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 13 October
2022, the Company was granted a waiver to extend the grace period
under Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the listing Rules to 19 October 2022 to
comply with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. On 13 October 2022, following the appointments of each of
Mr. Fang Guanghua and Mr. Yu Rengzhong as an INED, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A and 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 28 June 2022 and
13 October 2022 for further details.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than sfatutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the oppointment, retirement,
re- election and removal of directors are sef out in the Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board structure, size and composition and making
recommendations fo the Board on the appointment and re-appointment

of Directors and succession planning for Direcfors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

All Directors, including independent non-executive Direcfors appointed
for a specific term, are subject to retirement by rotation. In accordance
with the Articles of Associafion, at each annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM”), at least one third of the Directors for the time being
(or, i their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but notf less than, one-third) shall refire from office by
rotation, provided that each Direcfor shall be subject fo retirement af an
AGM at least once every three years.

Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the
next AGM after his or her appointment.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board infends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meefings o provide all
Direcfors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable nofice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched fo the Direcfors or Boord committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board commitiee members are unable fo affend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are,/will
be recorded in sufficient defail fo include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board commitiee meeting will be sent fo the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting

is held.

According fo the Articles of Association, a Director shall not vote nor be
counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
confract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interested.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The number of Board meetings, Board commitiee meefings and general
meefings held in 2022 are sef out in the table below.

Name of Director

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Jiangiu

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

[refired 30/06,/2023)
Mr. Gao Qiang

[appointed 2/09,/2022)
Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

(refired 28/06/2022)
Mr. Pan liansheng

[resigned 13/10/2022)
Ms. Ren Ruxian

(retired 28/06/2022)
Mr. Li Wei

[appointed 28,/06,/2022)
Mr. Fang Guanghua

appointed 13/10/2022)
Mr. Yu Rengzhong

[appointed 13/10/2022)
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FRERE (R 2022F
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Rkt (120224
6 A28 ARAE)
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6A28BEZEME)
HRERE(R2022F
10A13BEZHE)
AMBEE (120224
10A13BEZHE)

8/8
9/9
9/9
1/

9/9

6/6
9/9
6/6
1/
N/A
Tam

N/A
Tam
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Number of meeting attended/ Eligible fo atiend
R/ fEREEEERY
Audit and

Corporate

Nomination General
Committee meeting

Governance Remuneration
Committee  Committee
EuRLE

ERZEE ¥FMZEEE REZEE RERAE

N/A N/A N/A 2/2
TR TEA T

N/A N/A N/A 2/2
TR TR TEA

N/A N/A N/A 2/2
ek ik TEH

N/A N/A N/A N/A
TR TEA T

N/A N/A N/A 2/2

TER TEH TEM

3/3 1/1 2/2 2/2
4/4 2/2 4/4 2/2
3/3 1/1 2/2 2/2
1/ 1/1 2/2 N/A
TR

N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER  TEA  TER TR
N/A N/A N/A N/A
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55



56

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERWE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
"http: //www.cmru.com.cn” and are available to Shareholders upon
request. All Board committees report fo the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriafe circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr.
Fang Guanghua, Mr. Yu Rengzhong and Mr. Li Wei (Chairperson)
who are all independent non-executive Directors. The functions of the
Nomination Committee primarily are fo:

(]  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience| of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv) make recommendations fo the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive; and

[v] to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, the
nomination procedures and the process and criferia adopted to
select and recommend candidates for directorship.

ExZEg

EEQEKUIREREES FHEES K
EZRPEBEREZEE S UNEEBEXART
HREBHBNEE - FTEEFZESEH
FTHEBBESE SN AQF ML
[hitp: //www.cmru.com.cn | » I A] & & 3k
ERREH -IBEEFZESRNEZSE
WEAELRRREEZ o

PMIEEEZEeREHENERETHRY
WAIREEBRT  (FHAEEERUATR
BUBXER BRAARAX -

REZEE

RABREAH REZBEEEBEIALERL
ERMBRERFRELE (ZE) 24
RBEILIFPTEF REZZBENEE
BEBE:

)] =IBFRIEZTENRE RER
Mk (BiEHeE  MBRER) A5
TEREPNESSRIEBER -
ABC A AN A R R 1 R

i) HHAEEEEERKNRETEKREN
AL IREREEEFTALTHNEE
REFSIFEHERNIERS

(i) ATZBLIEMITESHNE LN

(V) REEFNZEXEHNZELREZTNE
5t LEREFSIFENITHA
B MEFSELESE: K

V) ETRBEFHORR REREFLE
BMEBERREAMRABNRER

i
mig °©



Annual Report 2022 « ZZE = ZFF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continved)

For considering the appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee assesses the candidate on a variety of criteria such as
reputation of infegrity, qualification, knowledge and experience in the
industry, ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities and diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
Having taken info accounts of the above factors and obtained all the
information as the Nomination Committee considers necessary, the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision, and if the candidate will stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to the Shareholders.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board
diversity policy. The board diversity policy applies to the Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
mainfaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and
will make recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives
for achieving board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company business growth.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022 to, inter dlia, (i) review the size and composition
of the Board as well as review the board diversity policy; (i) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to review
that re-appointment of Directors; and |iii) discuss other matters related fo
the foregoing.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the datfe of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Fang Guanghua (Chairperson) and Mr. Yu Rengzhong
who are all independent non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

() to make recommendations fo the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management's
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
fransparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continved)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

fo review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference fo the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management,

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

fo consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and ifs subsidiaries;

fo review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or fermination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

fo review and approve compensation arrangements relating fo
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct fo ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

fo ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration; and

fo determine the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
assess performance of executive Directors and approve the ferms
of executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the remuneration of each Director and five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in nofe
13 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year fo review the remuneration packages of Directors and senior

managements of the Company. The recommended remuneration
packages have been approved by the entire Board.
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee comprises Mr. Yu Rengzhong (Chairperson], Mr. Fang
Guanghua and Mr. Li Wei who are all independent non-executive
Directors.

In relation fo reviewing the Company's financial information, the Audit

and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers of the
Group or external auditors before submission to the Board;

review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;

make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system.

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibiliies are to

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

develop, review and update the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices and to make recommendations
to the Board,

fo review and monifor the training and continuous professional
development of Direcfors and senior management,

fo review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors, and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Four meetings of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
were held during the year. The work performed by the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee during the year included the
following:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021;

reviewed the inferim report and inferim results announcement of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the annual audit plan and results of external audit and
had discussion with external auditors on any significant findings
and audit issues;

reviewed the results of internal review and had discussion with
internal audit consultant on any significant findings and internal
control issues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit commenced, the
nature and scope of the audit and the respective relevant issues;

considered and approved the resignation of auditors, the
appointment of external auditors as well as approve its service
confract for the year;

received the confinuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2021: and

reviewed the external consultant’s evaluation of the Group's
system of internal confrol.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

and Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31

December 2022.
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continved)

Review of 2022 annual results

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has also reviewed
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2022.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and
agreed with the views and concerns of the independent auditor with
respect to the qualified opinion issued in relation fo the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee noted that the
Board has undertaken or in the progress of implementing measures to
improve the Group's liquidity and financial position. The Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and agreed with the
Board's position and has discussed with the independent auditor.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

ZHONGHUI was appointed as our external auditor by Shareholders in
the 2022 AGM until the conclusion of the 2023 AGM. It is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial stafements.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to ZHONGHUI is set
out below:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company's financial statements, which are
put fo the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
positions and prospects.

Pursuant fo code provision C.1.3 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board would like to provide more details regarding the Company’s
ability fo confinue as a going concern.

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group recorded a net loss of RMB4,763,152,000 and
RMB®5,477,000 respectively for two consecutive years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately RMB3,318,727,000 and
net liabilities of approximately RMB2,702,000,000. By the end of the
reporting period, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB2,391,000, while debts repayable within one year
or on demand |including inferestbearing bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and note payables] were approximately
RMBT1,593,601,000. In addition, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group had defaulted the repayment of convertible bonds, entrusted
loans, interestbearing bank and other borrowings and note payables
of approximately RMB231,720,000, RMB306,116,000,
RMB981,661,000 and RMB23,511,000 respectively (collectively
referred to as the “Overdue Debts”). These defaults may trigger cross
default clauses as stated in the contracts of cerfain other borrowings of
approximately RMB46,793,000 (the"Cross Default Debts”) as at 31
December 2022. In addition, as described in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group was also involved in various liigations resulting in the freezing
of several bank accounts and the seizure of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and inventories. The above events or
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to confinue as a going
concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise ifs assets
and discharge ifs liabilities in the normal course of business. Please
refer to the section headed "MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN" in the independent auditor's report for further
defails.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The Management's Position, View and Assessment on the
Disclaimer of Opinion and the Other Matters

The Directors have given careful consideration fo the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of finance to
confinues as a going concern. The Company has been undertaking
various plans and measures to improve the Group's liquidity and
financial position. Further defails of such actions are set out in note 2 o
the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors are therefore of the opinion that it is appropriate fo
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concem,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements to adjust to value of the Group's assefs to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, respectively.

Also, regarding to the outstanding receivables (the "Outstanding
Receivables”) as described under the section headed “Other Matters” in
the independent auditor’s report, the Board is considering and taking all
considering and taking all possible measures including but not limited o
(i) Actively communicating with customers/suppliers on understanding
their situation and negotiating with and issuing demand letters fo
customers/suppliers in relations to the repayment/seftlement of the
Outstanding Receivables; (i) taking legal action on the repayment of the
Outstanding Receivables on certain customers/suppliers, with
consideration of comparing the potential legal costs expected to be
incurred and potential returns from legal actions results before taking
formal legal action; and (i) communicating with potential buyers of the
Outstanding Receivables on the potential considerations and contract
terms for recovery of the Outstanding Receivables for the inferests of the
Company as well as addressing of the audit qualification.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The Management's Position, View and Assessment on the
Disclaimer of Opinion and the Other Matters (Continued)

The Board is of the view that if the plans and measures on (i) improving
the Group's liquidity and financial position as described in nofe 2 fo the
consolidated financial statements and recovering the Outstanding
Receivables can be successfully implemented, audit modification can be
removed in future financial audit. The Company’s auditors, ZHONGHUI,
concurs with the Board's view as disclosed in this annual report.

Audit Committee’s View on the Disclaimer of Opinion and the
Other Matters

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and
agreed with the views and concerns of the independent auditor with
respect to the Disclaimer of Opinion and the Other Matters issued in
relation to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements. The Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee nofed that the Board has undertaken or is in the progress of
implementing measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial
position and recovering the Outstanding Receivables. The Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and agreed with the
Board's position and has discussed with the independent auditor
regarding the financial position of the Group, measures taken by the
Group, and considered the independent auditor’s rationale and
understood their consideration in arriving their opinion.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board fo
mainfain an adequate infernal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assefs and review the effectiveness of such
systfem on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
confrol system of the Company and considers the internal control system
to be effective and adequate.

The Board has established an internal audit function, which reports
directly to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to
defermine whether the inferal control procedures are properly carried
out throughout the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and inferal control systems are
designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure o
achieve business obijectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee. The Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. During the year, the Board had conducted
review of the risk management and internal control system of the
Company before the date of this report through effort of the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee.

During 2022, the Group has engaged an exfernal consultant to
provide assistance in the development of a structured approach to risk
management and perform infernal control review. Based on the review
of the external consultant, no material internal control defects had been

identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of
each level of the sfructure are summarised below:

Board

Defermines the business sirategies and obijectives of the Group,
and evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it is
willing fo take in achieving the Group's strategic obijectives;

Ensures that the Group establishes and mainfains appropriate and
effective risk management and infernal control systems; and

Oversees management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Assists the Board fo perform its responsibilities of risk management
and internal control sysfems;

reviews the Company's corporate governance policies and
practices (including risk management policy) and to make
recommendations fo the Board;

Ensures the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, fraining programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

Considers key matters on risk management and infernal control,
and reports and makes recommendations fo the Board.

Management

Designs, implements and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

Identifies, evaluates and manages the risks that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitors risks and takes measures to mitigate risks in dayto-day
operations;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Management (Confinued)
e Gives prompt responses to, and follow up on risk management
and internal control matters; and

®  Provides confirmation fo the Board and Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and infernal control systems.

Internal control consultant

*  Reports to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
the findings of the internal control review and makes
recommendations to the Board and management to improve the
material systems deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the listing Rules and the SFO, the Group has taken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness fo
preserve confidentiality of inside information within the Group, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification fo the
relevant Directors and employees regularly, disseminating information
fo specified persons on a needfoknow basis and regarding closely fo
the "Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, saved as announced and
disclosed, the Group was unaware of any non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables Shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

EREGRE

BEEEERAZERE &)

EEE(E)
s HABERAREENAMNEEZEEIEL
R B 1) [0 B B BRAE ¢ %

s REFSNBERLEEERZBEER
HEMRAREELRABEENIERS
B HER

R EEER

s MBERMEEELLZEQERNIME
PEMAERYMEFTS NEREED
BE AR EREZERTRZEX
P 838 2 BE R IR 2K o

BEERZHMATHE

ARE LR R MRS M E R DI IE I
HMHMAREEME  AEECKMZ AR
FRhigm BRESAEEHARTEER
EHRLEFRXHRENEN EF2HIF
ERLAEEABEMESNEBETE
FRHEEHERZEEN 201246 A
i [ARBERERS] -

BFEERER

BE2022F12A31BLFE BRARSE
ERBEEIN AEBETHAKRERAEKX
FTENBRIERNER -

ERREREERE

ARARR - BRRERGARER - Bk
REEBERLRIMNAREEHAEEEBR
BERBTHRER/REE - ARANMABR
FEREMERREARENNEEE
REBMREREREBFLRERERK

67



68

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERWE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continved)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at "http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and
updates on the Group's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send writfen enquiries or requests fo the
Company as follows:

Address:  Unit 2513B, COSCO Tower,

183 Queen'’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the atfention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 /199

Email: ir@cmru.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meefings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company confinues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional invesfors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group's
developments.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To conform to the requirements of the Listing Rules, including but not
limited to the Core Shareholder Profection Standards as set out in
Appendix Al to the Listing Rules and to make some housekeeping
amendments, the Board has made certain amendments to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”). Defails of the amendments
to the Articles are sef out in its circular dated 27 May 2022. The
amendments as well as the adoption of the amended and restated
Atticles has become effective upon the approval by the shareholders af

the AGM dated 28 June 2022.

The current version of the Articles is available on the website of the
Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the website of the Company
at www.cmru.com.cn.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy on 18 January 2019. A
summary of the policy is disclosed as below.

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders
fo be its goal and endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders” expectations and prudent capital management with a
stable and sustainable dividend policy.

In accordance with the Articles of Association and subject to the
relevant laws of the Cayman Islands, the Company in general meeting
may from time fo time declare dividends in any currency to be paid to
the Shareholders but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board.

Dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of the
Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the relevant laws
of the Cayman Islands.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board may take into account, amongst other
things, the actual and expected financial performance, the eamings,
distributable reserves, debis to equity ratio, refumn on equity, working
capital requirement, future expansion plans, and any other factors that
the Board deems appropriate.

The Board shall review this policy from fime fo time, as appropriate, fo
ensure the effectiveness of this policy and shall discuss any revisions
that may be required.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secrefary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan.
Mr. Cheung has been informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he had attained no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard Shareholders’ inferests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at Shareholders” meefings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and
voting.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Shareholders may
convene an extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals af
Shareholders” meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association. Any one
or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-enth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, require an
extraordinary general meeting fo be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration af a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands
and the Arficles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, nofice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name,
confact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

An upto-date version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles of Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders” meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll vofing results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http: //www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.

R R A

RTRERRERDLEN RERASLE
REEAFR(BRERENES) ZEEH
VRBR HBEREBLRERR -

RIBAEGERARIE S8 15& - AR A4 X
REARSHIREABERZAMINERK
SLEREZFE - —NUIAERESR
ZRAMBFE NI RARABEEA (A
RARBIBERAEG LRERE) + 92— 1K
RERZBAMNEFEANAWEELER
EX - BREFSARMRFIAE - iR
BABEEKPEANCEIMAER BZKE
JERIE 2 3% 2 RE M {E A ARTT -

RETRENSHEATERABERS
ARREAS LIRS REE  UHREA
gEE -

BRREALTZ2EEENEFARART
Ko B 22 P vt BB B o

RRERRE BRAKZASZENE@DR
KB BARER RIFRME) I
AERRRFEERRF  TREREH
2% BEFBELSN  UEARRAFLEE -
PR E R TR BOE R AR E T T LABEE o

A4 2 A0 1) RO BRI R R BT R AN 2 B A
KRR ER RESAISEZEEE
RARARGARBEENAFS -

BELFTRA FIEERREASREMNR
BEOBUREFARA BIRERALE
REBEHEEEAREAG A RERE A
48 Ik (www . hkexnews.hk) & &K A 7 48 uh

(http: //www.cmru.com.cn) HIE °



Annual Report 2022 « ZZE = ZFF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

b5
i) B4 7

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Mefal Resources Utilization limited (the “Company”] and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred fo as the “Group”] set out on pages
77 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not
possible for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

We draw attention to nofe 2 fo the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
RMB4,763,152,000 and RMB95,477,000 respectively for two
consecufive years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. As af 31
December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB3,318,727,000 and net liabilities of approximately
RMB2,702,000,000. By the end of the reporting period, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB2,391,000,
while debts repayable within one year or on demand (including
interesi-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and
note payables) were approximately RMB1,593,601,000. In addition,
as at 31 December 2022, the Group had defaulted the repayment of
convertible bonds, entrusted loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and nofe payables of approximately RMB23 1,720,000,
RMB306,116,000, RMB981,661,000 and RMB23,511,000
respectively (collectively referred to as the “Overdue Debts”). These
defaults may trigger cross default clauses as stated in the contracts of
certain other borrowings of approximately RMB46,793,000 (the
"Cross Default Debts”) as at 31 December 2022. In addition, as
described in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31
December 2022, the Group was also involved in various litigations
resulting in the freezing of several bank accounts and the seizure of
property, plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and inventories. The
above events or conditions indicate the existence of material
uncerfainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group may not be
able fo realise its assefs and discharge its liabiliies in the normal course
of business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The directors of the Company have been undertaking @
number of plans and measures as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
improve its financial position. Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriafe, adjustments may have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, fo
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and fo reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continved)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

Up to the date of this report, the Relevant subsidiaries as defined in
nofe 2|i) to the consolidated financial statements are in progress of debt
restructuring (the “Debt Restructuring”) for purpose of reducing the level
of debts of the Relevant Subsidiaries. As of the date of this report, we
have not been provided with the debt restructuring agreements and
were unable fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to
confirm the fiming and extent of the Debt Restructuring.

Furthermore, up to the date of this report, the Group had nofified and
licised with the holder of convertible bonds, creditors, banks, financial
institutions and holders of note payables for extension/alternative
refinancing of the Overdue Debts and the Cross Default Debts. As of
the date of this report, we have not been provided with the extension

agreements or refinancing agreements in respect of the Overdue Debts
and the Cross Default Debs.

Up to the datfe of this report, the Group had been liaising with banks
and financial institutions for obtaining new financing. As of the date of
this report, we have not been provided with the financing agreements
in respect of the new financing.

In addition, up to the date of this report, the Group has been
endeavouring fo improve the Group's operating performance and cash
flows through cost control measures and working capital management
to maintain sufficient liquidity. We have not been provided with
sufficient audit evidence on effect on overcoming the net current
liabilities and net liabilities positions of the Group from such cost control
measures and working capital management.

Also, up to the date of this report, the Group has been in the process of
resolving the Group's litigation to release the freezing orders on bank
accounts and seizure orders on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assefs and inventories. As of the date of this report, we have not
been provided with the setlement agreements with creditors in respect
of the amount due to the creditors.

In absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence of the above, we
were unable to ascertain whether the use of the going concern
assumption in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
is appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %S ETER &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER MATTERS

Had we not disclaimed our opinion regarding the matters described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above, we would otherwise
have qualified our opinion regarding the scope limitations on our audit
relating fo the matters detailed below.

(a)

Trade and bills receivables

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2022, the Group's trade and bills
receivables amounted to approximately RMB236,494,000, of
which approximately RMB204,329,000 (the “Trade and Bills
Receivables”) were past due and/or have not been settled up to
the date of this report. The management is sfill negotiating with
and considering taking any action to the debtors on the
sefflement. Due fo (1) the past due situation of the Trade and Bills
Receivables, (2) financial difficulties of debtors and (3)
unfavourable negotfiation results with debtors, the management
considered that the chance of recovering the Trade and Bills
Receivables to be remote. The Group recognised provision for
doubtful debts of approximately RMB249,701,000 in respect of
the Trade and Bills Receivables in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Due fo the above uncertainties, the management is not able to
provide further evidences in justifying the sufficiency, adequacy
and extent of the provision for doubtful debts being recognised.
Accordingly, we are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidences to ascertain the recoverability of the balance of
Trade and Bills Receivables of approximately RMB204,329,000
as at 31 December 2022. More importantly, there is no other
safisfactory audit procedures that we could perform fo satisfy
ourselves whether the balance of Trade and Bills Receivables of
approximately RMB204,329,000 were fairly sfated as at 31
December 2022. Consequently, we are not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidences on the provision for doubtful
debts of approximately RMB249,701,000 recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
recoverability of Trade and Bills Receivables of approximately

RMB204,329,000 at 31 December 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER MATTERS (Continued)

(b)

Advance payments to suppliers

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2022, the Group's advance payments to
suppliers amounted to approximately RMB291,869,000, of
which approximately RMB280,814,000 (the “Advance
Payments”), were long outstanding and/or have not been sefiled
up fo the date of this report. The management is still negotiating
with and considering taking any action fo the debtors on the
sefflement. Due fo (1) the long outstanding position of Advance
Payments, (2] financial difficulties of debtors and (3] unfavourable
negoliation results with debfors, the management considered that
the chance of utilising/recovering the Advance Payments to be
remote. The Group recognised provision for impairment loss of
approximately RMB727,756,000 in respect of the Advance
Payments in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December

2022.

Due fo the above uncertainties, the management is not able to
provide further evidences in justifying the sufficiency, adequacy
and extent of the impairment loss being recognised. Accordingly,
we are not able fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences
fo ascertain the recoverability of the balance of the Advance
Payments of approximately RMB280,814,000 as at 31
December 2022. More importantly, there is no other safisfactory
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves
whether the balance of the Advance Payments of approximately
RMB280,814,000 were fairly stafed as at 31 December 2022.
Consequently, we are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidences on the provision for impairment loss of
approximately RMB727,756,000 recognised for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the recoverability of the Advance
Payments of approximately RMB280,814,000 at 31 December
2022.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a
consequential effect on the Group's consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %S ETER &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a frue and fair view in accordance with
Infernational Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relafed to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the direcfors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but fo do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”") and fo issue an auditor’s report. However,
because of the significance of the material uncertainties relating to the
going concern basis described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05498
Hong Kong, 31 January 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEGREMEZEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T ARETF T
REVENUE BER 8 2,391,709 7.719,448
Cost of sales $HE KA (2,679,759) (7,567,848)
GROSS (LOSS)/PROFIT (£8)/E5 (288,050) 151,600
Other income/ (expenses), HabFU A (FAX) -
gain/[loss), net Uz, (E518) 9 136,137 269,866
Selling and disfribution expenses 856 K $H B < (7,910) (18,182)
Administrative expenses TR X (195,244) (131,955)
Provision for doubtful debts, net RERBHEFE 21 (2,222,673) (103,558)
Impairment of advance payments BE R IR RE
fo suppliers 19 (1,948,484) -
Finance costs B 7% A A 10 (234,210) (221,483)
Share of losses of associates FE(L B & A B8 (791) (427
Loss before tax BiATE 18 (4,761,225) (54,139)
Income tax expense FTiSfiF X 13 (1,927) (41,338)
Loss for the year attributable to KRARBEEABEFAEE
owners of the company 11 (4,763,152) 95,477)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income H&H 2@ (FE), WA :
after tax:
liems that may be reclassified to AREEM Bz IR ¢
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating B G INEEHE =58
foreign operations (39,714) 23,720
Other comprehensive (loss)/income BRBIZFAHMEE
for the year, net of tax (BB WA (39,714) 23,720
Total comprehensive loss ANREEAEGEFER
for the year attributable to 2HEHEBRAR
owners of the company (4,802,866) 71,757)
Loss per share BERER 14
Basic (RMB per share) AR (ERARE) (1.10) (0.03)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(BRARE) (1.10) (0.03)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAR

As at 31 December 2022 R 2022 1231 A

Notes
B 5

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 16
Rightofuse assets EREEE 17
Inferests in associates B 2N R R 2 18
Prepayments, other receivables and ~ FB4sH 3K ~ o fh FE URKIE K

other assets HiEE 19
Total non-current assets RIERBEE
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RUWGRIE & I E iE 21
Prepayments, other receivables and AR - W RIE &

other assets Hih&EE 19
Amounts due from associates JE U B 2 X B 5K 08 22
Amounts due from related parties JRE L2 R Bt 75 5K IR 23
Pledged deposits [mEELYES 24
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEeFHEEE 24
Total current assets RmENEE
Total assets BmEE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables g5 RNFIBNENEE 25
Other payables and accruals HiEMNFIBERETER 26
Note payables FERT R & 27
Interest-bearing bank and FTRERIT KA MERK

other borrowings 28
Convertible bonds MR ES 29
Lease liabilities HERE 30
Consideration liabilities REAE 31
Amounts due to a director B EERIE 32
Amounts due to associates JETESE N B FRIB 22
Amount due to a related party J& 1< BBt 75 3R 1A 23

Tax payable e IR

Total current liabilities mRsRaE

Net current (liabilities)/assets FAB(BE)EE
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE

2022

2022 F
RMB’000
ARBT T

448,216
104,495
47,106

19,756

619,573

100,946
236,494

709,450
25,110
179
703,928
2,391

1,778,498

2,398,071

1,613,636
1,734,252
23,511

1,338,370
231,720
1,858

207
213
61,872
91,586

5,097,225
(3,318,727)

(2,699,154)

2021

2021 %
RMB'O00
ARBETTT

12,702
13,202
48,001

— O

19,756

693,601

189,455
2,311,465

2,628,316
25,780

10
873,359
11,953

6,040,338

6,733,999

1,343,685
1,605,871
21,519

1,185,554
585,733
3,946
121,383

55,777
Q0,428

5,013,896
1,026,442

1,720,103
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2022 R 2022 12 531 A

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
Notes RMB’000 RMB'O00

B &t AR®T R ARETT

Non-current liabilities IRBERE

Lease liabilities HEEE 30 372 3,212
Deferred government grants 3R ST AU 4 B 33 1,322 6,558
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBEE 34 1,152 936
Total non-current liabilities LIRS EaE 2,846 10,706
NET (LIABILITIES) /ASSETS F(BE)BE (2,702,000) 1,709,397
EQUITY s

Share capifal fi% 7x 35 363,611 280,461
Reserves & (3,065,611) 1,428,936
TOTAL EQUITY R (2,702,000) 1,709,397

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

January 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yu Jiangiu
BIEM
Director

EFE

BNE 772179 B ZIRE M HIwERMN 2024
FIASIREESFTEHAERKENE I
HINIEEREREE

Kwong Wai Sun, Wilson
BERE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

Sharebased  Converfible
Shore Shore  Exchange Capital Statutory payment  bondsequily  Consideration  Accumulated
captal premium reserve resenve resenve resenve reseve  share reserve losses Totol
WRHAER  TARE:
R REEE  EXBE  EABE  EERE OORBE  BEBR RERGRE  EHER 48
Notes RMB1000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RB000 RMB000 RMB000 fMB000 fMB1000
W ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR  ARMTR
AT Jonuary 2021 RO2EIRIR 211,741 1,938,809 35,106/ 132055 131938 76,004 22,285 138486 [728077) 1,488,135
loss for the yeor EREE - - - - - - - - 95,477 95,477)
Oter comprehensive income for he yeor: — FAEHZENA -
Exchange diferences on fransaing BEBSBNEL R
foreign operafions - - 8720 - - - - - - B0
Toto comprehensive lossfor fhe year FRRAEBLE - - 870 - - - - - [95.477) [71757)
Appropriaton o scioy feserves ERTITHE - - - - 12721 - - - [12.721) -
Shore opfions lopsed)/foed ERiERH/RED - - - - - 61,339 - - 61,339 -
Equiyseffed sharerbased poyments WEREEZ RO BEROAR - - - - - 73 - - - 7
Isuance of ordinary shores EEER 35 68,720 362,512 - - - - - [138,486] - 292744
Transfer o accumuloted losses ERTZHER - - - - - - 22,289) - 22,285 -
A 31 Decenber 2021 and 1 Jamuary 2022 R 2021512831 B R
0251818 280,461 1901321 11,386] 132055 144,659 14938 - - [752,651) 1,709,397
Loss forhe year - - - - - - - - 4763152 (4763,152)
Oter comprehiensive oss for he year:
Exchange difterences on fionsloing
foreign operafions - - [39.714) - - - - - - 139714
Toto comprehensive lossfor fhe year FRRAERLE - - 139714 - - - - - (4763150 (4,802,860]
Approprition o sciioy resenes BRTATHA - - - - 3 - - - 3 -
Share opfons lapsed)/foeied BREXL/BAD - - - - - 33 - - 8 -
Equitysetled sharerbosed payments WEREEZ RN BEROAR - - - - - 4939 - - - 4939
Issuance of ordinary shares EEER 35 83,150 303,49 - - - - - - - 386,646
Issuance cost AR - 1) - - - - - - - (114
At 31 December 2022 RNNEIAIIA 363611 2,204,701 (51,1001 132,099 144,662 19,844% - - BS1S773F (2,702,000
Note: B 5
(i) * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserves  |i) *RERBRECEFAUBRARNRANGES BF

of RMB3,065,611,000 (2021: consolidated positive reserve of RMB1,428,936,000)

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

HAR®3,065611,0007T (2021 4 :

AR¥1,428,936,0007T) °

=
)

i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Changes in fair value of contingent

RETHHEBRERE

BRA A48 (4,761,225) [54,139)

AT IRE %
IARERENRFEE

consideration liabilities 1,452
Depreciation of property, Mm% - BEIREITE
plant and equipment 44,982 46,244
Depreciation of rightofuse assets EREEENE 6,129 6,809
Equity-seftled share-based payments AR i 2 PARR ) R B Tt
EOKNEN 4,939 273
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEEm I AR FERS
instrument = 232
Finance costs B 7K AR 234,210 221,483
Gain on early termination of lease REZILHEN S (110) -
Gain on setilement of note payables BERNER WS — (34,985)
Impairment of property, M - BB KR EBEBRIE
plant and equipment 2,212 3,755
Impairment of advance payments BN EE IR E
to suppliers 1,948,484 -
Interest income F B U A (27,449) (12,634)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEMRBIEHR
plant and equipment )R 6,499 -
Provision for doubtful debts, net REBEFE 2,222,673 103,558
Provision for inventories FEBRE 69,829 -
Waiver of other payables # o B b FE T RIE (822) -
Written-off of property, plant and equipment  #$5¥1 % ~ Bk = K& & 1,001 2,118
Written-off of other receivables i 88 E A U FR0E 1,550 -
Share of losses of associates JE(E B2 N A B 18 791 427
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital & & & & Z B AT & 5
changes (&), &% H (246,307 284,593
Change in trade and bills payables B RN FIERENRIBEEE 259,608 249,736
Change in inventories FEEE 18,680 127,321
Change in frade and bills receivables E 5 e U SRR K e Uk 22 % 2 &) (147,702) (285,322)
Change in other payables and accruals H At A FRIE K JEAHE R & (65,656) 23,523
Change in prepayments, other receivables AR - H UK K
and other assets HEith&EEEE (29,296) (280,062)
Cash (used in]/generated from operations ZE (TR /iR e (210,673) 119,789
Income tax paid B FEH (1,617) (3,721)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

e me (FA),/ s
FRE

Cash flows from investing activities

Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged deposits

Inferest received

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Repayment from associates

Advance to related parties and associates

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

REFHFBHRERE

RE (7R EEAFR

B KA E

HEWE - BE R&REHEE
P15 RIA

B N AMEE SR

BT BT SR AR

BEYE BEEXRE

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

REFBREB (A
FRE

Cash flows from financing activities

New bank and other borrowings

Advance from related parties and associates
Advance from a director

Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Inferest paid

Guarantee fees and other charges

Principal portion of lease liabilities
Repayment o related parties and associates
Share issuance cost

MEEZHFERERE
FraR1T M E MR

L Q=) DAPNE NI AR
KB —REFHER
BRIRTT R EMAER
BEMFE
EREAMEMFEX
HERBENASHD

1832 BA R 77 e Bt =2 X R RIR
P tn BATR AR

Net cash generated from financing activities

BMEEZHREFRE

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

ReRBSSEEEHERD

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRe ;R EFEER
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R B &) F &

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBELEEEH

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERRESEERB DN

Bank and cash balances

R1T MR TR

2022

2022 F
RMB’000
AR®TR

(212,290)

169,431
25,577

2,840
703
(169)
(91)

198,291

46,023
5,976
200
(25,824)
(11,208)
(6,785)
(3,356)
(391)
(116)

4,519

(9,480)

11,953
(82)

2,391

2,391

2021

2021 %
RMB'O00
ARETT

116,068

(347,457)
18,705

[49,841)
(1,867)

(380,460)

539,253
51,607

(316,428)
[36,141)
(623)
(3,450)
(6,169)

228,049

[36,343)

47,321
Q75

11,953

11,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of copper and related products. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited [“the Stock Exchange”) since 21
February 2014. In the opinion of the directors, the holding
company and ultimate holding company of the Company is

Epoch Keen Limited (“Epoch Keen”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), while the Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$").

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
RMB4,763,152,000 and RMB95,477,000 respectively for two
consecutive years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. As af
31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB3,318,727,000 and net liabilities of
approximately RMB2,702,000,000. By the end of the reporting
period, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB2,391,000, while debts repayable within
one year or on demand (including inferestbearing bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds and note payables) were
approximately RMB1,593,601,000. In addition, as at 31
December 2022, the Group had defaulted the repayment of
convertible bonds, entrusted loans, interestbearing bank and
other borrowings and note payables of approximately
RMB231,720,000, RMB306,116,000, RMB981,661,000
and RMB23,511,000 respectively. These defaults may trigger
cross default clauses as stafed in the confracts of cerfain other
borrowings of approximately RMB46,793,000 as at 31
December 2022. In addition, as described in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group was also involved in various litigations resulting in the
freezing of several bank accounts and the seizure of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and inventories. All these
condifions indicated the existence of material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt as to the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continved)

In light of the above, the Directors of the Company have
implemented, or in the process of implementing various financial
plans and measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to
improve its financial position. These measures included but not
limited to the followings:

(i)

The Group is in the process of restructuring the debt.
Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., ltd. 485 2 i 2 H R
2 A]) ("Tongxin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials
Co., Ud. (MBI5E2BRESBMEAR 2R ("in Xunhuan”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, were
both undergoing a resfructuring with the existing debt
holders in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Enterprise Bankruptcy Law in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). The restructuring involved the filing of a
voluntary application for bankruptey reorganisation with the
People’s Court of Youxian District (the “Youxian Court”) in
the Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. Subsequent
fo the reporting period, on 3 January 2023, the Company
received from the Youxian Court concerning the Youxian
Court's civil rulings, court decisions and notice to the
Relevant Subsidiaries (collectively known as “Youxian Court
Documents”] regarding the reorganisation. Pursuant fo
which, the Youxian Court Documents indicated that the
Youxian Court accepted the application from the Tongxin
and Jin Xunhuan for bankruptcy reorganisation in
accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptey Law in the PRC.
The first creditors’ meeting was held on 28 March 2023.

In addition to the bankruptcy reorganisations of Tongxin
and Jin Xunhuan, Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications
Cable Co. lid. (MERMFHUBEREFR QA
(“Taiyue”], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, also intends to restructure its existing
indebtedness through the applicable provisions of the
Enterprise Bankruptcy law of the PRC. A voluntary
application for the aforementioned bankruptcy
reorganization of Taiyue (the “Taiyue Bankruptey
Reorganisation Application”] has been filed with the
Youxian Court on 18 May 2023. On 24 May
2023, Taiyue received the Youxian Court's civil ruling dated
23 May 2023. According fo the civil ruling dafed 23 May
2023, the Youxian Court has accepted the Taiyue
Bankruptcy Reorganisation Application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

2. GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continved)

(i)

(Continved)

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., lid. (/5 m #REE 48 L
1 % B PR A &) ("Yinlian Xiangbei’), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, received a civil ruling
(the “Civil Ruling”) from the People’s Court of Miluo City,
Hunan Province (the “Court of Miluo City”) in relafion to a
petition for winding-up against Yinlian Xiangbei filed by
Hunan Miziyuan Asset Holdings Co., lid. (#imH 2 IR E
FEEBEABR QA ("Miziyuan”), a creditor of Yinlian
Xiangbei, on the ground that Yinlian Xiangbei was unable
fo repay the debts falling due. The debts involved were in
the amount of approximately RMB11.9 million. Yinlian
Xiangbei opposed the petition and applied fo the Court of
Miluo City for bankruptey reorganisation instead. According
to the Civil Ruling, after taking into account the situation of
Yinlian Xiangbei and the bankruptcy reorganisation of the
Company’s other three subsidiaries in Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province, the Court of Miluo City rejected
Miziyuan's petition for winding-up and accepted Yinlian
Xiangbei's bankruptey reorganisation application on 21 July
2023.

Hubei Rongsheng Copper Co., lid* [1LEl 2 & B & m
BBR2AA]) ("Hubei Rongsheng”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received a decision dated 12
September 2023 and notice to Hubei Rongsheng dated
12 September 2023 from the People’'s Court of Yunmeng
County, Hubei Province in relafion to Hubei Rongsheng's
application for pre-restructuring in accordance with the
pre-resfructuring procedure under the applicable provisions
of the Enterprise Bankruptcy Llaw of the People’s Republic of
China fo prepare for ifs infended bankruptcy reorganisation
application an 12 September 2023.

Tongxin, Jin Xunhuan, Taiyue, Yinlion Xiangbei and Hubei
Rongsheng are collectively known as the “Relevant

Subsidiaries”;

The Company has been negotiating with Huarong (as
defined in nofe 29| for further extension of the Huarong CBs
(as defined in note 29), which were matured and fall due
on 31 December 2022 and with creditors, banks, financial
institutions and note holders for altfernative refinancing and/
or extension of the due dates;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continved)

(i) The Group has been liaising with banks and financial
institutions from which cross default clauses as stipulated in
the relevant loan agreements were breached by the Group;

(iv) The Group has been actively seeking other financing
arrangements with a view fo obfain new funding;

(v]  The Group has been endeavouring to improve the Group's
operating performance and cash flows through cost control
measures and working capital management to maintain

sufficient liquidity; and

(vi)  The Group has been in the process of resolving the Group's
litigation to release the freezing orders on bank accounts
and seizure orders on property, plant and equipment, right-
ofuse assefs and inventories.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that future cash
flow generated from operation fogether with the financial plans
and measures will be sufficient to repay all these liabilities. The
directors of the Company are therefore of the opinion that it is
appropriate fo prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concem basis.

Although the Directors of the Company have formulated a number
of plans and faken a number of measures, there are sill significant
uncertainties as to whether the Group will be able to implement
its plans and measures. The Group's ability to confinue as a
going concem is dependent on the following matters:

(i)  Successful completion of the restructuring by Relevant

Subsidiaries;

(i)  Successful negotiation with an offshore lender on debt
extension;

(i) The Group's ability to seek cooperation with banks and
financial institutions for which cross default clauses were

breached:

(iv) The Group's ability to scale down its operation while
maintaining positive ongoing business relationship with the
Group's suppliers;

(v]  The Group's ability to successfully obtain new source of
funding; and

(vl The Group's ability to successfully resolve the pending
litigations of the Group and releasing freeze of bank
accounts and seizure of property, plant and equipment,
rightof-use assets and inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continved)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concem,
adjustments would have to be made fo the consolidated financial
statements to adjust the value of the Group's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and fo reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
that are relevant to ifs operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2022. IFRSs comprise Infernational
Financial Reporting Standards; International Accounting Standards
("IAS") and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised IFRSs did not result in significant changes fo the Group's
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised IFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised IFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions
and estimates. It also requires the directors of the Company fo
exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and esfimates are significant fo these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group confrols an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability fo affect those refurns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. acfivities that significantly affect the entfity’s refurns.

When assessing control, the Group considers ifs pofential voting
rights as well as potfential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
fransferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating fo that subsidiary and any relafed accumulated
foreign currency franslation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Consolidation (Continved)

Intragroup fransactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are aftributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership inferest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
fransactions [i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling inferests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used fo account for the acquisition of o
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related cosfs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured af their acquisition-date
fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company'’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is aftributed to the
Company.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity inferest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses of
goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the
accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated fo cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entfities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
fo significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability
fo exercise or convert that right is nof considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assefs and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tesfted for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Associates [Continved)

The Group's share of an associate’s postacquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and ifs share of
the postacquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative postacquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. VWhen
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only affer its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in o
loss of significant influence represents the difference between |i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment refained in that associate and (i} the Group's
share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining
goodwill relafing fo that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency franslation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
refained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
fransferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary fo ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
group entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB. The Company's functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rafes af the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
af the dates when the fair values are defermined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entfities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are franslated af the closing rate af
the date of that statement of financial position;

[i) Income and expenses are franslated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is nof a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rafes prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the fransaction dates); and

(i) Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

4, ERETHE®)

HNERE (E)

(b)

(c)

EERBMBERRNRE REH

9\\%%%5"@]%6&%%&?@%%
FHNATEXRRERSESR
%o%ﬁl\’%%%hﬁ’] SKEER
féffﬁz:.%&%,ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁa_ﬂEﬁﬁ

Jit%@”’ﬁﬁ(”?iﬁ’ﬁ'ﬁ%&%
TEFT@ SR

BT EFEZINEIFERIR E
REEAFEERZERBE

WIFE®IER 2 BEBENEMEE
W R BB ZEMER
BB A Eo A 2 T U s T ER o M1 3F
E¥BEAZRAENBRER 8

2R 2 (L [ 35 340 M R 26 T
7 o
SARARETAR

DEEERANRNZREHE T
BECIR RN SET- 4 3:0E P )
BARRB LA T IDEBRE /AR
AIMEWmE

i} REBBEARRKREIINEE
KB EGRZ BN E B
HIMGEE R RBE

(if) H&A&iﬁﬂ?ﬁiﬂlﬁ%%ﬁ
CBRIFZFHELIERIR
FX%EHEE’JET%J%;
MAEEALE £t
T LISU\&EZHjTHTz?Q%EI
HERRE &

i) — YA mEEMER =58
BENE B E FFHEANER -



Annual Report 2022 « ZZE = ZFF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

() Translation on consolidation (Continuved)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
franslation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and franslated at the closing
rafe.

Property, plant and equipment

land and buildings comprise mainly schools and offices. Property,
plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separafe assef, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the ifem can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rafes sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straightline basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:
Buildings The shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being
no more than 20 years after
the date of completion
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and equipment

5to 10 years
3to 10 years
Motor vehicles 310 10 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are

reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Property, plant and equipment (Confinued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated af
cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

leases are recognised as rightofuse assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assefs are available for use by
the Group. Rightof-use assefs are sfated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of rightof-use
assefs is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straightline basis.
The principal annual rate is as follows:

4.
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Rightof-use assets are measured af cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct cosfs and the restoration costs. lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the inferest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group's incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as o produce a constant periodic rafe
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with shorterm leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straightline basis over the lease terms. Shortterm leases are
leases with an inifial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000 (approximately
equivalent fo RMB35,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Inventories

Inventories are stated atf the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is defermined using the weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
cosfs of completion and the estimated cosfs necessary to make
the sale.

Construction contracts in progress

Construction contracts in progress are sfated at the lower of cost
and nef realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct cosfs attributable to
such confracts. Net realisable value is defermined by reference fo
the contract prices.

Recognition and derecogpnition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
fo the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the confractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assefs but has not retained
confrol on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Financial assets

Financial assefs are recognised and derecognised on a frade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under o
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established by the market concemed, and are initially
recognised at fair value, plus directly atiributable fransaction costs
except in the case of investments at fair value through profit or
loss. Transaction costs directly affributable to the acquisition of
investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assefs of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

—  Financial assefs at amortised cost

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade, loan and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they safisfy
both of the following conditions:

—  the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assefs in order to collect
contractual cash flows: and

— the contractual terms of the assefs give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal fo the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for frade receivables or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal fo the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporfing period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial insfitutions, and shortterm
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible info known
amounfs of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
fo the substance of the confractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a
residual inferest in the assefs of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the loans into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price
are regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and
an equity component. At the dafe of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
inferest rafe for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any
derivative features embedded in the compound instruments is
included in the liability component. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and the fair values
assigned to the liability component, representing the embedded
option for the holder to convert the loans info equity of the Group,
is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
derivative components are measured at fair value with gains and
losses recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Group appears to
be less than the fair value of the convertible loans issued, the
Group measures the unidentifiable services received (to be
received) as the difference between the fair value of the
convertible loans issued and that of the identifiable consideration
received, and the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible loans based on their relative
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating fo the
equity component is charged directly fo equity.
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HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inifially af fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer sefflement of the liability for at
least twelve months affer the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, nef of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
confract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service fo a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply fo that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over fime if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

—  the Group's performonce creafes or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced:
or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continved)

—  the Group's performance does not creafe an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to

date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference fo the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised af a point in fime when the customer obtains confrol

of the product or service.

Other income

Inferest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entiflements to sick leave and matemity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group confributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic
salaries. The refirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents confributions payable by the Group

to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
refirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of
the payroll of its employees tfo the refirement scheme. The
confributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers fo reduce the existing level of contribufions.
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HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Employee benefits (Continued)

() Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-setiled share-based payments fo certain
directors and employees. Equity-seffled share-based payments are
measured af the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
seffled share-based payments is expensed on a straightline basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting condifions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable fo the acquisition, construction
or production of qualitying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time fo get ready for their
infended use or sale, are capifalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assefs are subsfantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the tfemporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the exfent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
aftaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to mafch them with the
cosfs they are infended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets. The grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current fax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes ifems of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assefs and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding fax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised fo the exfent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assefs
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Taxation (Continved)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is seftled or the assef is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
fax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates fo items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, fo recover or
sefile the carrying amount of its assefs and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current fax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same faxation authority and the Group infends fo seftle ifs
current fax assefs and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(Al

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i)
(i)

has confrol or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group [which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity {or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third enfity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person idenfified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services o
the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group's various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and other intangible assefs except
goodwill, deferred tax assefs, inventories and receivables fo
defermine whether there is any indicafion that those assefs have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible fo
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of cash-generating units
["CGU") to which the assef belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU s estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or
CGU is reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried af a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Impairment of assets (Continved)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been defermined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
freated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected fo settle the obligafion.

Where it is not probable that an oufflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non —
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the nofes
when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors

have made the following judgements that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which is
explained in nofe 2 to consolidated financial statements.

Income tax

Defermining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future fax freatment of certain transactions. Management
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are sef up accordingly. The fax freatment of these
transactions is reconsidered periodically by taking into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for deductible temporary differences. As
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available,
management’s judgement is required fo assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
fax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends

In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected
to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008, the directors have made an assessment
based on factors including future profitability, the dividend
policy and the level of capital and working capital required
for the Group's operations in the foreseeable future. No
deferred tax liabilities in respect of undistributed profits have
been recognised as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is not
probable that these profits will be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected or there are unfavourable events and change in
facts and circumstance which result in revision of future
estimate cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the frade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different fo those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolefe or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease
licbilities based on the terms of the rental agreements and
the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are
required in determining the Group's incremental borrowing
rafe.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/writeback in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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6.

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, inferest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure fo foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group's cerfain bank deposits and borrowings bear
interests af fixed interest rates and therefore are subject o
fair value interest rate risks.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the Group's
interest-bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings, no
sensifivity analysis on interest rafe risk is presented.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the frade and other receivables,
deposits and bank balances included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group's
maximum exposure fo credit risk in relation to the Group's
financial assets.

The Group has no significom concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made fo
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counferparties are banks with high creditratings assigned
by infemational creditrating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continved)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assefs on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period by comparing the
risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following information is
used:

— internal credit rafing;

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

—  significant changes in the value of the collateral or in
the quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

—  significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrower.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual
payment. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make confractual payments within 180
days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally
categorises a receivable for write off when a debtor fails to
make confractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continves to engage in
enforcement activity fo aftempt to recover the receivable
due.

6. ERNREARABERE &)

(c)

EERRE)
AEEEBEMEEN RS A B
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BEELRAEEBEXFZAELE
Fte LEERTIER

— AMEEFR:

—  EEERERAETE
NUREARE 2 E5 - B
T RAETIRR Y EHE A TE
EATHED

— ERARERECERRE

— HAHmEEXERAEER
2N

~ ERAESRRRIAZE
REE - BIEERAZH K
R B -

i (B N B EI A & K IR R 1B
308 - AR E 15 & A & K18 18
e BHFIHARERE DAL
HIHR 180 AN HIAR » &
MEENHRELD -

ERERHEINESREE (W
B 75 A K BE B 7K 52 (8] 22 P48 SR AT
2N mMEERTME - fH
BT A B HIEE 8 360 B R BE

NEHOREA AIARE RS
5 FE WK TR o fid FE 1 3K TR 1% I
#HRAAEBEERATTRNGAE
RBEMABERT - A REGR
17 B = B U [2] 21 B W 5R0E -



China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

6. TRIREAERERE &)

EERE (&)

R ER B0 A R (8 3F & 5 FE W IR
B RMRZEFERZEERR
s BhEEBEREBZT
X NAEBREEEERE
AEBEEBRERNZESLER

(c) Credit risk (Continved) (c)

The Group uses two categories for nonrade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is
defermined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical
loss rafes for each category and adjusts for forward looking

dafa. o WA BIREL A -
Category Definition Loss provision
Ehel) BE BEEE
Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity fo pay 12 month expected losses
E® B DR K A BE F AR 128 A a8 & 1R

Lifetime expected losses

2 HITRHE R

Significant increase in credit risk
& Rk KiEign

Non-performing

TR

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash fo meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer ferm.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

On demand
or

less than

1 year
RERD
—FHT
RMB’000

d #RBHEZERR

AE B BRSERES B AT R
BHORBHESFTE  UEERE
MR RARSHEERMEH R

AEENTRABRERTER
ERABRERDTAT

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
HRIFTH
BER
RMB’000

1-2 years

2-5 years

MERF
RMB’000

—EWF
RMB’000

M2022%12831H ARBTRE AR¥WTR AR®BTR AR¥TR
Trade and bills payables HEHRNFIER
ERNRE 1,613,636 1,613,636
Other payables and accruals — ELfth & - 3018 2
fEstE R 565,872 565,872
Note payables BN RiR 23,511 23,511
Inferest-bearing bank and AT RRIT REAMER
other borrowings 1,338,370 1,338,370
Convertible bonds B kES 231,720 231,720
lease liabilities HEAaR 2,188 2,567
Amounts due to a director ENEETR 207 207

Amounts due fo associates

e & R A R

Amount due to a related party  FE Bl B 5 5K 18

213
61,872

3,837,589

213
61,872

3,837,968
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6. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. TRREXEBERE#)

(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) d KBESRERE)
On demand

or Total
less than undiscounted
1 year 1-2years  2-5vyears  cash flows
RENY BRI
—FUT —EMF MERF Ben
As af 31 December 2021 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021%12AH31H ARETT ARBTT ARBETRT ARETR

Trade and bills payables EHRENFIER
ANE 1,343,685 - - 1,343,685

Other payables and accruals — Efth & - 5B o
EstER 290,069 - - 290,069
Note payables e RIE 21,519 - - 21,519

Interest-bearing bank and FERITREMMER

other borrowings 1,185,554 - - 1,185,554
Convertible bonds AR ES 585,733 - - 585,733
lease liabilities HE&AE 4,996 3,537 - 8,533
Amount due to a related party  FE B 75 5RIE 55,777 - - 55,777
Consideration liabilities REAE 121,383 - - 121,383
3,008,716 3,537 - 3,612,253
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6.

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

6. SRNREAREBERE &)

(e)

RI12A3TEMER T AESR

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost
(including cash and

cash equivalents)

RHER AT ENEREE
(BREReMREFEER)

TREE
REAR

Financial liabilities
Consideration liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

HEERATENESREE

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBT T N R
987,222 3,239,131

= 121,383
3,835,401 3,482,337

()  Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(g) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capifal to ensure that it will be able
fo continue as a going concern while maximising the retum
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes borrowings and amounts due to related parties,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, which

includes share capital and reserves.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as raising of borrowings, if

necessary.

(A

(g)

AVE

REMBARRAINAEE S/
BEMTHABHNREERQYF
BEE -

EXmRER

AREBEEEEERARREE AR
BRE RREBECERER
mEFEENEAREEESR
AEH - AEENREBBEKE L

AEBNERNGEREGR (B
B RS ) Ko e BA B U7 R OR
ARARABHEE NEEER (B
hEERALER) o

AEBEEEBEHREREANS
B AKHEZEESBENERR
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised info business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

() Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for the manufocturing and trading of
recycled copper products, and trading of electrolytic copper
and nickel products;

[i)  Power fransmission and distribution cables segment:
manufacturing and sales of power transmission and
distribution cables; and

(i) Communication cables segment: manufacturing and sales
of communication cables.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment results do not include certain inferest income,
non-lease-related finance costs, corporate and other unallocated
expenses as well as share of losses of associate.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that cerfain interest income, corporate and
other unallocated expenses, certain finance costs as well as share
of loss of associates are excluded from such measurement.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management and
accordingly, no information about segment assefs or liabilities is
presented.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

7.

EEBERDTHER

EEMS  NEERBEHEMMR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Coniinved) 7. & XEER D HBER (4

(a) Segment results () DEBHEE
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DEEHEEREEN2ERER
reference fo the selling prices used for sales made to third BIImERFE=STHEMANE
parties at the then prevailing market prices. BETRS -

2022
2022

Power
Recycled  transmission
copper and distribution Communication
products cables cables Total
BEWEM rRES BREEE A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®Tn AR¥T:R

Segment revenue kil g:
Sales to external customers MNP HETIE 2,385,928 5,081 2,391,709
Intersegment sales 7 EbREHE 4,278 = 4,278
2,390,206 2,395,987

Reconciliation: Hk
Elimination of intersegment scles  $35 7 B H & (4,278)
Revenue & 2,391,709
Segment results PEE (4,459,753) (65,457) (25,494)  (4,550,704)
Reconciliation: ik
Inferest income F B YA 27,448 ] 27,449
Corporate and other unallocated ~ BERE MR A EH X

expenses (30,630)
Finance cosfs BTG AR AR (201,773 (4,026) (206,549)
Share of losses of associates [EfhEE e N A)EE 42)]
Loss before tax WAl EE (4,761,225)

Other segment information Htt 2 HEH

Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (38,812) (9,344) (2,955) (51,111)
VAT refunds, govemment gronts ~ SE{EFRTE - B4 B

and subsidies R85 105,791 44 105,835
Impairment on advance payments  E4/<F £ FE 7 3R B B

o suppliers (1,948,484 - - (1,948,484
Provision for doubtful debis, net AERETE (2,170,908) (26,861) (24904) (2,222,673

= (69,829)

Provision for inventories FERE (69,829)
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Coniinved) 7. & XEER D HBER (4

(@) Segment results (Continved) la) DEBXELE(E)
2021
20214
Power
Recycled  fransmission
copper and distribution  Communication
products cables cables Tolal
BEREM KR EE BEEE @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AR%®Tr ARETH
Segment revenue g\ L6
Sales to external customers MR PHETIHE 7,658,742 28,505 32,201 7,719,448
Infersegment sales D EEEE 314913 9,867 12,265 337,045
7,973,655 38,372 44 466 8,056,493
Reconciliation: B :
Elimination of intersegment sales %1357 P 8 & (337,045
Revenue g 7.719,448
Segment results THEE 152,996 [16,760) (597) 135,639
Reconciliation: Hi
Interest income FBUA 12,626 7 | 12,634
Changes in fair value of confingent AR EE EH)
consideration liabilities NEEE (1,452)
Changes in fair value of derivative  $T4E & B T A
financial instrument NEEE (232
Corporate and other unallocated ¥ RHE MR A B X
expenses (37,343]
Finance costs BT AR (156,883 (3,783) (2,292) (162,958)
Share of losses of associates [yl =N} (427)
Loss before tax BHAIEE (54,139)
Other segment information Hit 2 HEH
Depreciation and amorisation MEREH (38,020 (9.747) (2,927 (50,694)
VAT refunds, government grants ~— SBEMRH - BITHED
and subsidies R w8k 231,523 32 564 232,119
Provision for doubiful debis, net REEEFE (105,185) 4,565 (2,938 (103,558)
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conrinved)

(b) Geographic information

The Group carries out its business operations in the PRC,
thus no separate geographical segment analysis based on
the location of assefs and the revenue and profit or loss are
presented.

() Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which
confributed 10% or more fo the Group's revenue, is set out
below:

b) HEZE

7. EXBRIBER (®)

AEBRPEZLEER Bkl
B2V REERWENIBREMA
&5 VB R D BT

) FEEXEEFHESH

o B2 {5 7 S 2% 1 0% U 8
EEXBEFHRAMT :

2022

2022 F
RMB’000
AR®TR

Recycled copper products segment B 4 #fil 2 dn 3 &R
Customer A* B A
Cusfomer B* =PFB*
Customer C* BPEC*
Customer D* =FED*

707,097
372,918
245,284

1,325,299

Customer A had less than 10% of the Group ‘s revenue for the year

ended 31 December 2022.

Cusfomer B, C and D had less than 10% of the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

8. REVENUE

2021

2021 %
RMB'000
ARETT

1,346,750

1,346,750

* HZE2022F 12831 HIEFE - &BEF
A AREERE TR 10% °

* BE2021F12A31BILFE - &P
B CRDEAEHRWZETRE 10% -

2022

2022 F
RMB’000
AR® T

EF AN

Revenue from contracts with customers

2,391,709

Revenue from contracts with customers are mainly derived from
manufacturing and sales of copper and related products in the
PRC, of which the revenue was recognised at a point in time
when goods were transferred.

2021
20214
RMB'0O00
ARETTT

7,719,448

EPFANKRaRTEETHEEERKEE
MMHEEMES  HbhlahiinE

i #5832 By B B ] R i 20
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8. REVENUE (Continved) 8. EXXw»
The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows: BEBERFRIEXBELBENT

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR T T NS

Revenue from frading of electrolytic BRRIEE 5 W ()
copper [Note) - 554,775
Sales of recycled copper products tHE B A E m 2,383,263 7,089,775
Sales of power fransmission and HEXREE
distribution cables 5,081 28,505
Sales of communication cables HEBEEE 700 32,201
Sales of scrap materials SHE BEE M R 1,675 8,758
Others Hiy 990 5,434
2,391,709 7,719,448
Note: The Group has enfered into trading activities of electrolytic copper since 2015 Mzt AEBEB2015FAKFAREFFNE H)E
whereas the Group is considered as the principal of the fransactions as it controls B aRAKREEARFHEERIIZHE
the electrolytic copper before the products sold to the customers. The gross RS MARERNARER SN IBALE
inflows of the trading activities are therefore recognised as revenue. A BEEBHNAR AR KBRS ERKE -
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: BEFPAHNWEN D

2022
2022 %

Power
Recycled  transmission
copper and distribution Communication
products cables cables Total
BEWER 2REE BREER At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®%Tn AR¥T:R

Sales of recycled copper products & BAHE M 2,383,263 2,383,263
Sales of power transmission and ~ HEREEE

distribution cables - 5,081
Sales of communication cables HEREEE - 700
Sales of scrap materials HERBEEMR 1,675 1,675
Others Hity 990 990
Total revenue from contracts BERANU AR

with customers 2,385,928 2,391,709

Timing of revenue recognition W 25 R B
Goods fransferred at a point in fime A X (EF EEEE @ 2,385,928 2,391,709
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8. REVENUE (Continved) 8. BEHw)
2021
2021 6
Power
Recycled  fransmission
copper  and distribufion - Communication
products cables cables Total
BARER 2REE BEEER st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETET ARETR

Revenue from frading of BRINE 5 Wam
electrolytic copper 554,775 - - 554,775
Sales of recycled copper products & BAEHE R 7,089,775 - - 7089775
Sales of power fransmission and HEXREER
distribution cables - 28,505 - 28,505
Sales of communication cables HEREEE - - 32,201 32,201
Sales of scrap materials HEBEEMR 8,758 - - 8,758
Others Hi 5,434 - - 5,434
Total revenue from confracts RPatRER
with customers 7,658,742 28,505 32,201 7,719,448
Timing of revenue recognition W 35 1 5 B
Goods fransferred at a point in ime R E AR FEEZEE M 7,658,742 28,505 32,201 7.719,448
Sale of goods HESR
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the BAEARSHERBSER - M
goods and payment is generally due within O to 3 months from BEASMEOZRIM@EARNTE -
delivery, except for new customers, where payment in advance is FEEMs > @EERIEANDT -

normally required.
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9. OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), GAIN/(LOSS), NET

e MBmRMEE

9. HMFWA(BAX) - Wz
(E18)

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt INL B ARETT
VAT refunds HEBRE
— Comprehensive utilisation of —ZEFBRER (i) 27,605 113,576
resources
— Others — Hfb 181 568
Gain on settlement of note payables # 8 &~ R #E 2 Wz (ii) - 34,985
Other taxes refunds H bR TEIR 5K 1,574 -
Government grants BT 47 BN (iii) 63,884 114,375
Government subsidies IR 478 B (iv) 12,591 3,600
Interest income B A 27,449 12,634
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ S4NEZEHE 10,660 (230)
Waiver of other payables Eh oo H h FE A 5R0R 822 -
Written-off of property, WEEE - BB MRiE (1,001) (2,118]
plant and equipment
Written-off of other receivables 0 8 EL 4th R UK R IE (1,550) -
Gain on early termination of leases 12 R4 IEFA & Wz 110 -
loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEL&RE (6,499) -
plant and equipment ColSE
Impairment of property, W - BEKEERE (2,212) (3,755)
plant and equipment
Changes in fair value of contingent  SKAREBEEN A FEEE (1,452)
consideration liabilities
Changes in fair value of derivative  $T4£ & B T AN A FEZH (232)
financial instrument
Others HAh 2,523 (2,085)
136,137 269,866
Notes: B3

(i

The Group is entifled to government grants for refunds of 30% for the year ended

31 December 2022 (2021: 30%) of the net VAT paid/payable.

The Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation jointly issued a

nofice concerning the “Catalogue on Products and Labour Services relating to

Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Eligible for Concessions of Value-added
Tox" [Cai Shui 2015 [No. 78)) (the “New VAT Policy”) on 12 June 2015, which
replaced, amongst others, Cai Shui 2011 No. 115 (the “Former VAT Policy”)).
Under the Former VAT Policy, cerfain subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to
government grants for refunds of 50% of the net VAT paid/payable. The New
VAT Policy took effect on 1 July 2015. According to the New VAT Policy, the
applicable VAT refunds for such subsidiaries are reduced from 50% to 30%.

(i

HE2022F12A31HIEFE - KEEBR
JEBIEE R 30% (2021 4 : 30%) B FEf
BEVFENRBRERBRATEE -

BBRBEREAREFLRNR2015F6A12H
BABEHER(ERGAMNBERMS G
EREER ) BN (B 2015 (78%))
(IFEERKER]  EBR (AR e i)
2011 (1155%) (TANEERER]) < RIEFTIE
EREE AEEETHERRESFSHESR
50% B A TR B EBUE R AR BERBUT
B MIBERKER2015F7A1RE
W RBHBERBE ZEMERRNE
FRIEE R L BIHE 50% 8 2= 30% °

121
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9. OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), GAIN/(LOSS), NET 9.
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

HipBlA (X)) - Wi~

(EB8]) ®)

BeE - ()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 19 October 2021, the Group issued 172,043,011 shares with fair value
of approximately RMB31,293,000 to a note holder fo sefile note payables of
approximately RMB66,143,000 resulted in a gain of approximately
RMB34,985,000 and exchange differences had been recognised and included
in other comprehensive income of approximately RMB 135,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. No such other gain or loss had been recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The amounts represent local government grants received by operating subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC for the purpose of providing immediate financial support
to those subsidiaries for general operating purposes with no future related costs.

No specific conditions are required to meet in connection with these grants.

In 2022, the Group was granted unconditional government subsidies of
RMB12,591,000 (2021: RMB3,600,000) from Youxian District Finance
Bureau, Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. The government subsidies were
received through Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources Recycling Development Co.,
lid. ("Baohe Fushan’), an associate of the Group. Baohe Fushan is principally
engaged in the operation and the development of an industrial park in Mianyang
City, Sichuan Province, where most of the Group's subsidiaries are located.
Baohe Fushan received the government subsidies and distributed to the Group.
Baohe Fushan has the discretionary right to allocate and distribute the government
subsidies, with reference to the amounts of tax payments made by the enfifies

located in the industrial park.

10. FINANCE COSTS

(il

(iii)

(iv)

R2021F10A 198 - AEERRBEFE A
BEAORATFEHARKE3,293,000TH
172,043 01 T IR LNEEDHDARE
66,143,000 K R 4% - B = 2021 F 12
RA3VBIFEEENHARY34,9850007T
gl R B R B A 2 E RS R B IR E
HEFEHARE1350007T « B E 20224
12731 BIEFEREEREmKmEE -

ZECEEARERTEZ EENBARMN
WEREI 0 75 BUTHB) - (ER B Z S HE QR
B EDES B BUR BY - RN —REE - T
GESHREAKA - BARENZEHE
ARG

20224 - REBEES0)IE LR TRl
BYBRBLENEGERARHEARE
12,591,0007T (2021 4 = AR ¥ 3,600,000
TU) - RERFHMEIE BN BN LR
AmERMELBLEERRERRAR (R
FEWLD WKE - RINE L EERE)IE R
B —ETXEMEERFME  ARENK
MAMBRAREZRLE - RAEILEFK
LA ETFAEE - RANFILAESR
TEEANSEROTREED LD EBF
AL -

10. BA M A

Inferest expenses in relation fo: MEFRX AR

— Bank and other borrowings — IRITREMER

— Default fee —ERNER

— lease liabilities — HEAE

— Convertible bonds — AR E S

— Note payables — ERNZEE

— Bills payables — ENEE
Guarantee fees and other charges EREANMEMKE

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T N
109,451 100,851
86,684 34,720
1,042 1,581
17,072 49,234
2,833 Q,129
10,343 25,345
6,785 623
234,210 221,483
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

This is sfated at after charging/|(crediting) the following:

e MBmRMEE

1. FREE

BATEBEDENG, Gt A REH

Cost of sales (Note]
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of rightofuse assets
Research and development costs
Auditor's remuneration
Provision for doubtful debts, net
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment*
Waiver of other payables*
Written-off of property,
plant and equipment*
Written-off of other receivables*
Impairment of advance payments
fo suppliers
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment*
Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration liabilities*
Changes in fair value of derivative
financial instrument*
Foreign exchange differences, net
Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration):

— Salaries, bonuses and allowances

— Retirement benefit
scheme contributions

— Equity-seftled share-based payments

35 & RS (T L)
ME - BERRETE

EREEENE

Bt B B

T BUED 57 B

REREEFE

HEWE - BFE RREREEY

M EMEN KA

5 L At e M R IR ¢
A R 7 SRR (E

W - BE R ERE
HARBAEDAFEEH
ESBTAMATEED

FINEERE
BEIXRA(BRESME) :

— & fEALMOERE
— RRAEFIET &I 45K

ERER R

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBT T NN
2,679,759 7,567,848
44,982 46,244
6,129 6,809
2,804 2,048
1,800 2,000
2,222,673 103,558
6,499 -
(822) -

1,001 2,118
1,550 -
1,948,484 -
2,212 3,755
1,452

- 232

(10,660 230
34,473 38,073
4,620 6,596
4,939 273
44,032 44,942

Note: Cost of sales includes RMB12,481,000 (2021: RMB33,105,000) relating o MI5E -

staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, and provision for inventories of
approximately RMB69,829,000 (2021: RMBnil), the amounts of which are also

included in the respective fotal amounts.

These balances for the year are included in "Other income/(expenses), gain/
(loss), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

HERABEEBETRA EREHGH
BWARM12,481,0007T (20214 : AR
33,105,000) R FEHEBHRARKE
69,829,0007T (20214 : AREZT) - B
BMEeBmAet ABRAER -

ZEFNBEHRIFAGERAREGE2ER
BERANEMFRA/(FX)  WE /(5
B)] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12 EERFTETHRABHFMRE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS gl

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR T T PN R

Fees we 821 830
Other emoluments: H A FREN
Salaries, allowances and e RRREMHE
benefits in kind 4,782 4,615
Equity-settled share-based payments AR B E 2 ARUD 2
EBEHR 355 23
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {K4& 7|51 &l it X 64 30
6,022 5,498
The emoluments of each director were as follows: XEEZHeWT :
(@) The emoluments of each director are as follows: o) HESBZMEWT:

2022
20224
Salaries,

dllowances  Equity-settled Retirement

and benefits  share-based  benefit scheme
Fees in kind payments  contributions Total

NEREE

HE - BE  2URBA RKER
e REYRNE EBROAR AT B AR @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
el AR%®Tx AR¥TRT ARETR AR¥TR AR%Tx

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Yu Jiangiu RN EE 2,861 2,910
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson — BBE{Z £ 1,541 1,759
Mr. Huang Weiping HERELE 155
Ms. Zhu Yufen REFEL 225
Mr. Gao Qiang BEEE (i) =
Independent non-executive ~ BIYFHITES
directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny FEREE (i)
Ms. Ren Ruxian (594 e (i)
Mr. Pan Liansheng BEBLAE (i)
Mr. Li Wei FRELE (iv)
Mr. Fang Guanghua HRERE WY
Mr. Yu Rengzhong mnEEE v)

Total gt




12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

12 EERFETBRAEHMEE

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continved) N )
The emoluments of each director are as follows: ) BESZMEWT (&)
(Continued)
2021
20214
Salaries,
allowances Equitysefiled Refirement
and benefits sharebased  benefit scheme
Fees in kind payments confributions Total
EREE
e 2R ZUBHE BRI
e ERpE EROER REGEA @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AR®TFT
Executive directors BTESE
Mr. Yu Jiangiu AEMTE - 2,649 - 15 2,664
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BREELE - 1,489 10 15 1,514
Mr. Huang Weiping BREYAE 166 252 - - 418
Ms. Zhu Yufen KEFTL 166 225 7 - 308
Independent non-execufive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny FERBEE 166 - 2 - 168
Ms. Ren Ruxian ExEat 166 - 2 - 168
Mr. Pan liansheng BEBLE 166 - 2 - 168
Total @zt 830 4,615 23 30 5,498
Notes: et

(i) Appoinfed as an executive director on 2 September 2022.

(ii) Refired as an independent non-executive director on 28 June 2022.

[il  Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 13 October

2022.
[iv  Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 28 June 2022.
(v) Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 13 Ocfober
2022.

(i) 202269 A2 AREERPITES -

(ii) R2022F 6 A28 B REB L IFMIT

E%-

li)  HA2022F 108 13 A B EBLIEHR

TEE-

(iv) R2022F6 A28 BZERERB LIk

MITEE -

(v) M2022F 10 13 BZERBE L

FRHITEE -
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e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. %E&igﬁﬂlkéiﬁm k&
Il (&)

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continved)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2021: three) directors whose
emoluments are set out in note (a) above. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2021: two) individuals are set out

(b)

TEBREHFMAL

FALERSHFMALEERA
BE(2021F :=58) - AH#HM
AIREN EXH () - A T =
(2021 - MB) ERFMAL
HyF B ST

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR®T R ARETTT

below:
Salaries, allowances and e R REDHNZ
benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions RREETEIHR
Equity-sefiled sharebased payment LAz & E 2 AR &

ERNR

1,771
30

62

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000% 7T
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &z
1,500,000 % 7T

1,863

e FATEE

2021
2021 F
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. EERFETHRAETFHERE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continved) )
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continved) b) ZEBEHFMALE)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments RBZE2022F12HA31BIEF
were paid by the Group fo the directors of the Company or B - AEBEYEREMNESFHD
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or EREFMALINME  ER
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of SENREMAREE - KIE/M
office (2021 nil]. There was no arrangement under which AREBR 2 RBFRTHE
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (20214 : &) - B E 2022412
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil). AS1HIEFE  BIEEEHER
A B E A2 &) 2 #F (2021
FE)
Certain directors were granted share options, in respect of BERDANBRETS  ET
their services fo the Group, under the share optfion scheme BEEpHERANEBRRHOREE
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note RBRE E—FPHBIARES
36 to the consolidated financial statements. A TS A MIFE 30
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FREBIAX

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tox BVEARRIE — AR EIEFTEH

Charge for the year FRHER 35,606
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBTRE -
35,606

Deferred tax (note 34) IEEF IR (HF7E34) 5,732

41,338
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e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continved)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rates for the countries/regions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled fo the
fax expense af the effective tax rates, are as follows:

13. FIB8iMAxX (®

RAARERERNE DB QR T
BBIR MR 2 0k E B R E A DA
BRZEAR AR BB R
oA 2 BRI -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBET T
Loss before tax LA 518 (4,761,225 (54,139)
Tax at the sfatutory tax rate BEEMEFTENHIA (1,184,072) (10,109)
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or i€ & 17 53t 7 #ERA M 5 2
enacted by local authority BAR B K 28,887 2,323
Withholding tax for interest charges o B B 2 ) B e B B A S
between the PRC subsidiaries and EREMNEERNTEMS
entities outside Mainland China 1,060 1,024
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETE 643 -
Profits and losses attributable to associates B & 73 7] fE 14 i F1| & &5 18 131 107
Expenses not deductible for tax AR F X 4,352 7141
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 87+ HA R &) A B0 i TE &5 18 (1,047) (4,178
Reversal of deferred fax assefs BEFEERELERE
recognised in prior years BERM 6,493
Tax losses and temporary differences [l AN BE AR AR TR S 1R
not recognised SR 1,151,973 38,494
Others H At = 43
Income tax expense PSR X 41,338

Pursuant fo the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands ("BVI”), the Group is not subject to any
income fax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the
Group did not have assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 nil).

REFASHEMNRBELEHS ([HB
BEES]) HRAAERM AEEH
BEHERSERRBRZAEHME
PSR

MR AEERBZE2022F12HA31 8
P FEAREER B EEL ERBUREA -
B LB M S B AT SR A (2021
FE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continved)

The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are subject to income
tax at the rate of 25% (2021: 25%). In 2022, 3 subsidiaries
(2021: 4) were given the New/High Tech Enterprise Award and
entiled to a tax concession of a lower income tax rate of 15%
[2021: 15%), and 8 subsidiaries (2021: 3) were in the western
region that engages in the industries encouraged by the
government and enfifled to a fax concession of a lower income

tax rate of 15% (2021:15%).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:

13.

14.

EFHEX @

NEBRFPENKHEBRBEIZ25%
(2021 5 : 25%) M T R BT 13 FL
20224 - 3 (2021 % : 418) M /&
NAEERETH, BRECERTESR
15% M BKET 5 REFE & (2021 4 -
15%) B E = - &8 (20214 :
M) B AR RAER P E MR ER
MEBEEE YEE 156K
BHBE (2021 F 1 15%) W BER -

BRER

BREAREEEBEBRZ NIBETE

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR® TR ARBETT
Loss: =
Loss attributable to owners of the AR EERERNEBERN
Company for the purpose of RRBHEAANEIEER
caleulating basic loss per share (4,763,152) (95,477)
2021
20214
Number of shares: ROHA :
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR ETEBREREIEH
shares for the purpose of calculating BB RN T 15 2R
basic loss per share iRy LR ERICEN 3, 190,075,412
Basic loss per share (RMB) BREXER(AR%) (1.10) (0.03)

Diluted loss per share

As the Group's outstanding convertible bonds for both years
would be antidilutive and there was no dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the Company’s outstanding share options, the diluted
loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 were the same as basic loss per share.

BRBEER

F P AN 52 [ {8 4R E A0 1) R 1T (2 AJ 42
RES TS R#EE - W BEARRFEE K
17150 8 A M X B 7 7 O 3858 R A
HE2022F K2021F12H318 1k
FREZEBRETHRESRELREE
GEICI
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

15. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. RE

EEZWEBREE 2022F 2021612
ASTBIEFEEZZREFLEIREMR

g o
e

16. Y15 - BMERRE

Furniture,
Plantand  fitfings and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
&R %E
BT BERESH PET "E ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR AREBTRT ARETR AR%TR ARETR
Cost A
1 January 2021 2021F1R1H 400,012 347,047 7,543 11,735 147573 913,910
Additions NE 9 536 252 - 69 866
Witten-off s (7,302) (25) [280) - (7,607
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31A K
and 1 January 2022 202F1RA1H 400,021 340,281 7,770 11,455 147,642 907,169
Additions nE - o/ 24 - - 91
Transfer from rightotuse asset ~ HEEAELE - - - 1,186 - 1,186
Wiitten-off ik - (833) (10) (877) - (1,720)
Disposal RE (18) [33,432) [294) 6,320) (7,802) (47,860)
As at 31 December 2022 20226 12R318 400,003 306,083 7,490 5,444 139,840 858,860
Accumulated depreciationand R E R E{E
impairment
1 January 2021 2021F1R1H 138,482 197,550 5,596 8,329 - 349,957
Charge for the year FRMR 17,582 27,105 507 960 - 46,244
Impairment for the year FRRE 5 1,835 84 34 1,797 3,755
Witten-off s - (5,199) (21) [269) - 5,489)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 K
and 1 January 2022 2026 1RA1H 156,069 221,291 6,256 9,054 1,797 394,467
Charge for the year FREK 17,563 26,235 611 573 - 44,982
Tronsfer from rightofuse osset BB FREEE - - - 427 - 427
Impairment for the year FRRE - - - - 2,212 2212
Wiitten-off i - [241) 9) (469) - [719)
Disposal RE - [25,391) [278) (5,056) - [30,725)
As at 31 December 2022 20226 12R318 173,632 221,894 6,580 4,529 4,009 410,644
Carrying amount REE
As at 31 December 2022 20226 12R318 226,371 84,189 910 915 135,831 448216
As at 31 December 2021 20215 12A318 243,952 118,990 1,514 2,401 145,845 512,702
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Coniinved)

At 31 December 2022, property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of RMB246,180,000 (2021
RMB284,174,000) was pledged to secure general banking and
other facilities granted to the Group (see nofe 28).

At 31 December 2022, the Group has yet o obtain property
ownership certificates for buildings with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB29,680,000 (2021: RMB31,812,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
owned the beneficial fille to these buildings as at 31 December

2022 and 2021.

At 31 December 2022, as a result of various litigations, buildings
with net book value of approximately RMB78,856,000 were
seized pursuant fo various court orders (nofe 38).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of ifs
plant and machinery in 2022 as a result of the deferioration of
the markets of the Group's products. These assets are used in the
Group's recycled copper products, power fransmission and
distribution cables and communication cables segments. The
reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss of
RMB2,212,000, that has been recognised in profit or loss. The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets of RMB221,483,000
has been defermined on the basis of their fair value less costs of
disposal method (level 3 fair value measurements).

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. W% - BERXE @)

M2022F12A318 - REHEAAR
#246,180,0007T (20215 : AR
284,174,00070) MM 2% - W K& B
ERBGE T ASEN —RBITRE
B & (R EE28) T LA IR

M2022F 12831 H » "EBEEAB
BMEmEAAREKE29,680,0007T
(20214 : AR#¥31,812,0007T) &)
BREMDSYEMBEE ARAE
ERRB M2022F k202112 A
S1H AKEEARSTEEYNER
EX:

R2022% 128318 AR Z AR
o REFEN S AR 78,856,000
TTHREYEREZHEAEDSED
(FiFE38) ©

HRASBERTSEZ  ASER
2022 FFHE BB M 2 AT E &
H-REEERMNASEZBLERE
e AEEERBEEEI - %F
EHEPAKERERTHRIAARE
2,212,000 tHRERE - HEEE
B A Bl & ¥ AR 221,483,000 7T
EREQXFEREEXRNS (F=ZRQF
BFt8) EEEF -

17. HEREHEEE

At 31 December: R12A318:
Rightof-use assets EREEE
— Properties — M=%
— land-use-rights — T EAE
— Plant and machinery L i

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR T T NS
827 4,323
102,978 106,463
690 2,416
104,495 113,202
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continved)

At 31 December 2022, rightof-use assefs with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB86,913,000 (2021: RMB88,526,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (see note 28).

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the
Group's lease liabilities is as follows:

17. HERFEAREE »)

2022F 123318 - FRAEEER
H#E ARK%86,913,0007T (2021
F: AK%88,526,0007) B 1EHE
MERAEEERN —RRTHE (R
PtzE28) °

AEBHEREERRARRERE
ZEBBE R

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBTT PN

2,188 4,996
379 3,537

2,567 8,533

1,677 2,358
3,485 3,484
967 Q67

6,129 6,809

1,042 1,581

4,398 5,031

953 -

— less than 1 year — LRI E
— Befween 1 and 2 years — 1 FE2F
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs EREEENE
— Properties — M
— land-use-rights — T fE AR
— Plant and machinery — BB M
lease interests HER R
Total cash outflow for leases HERBERRH
Additions fo right-of-use assets NBEEREEE
Early termination of lease REZIEHE

2,657 -

At 31 December 2022, as a result of various litigations, the right-
of-use assets of RMB43,317,000 were seized pursuant fo
various court orders (note 38).

2022 12HA31H AR ZIER
A BEARMA3,317,000 T2 A
REECREZEEIEDSEH (Wi
38) °
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17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continved) 17. HERERAEEE @)
The Group leases various land-use-rights, land and buildings and REBMBEETR LMEAE TR
motor vehicles. lease agreements are typically made for fixed BFERAE HEBEBBR2EE
periods of 2 to 20 years (2021: 2-20 years). lease terms are 20 N & E BAMR (20214 : 29 £ 20
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of F) - MEKRFRUERNFRFEE - I
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not HAEZANE B GRR RIS - HER
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as ETRETMNOELBEEEETER
security for borrowing purposes. TEERIER -
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REt&E R BRI RER
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETT

Unlisted investments: ELETIRE -

Share of net assets JEILFEEE 47,106 48,001
The Group has the following associates as at 31 December 20226 12R31H  REBEAFUT
2022. /NS

Principal place % of
Name of business ownership interests  Principal activities
&1 TELEHH EEFERE IEXR
BEEIL

Deda Holdings Limited BV 30%  Investment holding

BEERER DA HBRIHS 30% REEK

Hong Kong Fuijian Investments Limited Hong Kong 30%  Investment holding

BAREREBRDA e 30% REEK

Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources The PRC 30%  Industrial park operation

Recycling Development Co., Lid. and development
mIERMNEILBEERAEERAA T 30% #MERBERIEE
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of TRINRAEBEEEMEBERITERXR
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are BREDREZENBERRINEDE -
accounted for using the equity method.
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARET T

At 31 December: R12A31R8:

Carrying amounts of inferesfs HEEEMEE 47,106 48,001

Year ended 31 December: BE12A31HLFE:

Total comprehensive loss for the year FRATHEEBEEAR

(791) (427)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Coniinved)

At 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's associates in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to RMB?,000 (2021: RMB12,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations.

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
ASSETS

L STATEMENTS

18. REEE DA RER (9

MN20226F 128318 NEBEHTE
gE RN AARE ([ARE]FED
BITRBREEHRBAREO 0000
(2021 : AR¥12,0007T) - AR
WM R IS B X o B SNPE B I B
FPR ©

FRBEE
T MR

Non-current assets
Prepayments for property, plant and
equipment and land-use-rights

Current assets RBEE
Advance payments to suppliers [nofe i)
Impairment of advance payment fo

suppliers (nofe ii)

20 8 R SR IR R (E

Govermnment grants receivable T AT T 448 B

VAT input accrued B g AR

Other deposits and receivables HAb iz & & e WA
Prepayment AR

Inferest receivables JE W 2

AR SR (MR D)

19. AR EBEWFRER A
BE
2022 2021
2022 ¥ 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR®T T ARET T
19,756 19,756
1,019,625 2,202,004
(B &)
(727,756) -
291,869 2,202,004
217,797 221,323
178,393 184,283
9,022 8,338
2,271 4,142
10,098 8,226
709,450 2,628,316
729,206 2,648,072

Notes:

(i) In light of (a) the long outstanding position of certain advance payments to
suppliers, (b) the financial difficulties of certain suppliers and (c) unfavourable
negotiation results with certain suppliers, the management of the Group
considered that the chance of recovering/utilising the advance payments to
suppliers to be remote. Thus, subsequent to the reporting period, advance
payments fo suppliers with a gross amount fotalling RMB1,231,783,000 (the
“Disposed Advance Payments to Suppliers”) was disposed to various independent
third parties at considerations of RMB11,055,000 in aggregate. As a result, an
impairment loss of RMB1,220,728,000 was recognised in respect of the
Disposed Advance Payments to Suppliers for the year ended 31 December
2022. Together with other impairment loss of RMB727,756,000 on advance
payments fo suppliers, an aggregate impairment loss on advance payments to
suppliers of RMB1,948,484,000 has been charged fo profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

(i) ER (o) ETENHREEFRSEHREE
()& T 7 9 B 75 TR 2 % () B2 o5 T fE Ry
MTFHHER ERERRDH OB
R EEFEN AT AR - Btk - RIS
Hig - BB ERARKI,231,783,000 T H)
BNEERFR((HERNHEMKEAD R
REARKEI,055000THETZEEL
E=77 - FEt - BIE2022F 1231 HILF
B et ERNHERFRRRREBR
AR¥1,220,728,0007C « B 20224 12
ASIRLLFE ERBNHREMFTEAAR
#727,756,000 70 By KA BB B 1R - BT
FER IR A ARHE,948,484,000 7T 00 RE
EEAECRBREANE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Except for the impairment loss on advance payments to suppliers stated in [i)
above, the management of the Group makes impairment loss on advance
payments fo suppliers based on assessments of the recoverability of the advance
payments to suppliers, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection/utilisation history of suppliers. The movement in provision for

impairment of advance payments to suppliers is as follows:

19. AR - HEBRRER A

EE®)
MsE : (48)

(i1) Bt B3 (i) fR it 2 B0 A5 {1 7 SR ORURR (B S 1R
S AR BB IR [ AN B R SRR
AT U Bl 1 1 RS R R R R E S 1B
BERERE A 2R BT RE BAT
8 - BNHEHFCRRERBEDHNOT

Balance at beginning of year FHEERR =
Provision of impairment LB B 1,948,484

Written off of advance payments to suppliers HEH B A R R R SRR (1,220,728)
Balance at end of year FRERR 727,756

20. INVENTORIES 20. 75

2022 2021

2022 F 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR AREET T

Raw materials E# R 47,897 144,620
Work in progress 8 2,539 2,939
Finished goods Rk 47,557 39,285
Goods in transit HEFR 2 E M 2,953 2,611
100,946 189,455

At 31 December 2022, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB27,078,000 (2021: RMB136,840,000] were
pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings, as further
detailed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, as a result of various litigations, the
inventories of RMB2,384,000 were seized pursuant to various
court orders (note 38).

M2022F 12318 "EBKREE
RAR®27,0780007T (2021 F : A
R#136,840,0007t) M EEEER
REBIRITIERNEIR - F RP B R
RMIEE28 -

2022 12A31H AR ZIER
W BEAARKE2,384,000THF
EEREZHREEG T H (M
38) °

135



136

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. EZRRFEARERRE

Trade receivables
Provision for impairment

BB

B 5 EWGKIR

Bills receivables X ES
Provision for impairment B B

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBT T NN
439,545 2,546,254
(275,019) (234,789)
164,526 2,311,465
78,509 -
(6,541) -
71,968 -
236,494 2,311,465

Notes:

(i) The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally O to 3 months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain sirict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are

non-interestbearing.

(ii) As part of its normal business, the Group entered info a trade receivable factoring
arrangement (the “Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain trade
receivables to a financial institution. Under the Factoring Arrangement, the Group
is required 1o reimburse the bank for any loss, including the loss arising in default
of the trade debtors. Subsequent to the transfer, the Group has refained the
substantial risks and rewards of the trade receivables and accordingly, it
continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the frade receivables.
Factoring loan is recognised for any consideration received for the Factoring
Arrangement. The carrying amount of the assets that the Group continved to
recognise as at 31 December 2022 was RMB2,720,000 (2021:
RMB641,947,000) and that of the associated liabilities as at 31 December

2022 was RMB507,000,000 (2021: RMB507,000,000).

(i)

AEEXBAEETAERSITLESER
HEBERMELPAANK - EEH KR
O=3EA BHREFHRARSERE
JZ o AR B ) SR B AR 43 R EL R AR B AR LR
WRABEEEGH - UFBREEERR -
EREREEHNREONGES AEETE
HEE S RKKBELESBEEAERREE
fE g - B S RUGRIETE S -

ERABEBN &0 AKRETL-IRE
SRR ERZZH (TREZH]) - LHE
TESRKKABE TSRS - RIBRE
2 AERBEARBITHEENER 28
BHEBANEBOEENER #HR K%
ECREEZEKRFIENERR R KRR -
Hut - HEERRE S BUGKEN 2 HRE
1B ° BRI L PRI E R R E R AR
BER - AE@MK 202261283 BEER
RNEEREEAARK2720,0007T
(20214 : AR¥0641,947,0007T) - 48
HEER2022F 12 A3 BENEREERAR
¥ 507,000,000 (2021 : AR
507,000,0007¢) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Coninved) 2. EZRWREREREE @)
The aging analysis of frade and bills receivables, based on the B 5 M TR IE I e W R IR SR ) BR e
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: DT (AR EQ W EE) T

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBTT NS

Within 30 days 30KA 8,487 933,228
31 to 60 days 31 260K 937 275,274
61 1o 180 days 612 180K 94,885 303,706

Over 180 days Bim 180K 132,185 799,257

236,494 2,311,465

The movement in provision for impairment of trade and bills B 5 I W SR IE % e W 3R R R (B B R
receivables is as follows: BT

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT

Balance at beginning of year FA&E R 234,789 131,231
Provision for bad debts, net ERBEEHEFE 2,222,673 103,558

Written off of trade receivables 155 & 5 e W IR (2,175,902 -

Balance ot end of year FRERR 281,560 234,789




138 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved) 2. EZRRRERERERS®

In light of (a) the past due situation of certain trade and bills
receivables, (b) the financial difficulties of certain debtors and (c)
unfavourable negotiation results with certain debtors, the
management of the Group carefully considered that the chance
of recovering the trade receivables to be remote. Thus,
subsequent to the reporting period, frade receivables with a gross
amount fofalling RMB2,181,432,000 (the "Disposed Trade
Receivables’] was disposed fo various independent third parties
af considerations of RMB17,290,000. As a result, an impairment
loss of RMB1,982,724,000 was recognised in respect of the
Disposed Trade Receivables for the year ended 31 December
2022. Together with other impairment loss, net of
RMB239,949,000 on trade and bills receivables, an aggregate
impairment loss, net on trade and bills receivables of
RMB2,222,673,000 had been charged to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Except for the Disposal Trade Receivables of approximately
RMB17,290,000, the Group applies the simplified approach
under IFRS 9 to provide for expected credit losses using the
lifetime expected loss provision for trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, frade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information.

ER ()BT E S EYFEREKREE
B bETEBAZTBRER ()
HETESANKAGRTN KK
EEEEEREEBRA/NKEES
FE YRR AT BE LR /)N o B It - R ¥R
EHR O BRERARE
2,181,432,000t 2 & 5 fE W 5k 18
THEZZRUFAD) ZREARE
17,200,000 tHE FERBILE =
7oAt BE2022F12A31H 1k
FE B HEE S RKFIERERR
BEEEBARK1,982,724,0007T &
Z2022F12A31BIEFE - ERAE
FRMGIENEREEFERARE
239,949,000 T &) At M (EE B - &
SRERMFEREREEFERARS
2,222,673 000 LR EEEAREE
RIBE RFARR

BREYARME 17,290,000 THHEE 5
FE MR IR SN - 7N 5% [ R 4 AR 3% B R B
BHmEEMNFEORNBIETEARE S
UM GRIRE R 2 MEMEREE -/
AAEEHREEER BESRKFIER
BEHAEERRFBRBHREDE -
B EEEBETESREER -

Past due
B
1 days to 2to 6o Over
Current 2 months 6months  12months 12 months Total
BE 1XZ2@B 2Z6fR 6F1288 HBI12M8A wst

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H

Weighted average METHEHERE 8.3% 30.1% 89.1% 85.9% 65.1%
expected loss rafe
Receivable amount (RMB'000)  FEMRFRIE (AR B F ) 94,886 25,710 96,253 199,888 422,255

Loss allowance (RMB'000) EREAARETT) 7,881 7,746 85,730 171,618 275,019

At 31 December 2021 R2021512831H

Weighted average METHEHEREE 3.9% 4.2% 17.8% 23.0% 14.5% 9.2%
expected loss rafe
Receivable amount RMB'000)  FEMURIE (AR F ) 1,196,211 336,224 68,840 284,362 660,617 2,546,254

Loss cllowance (RMB'000) BEEEARETT) 47,146 14,021 12,282 65,385 95,955 234,789
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, infterestfree
and are repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable on demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

22. B EABE

HFEMBERRME

>

CIE/ S|

e FE < Bt i X R SRIE R AR AR
PEFB KRR BRG]

S

3

o

Al

R

. FEURFEAS BRI TS KR

R TE REEE T R REER T
AAENERBERER -

CRERRESERBUAREE

DEPOSITS RER

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITEE R 2,391 11,953
Pledged deposits [EEERLRES 703,928 873,359
706,319 885,312

Pledged deposits: EEAER
— Deposits with guarantee companies ~ — RERA FIRRE® 1,075 1,075
— Deposits with banks — RITER 672,657 841,760
— Deposits with other companies — RHEAM R RHRE S 30,196 30,524
703,928 873,359

Pledged deposits with banks of RMB672,657,000 (2021:
RMB841,760,000] were mainly placed as security for bills
payable of the Group.

Pledged deposits were placed with other companies and
guarantee companies for the purpose of obtaining bank loans of
RMB41,500,000 (2021: RMB41,500,000), which were
secured by the property, plant and equipment of such companies
(see note 28).

At 31 December 2022, the cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to RMB706,142,000 (2021: RMB884,974,000).
Conversion of RMB info foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

At 31 December 2022, as a result of various litigations, the bank
accounts with balances of RMB26 1,000 were frozen pursuant to
various court orders (note 38).

REBETHWEERERARE
672,657,0007T (2021 % : AR
841,760,0007T) X B A AL B M E
DES: &

SEVSIRITERARKE 41,500,000 7T
(20214 : AR¥41,500,0007T)
REMRRRERARFREZERE
FoHAZFRANYE  BEMKE
AR (MHEE28) -

M2022F12A31H  REBUAR
BETARBDAHENRERREEFE
BEUREERERABARE
706,142,0007T (2021 % : AR®
884,074,0007T) - AR LB RINE
AR BISNEE BIRBIRR o

2022 12HA31H AR ZIEE
- BE/ARE 261,000 THIRITAS
HRERIBZ IR EER <R (FEE38) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25 ESRNREREARE

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T NN

Trade payables B 5 EMNIA 930,544 459,502
Bills payable JEN R 683,092 884,183
1,613,636 1,343,685
The bills payable is secured by the pledged deposits ENEBARNEECERERARYK
of the Group amounting fo RMB672,657,000 (2021 672,657,0007T (20214 : AR
RMB841,760,000). 841,760,000 7T) &R °
The aging analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the RERERY EFENRBREN
date of receipt of goods, is as follows: SRMNRESNTAT

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T N

Within 30 days 30K 733,884 951,211
31 to 60 days 31 260K 126,848 39,395
61 1o 180 days 61 &2 180K 208,481 312,551
Over 180 days H#Bim 180K 544,423 40,528

1,613,636 1,343,685

The trade payables are nonvinterested bearing and are normally B o ENHIERSE  EmEIR30KRE
seffled on 30-days terms. HAPR 45 & o

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HttENRERETEA

2022 2021

2022 5 2021 %

Note RMB’000 RMB'O00
Btz ARBT T NN

Salaries, wages, bonus and e I1TE Bk

other accrued benefits H b fEFH4E A 30,344 13,980

Payables for the purchase of BEYE  BELREN
property, plant and equipment JE < RIE 22,498 32,515
VAT payable e IB(ER 857,347 940,668
Other taxes payable H At IR 72,755 70,153
Contract liabilities = ON=R (a) 238,278 304,981
Inferest payables JEAH L2, 205,822 102,133
Others HAh 185,804 106,721
Default fee payables JEREXNE 121,404 34,720
1,734,252 1,605,871

Note: BT
(a) Contract liabilities (a) aHERE
As ot As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
%2022 F #H2021 4 ®2021F
12A31H 12A31H 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT ARETT
Contract liabilities — advances SHBE — AEF YIRS
received from customers I 238,278 304,981 364,198
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Revenue recognised in the year that was REDHABHEE 2 FRERKE

included in contract liabilities at beginning

of year 304,981 364,198
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Coniinved)

Note: (Continved)
(a) Contract liabilities (Continved)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied at end of year
and expeced 1o be recognised as revenue in:

26. HttENREARETEM )

BiaE

(a)

(%)

BREEE)

RERDEZRERBHOEELEHRNAT

2022
2023

20224
20234

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year:

Increase due to operations in the year FRNE BN
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BERANABERR

A confract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer products to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

27. NOTE PAYABLES

Note payables, at amortised cost

RHENAFTENENRE

The note payables with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$26,320,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB23,511,000) (2021: HK$26,320,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB21,519,000)) are unsecured, inferestbearing
at 12% to 13% (2021:12% to 13%) per annum and repayable

within one year (2021: one year).

FERARRE R HE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
= 304,981
238,278 -
238,278 304,981

FRANABEEAZS :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTT
473,407 304,981
(540,110) (364,198

EHABRASERENERPKE (HKE
SHIE) MABRERLRE TEPZEME

27. BNEE

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'O00
AR®T ARETT
23,511 21,519

e IR A & 50 26,320,0007% 7T ()
HER AR 23,511,0007T) (2021
F 126,320,000/ T (HERARE

21,5

19,0007T)) I\ ~ L 12% =

13% (2021 4F : 12% % 13%) B F F &
AHRIR—FERN (2021 F: —F)EE -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. ST ERITREMER
BORROWINGS

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB'O00
ARBTT PN

Current B HA
Bank loans — secured IRITER — B 244,586 241,710
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EIKF 5,000 -
Other borrowings — secured ,H\’rHME N — BHIEME 108,160 108,160
Other borrowings — unsecured and Hi gk — |EM L EER
unguaranteed 167,508 22,568
Factoring loan — secured RIEBER — HEE 507,000 507,000
Entrusted loans — secured ZHAER — B 306,116 306,116
1,338,370 1,185,554
The borrowings are repayable as follows: & FRZE 1R A T By I E R
On demand or within one year BERg—FNA 1,338,370 1,185,554
2021
2021 F
The average inferest rates at MRI12A31 BFHFEMT :
31 December were as follows:
Bank loans — secured RITER — BHEA 9.09%
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — E|EH N/A A5 A
Other borrowings — secured ,H\’rMa R — FHEA 6.00%
Other borrowings — unsecured HAb AR — MR R EER
and unguaranteed 10.13%
Factoring loan — secured REGEHR — FEM 8.33%
Entrusted loans — secured ZiEER — BER 9Q.92%
All'bank and other borrowing of RMB1,338,370,000 (2021: FrERERTEEMLAERARE
RMB1,185,554,000) are arranged at fixed inferest rates and 1,338,370,00077: (2021 F : AR
expose the Group fo fair value interest rate risk. 185,554,000 7T ) LA FE M= 51 8 &

Aﬁ‘*lﬁﬁ&@fﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁh & o
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continved)

Notes:

(al

Certain of the Group's inferestbearing bank and other borrowings are secured

by:

(i

(il

(i)

[iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

mortgages over the Group's property, plant and equipment, which had
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
RMB246,180,000 (2021: RMB284,174,000);

mortgages over the Group's land-use-rights, which had an aggregate

carrying value at the end of the reporting period of approximately

RMB86,913,000 (2021: RMB88,526,000;

the pledge of inventories amounting to RMB27,078,000 (2021:
RMB136,840,000);

the pledge of trade receivable amounting to RMB2,720,000 (2021:
RMB641,947,000);

the pledge of the Group's time deposits with guarantee companies and
other companies amounting fo approximately RMB3 1,271,000 (2021:
RMB31,599,000);

the pledge of 310,317,000 ordinary shares (2021: 310,317,000
ordinary shares) in the Company held by Mr. Huang Weiping, key
management personnel of the Group, representing 6.92% (2021
8.98%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2022;

At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB12,000,000 (2021
RMB12,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of
Sichuan Gushan Vegetable Fat Chemistry Co., Lid ("Gushan Vegetable”),
a private company controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu;

At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB41,000,000 (2021:
RMB41,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of
Mianyang Baohe Jichao Waste Material Recycling Co., Lid. ("Bache
Jiahao"). An associate of the Group has 20% equity interests in Baohe

Jiahao; and

At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMBnil (2021: RMB5,000,000)
were secured by property, plant and equipment of Shanghai Mengjun
Investment Management Co. ("Shanghai Mengjun”), a private company

controlled by a daughter of Mr. Yu Jiangiu.

28. STESRTREMEBR &)

BiaE

AEEETESRITREAMERAATZE
YRR -

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

REBEYE  BERREOER R
BEMRNEREERODARKE
246,180,0007C (2021 4% : AR
284,174,0007T) ;

AEE LI ERENER  RREH
RHBIREERKH AR 86,913,000
70 (2021 % : AR¥88,526,0007T) :

FENER R AR 27,078,000
(20214 : AR¥136,840,0007T) :

BES9RWFRENERAARE
2,720,0007C (20214 : AR #
641,947,000 70)

AEERERABTREMGARREL
AER#31,271,0007T (20214 = A
R#31,599,0007T) #)5E H177 SRV K
il

AEHSEEEBARERYREM
FAEMARREF 310,317,000 8 & @A
(20214 : 310,317,000 f% 3% & i)
WER ZEROHEEREARAR
202212 431 HE #1TRAK6.92%
(20214 : 8.98%) :

R2022F12A31 B - RITERAR
#12,000,0007T (20214 : AR
12,000,0007T)) P9Il & A2 a1k
BHERAR ([H2mPE]) (—Haa
BIKEEMEHINLARR) 2 W% -
RS B RR S FE AR o

2022512831 H  SRITERAR
#41,000,0007C (2021 5 : AR
41,000,0007T) E #3F5 (R M= 5 RE &
MERMRERRE ((RMEED 2D
X BERREER AEEOBE
N AR RAESE 20% i - &

2022812 A31 8 SRITERAR
=T (20215 AR¥ 5,000,000
TR LEEBRREEEERAF( L
BEED (—HBmEREELZR
FEHEFLA R R AR -
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) At 31 December 2022, the Group had defaulted on the repayment of
convertible bonds, entrusted loans and inferest-bearing bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB231,720,000 (2021:
RMB585,733,000), RMB306,116,000 (2021: RMB299,116,000) and
RMBO81,661,000 (2021: RMB475,938,000) respectively. The above defaults
may trigger cross default of certain other borrowings amounting to
RMB46,793,000 (2021: RMB410,500,000) as af 31 December 2022. The
respective balance of RMB46,793,000 (2021: RMB410,500,000) was

therefore classified as current liabilities.

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

28. STESRTREMEBR &)

MEEE : (4

M20224 12 A31 B REEKRGEEAE
SRIAANRE231,720,0007T (2021 F : A
R ¥ 585,733,0007T) ~ AR
306,116,000 (20214 : AR
299,116,00075) & A R¥981,661,0007T
(20214 : 475,938,000 7T) M AT A R (& % -
ZRAERRFBRITRAMMER - LilliELD
AN 20224 12 A 31 BE T HAM MR
AR 46,793,000 (2021 4F : AR
410,500,00070) HE AR XELH - Bt - A
R# 46,793,000 (2021 4 : AR #
410,500,0007t) BB & sr i D B R R B
BE-

29. AIRRES

The Huarong The Prosper Rich

CBs CBs Total

EH SE
TERES TBRRES @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T AREF T

[note a) [note b)

(ff5Ea) (P3EDb)
Asat 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 359,288 193,716 553,004
Inferest expenses FBFEX 37,469 11,765 49234
Exchange adjustment I 5, 2 (10,805) (5,700 (16,505

As at 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31B K

1 January 2022 20221 H1H 385,952 199,781 585,733
Seftled by issuing shares BRETRNER (188,509) (198,137) (386,646
Inferest expenses MERX 17,072 - 17,072
Exchange adjustment fE 5 FR 17,205 (1,644) 15,561
As at 31 December 2022 B2022%F12A31H 231,720 - 231,720

Notes:

(a) On 11 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds (the “Huarong
CBs") with an principal amount of HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB340,944,000) at face value to China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (“Huarong “).

B

[al

K201 7F8A1H ARREEELAS
400,000,000 L (HERH AR
340,944,0007T) TR A RE S (R A
HBARES ) FHREERERERER AT ([5
gl e
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Huarong CBs carry 8% coupon interest per annum payable in arrears
quarterly. Unless redeemed or repurchased early, the original maturity date of the
Huarong CBs is the second anniversary of the issue date (the “Maturity Date”). If
the Huarong CBs are not fully converted before the Maturity Date, the Company
will redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds at nominal value plus the

inferest accrued but unpaid fo Huarong.

Huarong has the right to convert the principal amount of the Huarong CBs into
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company on any business day from the
issue date up to and including the Maturity Date at an initial conversion price of
HK$3.0 per share but subject to adjusiments at any time during the term of the

Huarong CBs, subject fo the minimum public float requirement.

If the average closing share price of the Company during any six consecutive
months within the period commencing from the issue date fo the Maturity Date
has never, at any point of time, reached or exceeded the conversion price of the
Huarong CBs, the Company shall, upon redemption of the Huarong CBs
amounting to HK$400,000,000, compensate Huarong in cash so that the
Huarong CBs is guaranteed an annualised return of 12% for the period

commencing from the issue date to the date of redemption.

The Group had defaulted in its repayment of the Huarong CBs which had
matured on 11 August 2019. On 22 April 2020, the Company and Huarong
entered info the exfension deed (the “Huarong Extension Deed”) to extend the
original maturity date on 11 August 2019 of the convertible bonds (the “Extended
Huarong CBs") with a remaining principal amount of HK$390,000,000 for one
year fo 11 August 2020. Pursuant fo the Huarong Extension Deed, the Company

and Huarong have agreed to the following amendments:

— Huarong has the right to request for early redemption of outstanding
amount of the Extended Huarong CBs, provided that the aggregate
nominal value of the Extended Huarong CBs to be redeemed shall not
exceed HK$190,000,000, and the Company shall redeem at nominal
value of the requested redemption amount (plus any accrued but unpaid

interests and default interest (if applicable and if any)).

— The Extended Huarong CBs bear inferest at the rate of 12% per annum
from and including 12 August 2019 payable quarterly in arrears.

The effective date of the Huarong Extension Deed was 7 May 2020.

On 11 August 2020, the Group defaulted on the Extended Huarong CBs.

BiaE

(a]

29. IRARES &)

(&)
(%)

ERAARAFRFRAMNKUFE  5F
EXAT - BRIERFEOARED - FEaa BRAR
BEFRISAAETASEAEFA (T34
B o fEER R R A SN B8 B AT R
e KRB IRE(ERE DA E AR EE
P AR A 77 55 I AHER S T ERAFLE -

ERAMRESFFHNEANRE  ERE#E
RETRHEERSEIHARN 2 ERMEE
HAMZ K BREFKRI.0OET (7] THE) K
ERABRREFNASEEABAREEFMR
EECIABIWEAR  EARKEETH
ERRIEEL -

WARBBRMREETEHEE LA HRHED
EAEE S EA R EE TR ER
BREFEEMARBRESLBRERNA L - A
XX ) 7E fE 181 400,000,000 7 7T 2 R AT #2 %
BEFE ANREVAHEER  UWREE
BMABMRESFNETAHREER B8R
BB 1250 F (R -

REEREEENR2019F8A 11 HIHE
ERAIRIRES - R2020F4 4228 - &
NREERF] MR ((FERLEHZRE]) -
4 78 & FE 5 #4 390,000,000 7% 7T &) 2 Bl 7] #2
BREFOHRINEBE2010F8A1TBIER —
FE202058A 11 B ([HEHIZEFL AT AR &
)  BEEFRENRE ARFEEHR
BUATER]

- FREERFROCHERTRERE
FOAREBESHE MREFTEDN
EMERAREESEEETER
190,000,000/ 7T * R AR A EIRE
BEERZROERSE (N EEHE
RAIFIEFENFIS QERRIE))

— ESEBTRRESREFIE 2%
% B (REE) 20195871285
FREA -

EREHIRIRA B 5 202045 7 A «

M2020F8A11H REBMAKREERTH
ERATIBRIES -
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HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(o]

(Continued)

On 31 December 2021, the Company and Huarong entered info the Huarong
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed fo issue and Huarong has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
500,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.465 per subscription
share. Upon completion, the subscription consideration shall be set off against
the equivalent amount of the outstanding principal amount and accrued inferests
amounted fo HK$232,500,000 under the Huarong CBs on a dollarfor-dollar
basis and the maturity date of the remaining portion of the outstanding principal
amount and accrued inferests amounted to approximately HK$239,530,000
under the Huarong CBs shall be extended to 31 December 2022, pursuant to

an amendment deed signed on 31 December 2021.

On 24 February 2022, 500,000,000 subscription shares in aggregate were
allotted and issued to Huarong at the subscription price of HK$0.465 per

subscription share pursuant to the terms of the Huarong Subscription Agreement.

On 31 December 2022, the Group defaulted on the Extended Huarong CBs.

Up to the date of this report, the Company and Huarong are still negotiating

about further extension.

On 11 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds (the “Prosper Rich
CBs") with an principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB170,472,000) at face value to Prosper Rich Investments
Limited (“Prosper Rich”).

The Prosper Rich CBs carry 8% coupon interest per annum payable in arrears
quarterly. Unless redeemed or repurchased early, the original maturity date of the
Prosper Rich CBs is the second anniversary of the issue date (the “Maturity Date”).
If the Prosper Rich CBs are not fully converted before the Maturity Date, the
Company will redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds at nominal value plus

the inferest accrued but unpaid to Prosper Rich.

Prosper Rich has the right to convert the principal amount of the Prosper Rich CBs
info ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company on any business day from
the issue date up fo and including the Maturity Date at an initial conversion price
of HK$3.0 per share but subject fo adjustments at any time during the ferm of the

Prosper Rich CBs, subject to the minimum public float requirement.

29. IRARES &

MisE : (&)

(a]

(%)

M2021F12A31 B ARRIHEERFT U E
BRBEWRE - B ARFEEKRERER
TREBEAKUHREZREESRABR
1 0.465 7% 7t 7R B 500,000,000 & i 15 © 7
TR RBREBREEESERHEERT
BEAESFTREEANSEREFMNE 2SR
232,500,000 7T * MERMABKES TR
BB A& LR F 2 239,530,000 T2
R o 2 B8R - HREN2021 5128
31 AERHHERT IR T AR R E 20226 12
A31H -

M 202242 R824 8 - & # 500,000,000 %
REROCBEEERRBEIHEZ EKIRRE
BRI 0.465 B TR & R 31T -

2022 12A31 B - AEBEKREERTE
ERARBES

BEABREAY ARAREEERpUE—F
ERETER -

WN2017F8A1TE AARKEEAS R
200,000,000 T (HE RO AR
170,472,00070) M= BHREAR A ([T
BDBTABRRES ([FEARBKRES] -

SEABMBRESRERANE8%FE - 8F
EXf - BRIFRBEEORER  FTEABRRK
EFRIBERBETEHE _BFA ([3H
B o= &R E SN E A AR ER
B RRFGIREERE QG M A EE
B AR ES S EFHERN T ENFIE -

FTEARKESFHNTARR TEE#
RETEHEERERBIHARN 2 ERNEE
BAMZ R ESRI.0BT (A THE) B
FTEARRESFNASEERARRAER
EECIBIWERK EARFRETA
ERRIEESL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o]

(Continued)

The Group had defaulted in its repayment of the Prosper Rich CBs which had
matured on 11 August 2019. On 22 April 2020, the Company and Prosper
Rich entered info the extension deed (the “Prosper Rich Extension Deed”’) to
extend the original maturity date on 11 August 2019 of the convertible bonds
[the "Extended Prosper Rich CBs") with a remaining principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 for one year to 11 August 2020. Pursuant to the Prosper
Rich Extension Deed, the Company and Prosper Rich have agreed to the

following amendments:

— The Company has the right fo redeem all or part of the Extended Prosper
Rich CBs at any time prior fo the maturity date.

— The Extended Prosper Rich CBs bear interest at the rate of 12% per
annum from and including 12 August 2019 payable quarterly in arrear.

The effective date of the Prosper Rich Extension Deed was 7 May 2020.

On 11 August 2020, the Group defaulted on the Extended Prosper Rich CBs.

On 31 December 2021, the Company and Prosper Rich entered into the Prosper
Rich Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed fo issue and Prosper Rich has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
525,537,194 Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.465 per subscription
share. Upon completion, the outstanding liabiliies of the Company under the
Prosper Rich CBs amounted to approximately HK$244,375,000 will be set off

in full by the Prosper Rich subscription consideration on a dollarfordollar basis.

On 24 February 2022, 525,537,194 subscripfion shares in aggregafe were
allottred and issued to Prosper Rich at the subscription price of HK$0.465 per
subscription share pursuant to the terms of the Prosper Rich Subscription

Agreement.

29. IRARES &

MisE : (&)

(b

(%)

AEBAREEENR201948A11 HEIHHN
TEABRERES N2020F4 8228 &
NRIEZEFIEHRE ([T ETEHRE]) -
i 7K 4 58 ) # 200,000,000 7T 89 = & Al #
RELENRIEPE2010F8 A1 BERE—
FE202068A8 118 (BT ARk E
5]) REFTELEHEE  AQRETZER
BLUATERT -

- AR BB RENEH B AT ER R
FrASEO RN T & ]mRES -

- ESTETRRESRERE 2%
% B (REE) 20195871285
FREA -

TERIEHZENEM B/ 2020577 H -

M2020F8A11H REBAKREERTH
FEABRES -

2021 12A31H - ARBIHEFERILT
ERBWHH B AXFCHEREREHE
TRFECERUERAEERBESRRBR
150.465 %8 TR 525,537 194 g 19 « 1
TR TEARBREFRETARAZARE
BEELN 244,375,000 T AT ERE
RERREFEEETEIE -

W20224 2R 248 » & $£525537,194 %
REENOREBET ERBEWHR 2GR RE
BRI 0.465 B TTAC# R 31T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
Present
Lease payments value of lease payments
HENK HENRERE

2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 2021 F 2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT EUNGLEE ARYETT QN R

Within one year —FR 2,188 4,996 1,858
In the second to fifth years, REZ
inclusive 379 3,537 372

2,567 8,533 2,230 7,158
less: Future finance charges B ARBEE R (337) (1,375)

Present value of lease obligations  HERERRE 2,230 7,158

Less: Amount due for sefflement AN 128 AR ER

within 12 months (shown FEMRRBER
under current liabilities) BTER) (1,858) (3,946)
Amount due for sefflement 128 A W&
after 12 months A
At 31 December 2022, the average effective borrowing rate M2022F 128310  FHERNX
was 3.25% to 4.76% (2021: 3.25%). Interest rates are fixed at B3.25%&F4.76% (2021 F :
the contract dates and thus expose the Group fo fair value interest 3.25%) - MERAHAMETE A%

rafe risk. B A B AR A EFRER -
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31. CONSIDERATION LIABILITIES

31. REAE

y(\yy] 2021
2022 F 2021 &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Nz AR¥ T AREEF T
Consideration liabilities REEE
Value Link Group EEEESE] (a) 121,383
Notes: MisE -

[a) On 4 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in Value Link
Developments Limited (“Value Link") and its subsidiaries (“Value Link Group”). The
aggregate consideration of HK$741,175,000 (equivalent to
RMB594,229,000), of which HK$287,647,000 [equivalent to
RMB230,618,000) shall be settled in cash and HK$453,528,000 (equivalent
to RMB363,611,000) shall be seftled by way of allotment and issue of
consideration shares ("Contingent Shares”). The consideration is subject to
adjusiment pursuant fo the earn-out arrangement (“Earn-out Arrangement”). The

Contingent Shares is dependent on net profits of Value Link Group for the three

years ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, consideration liabilities of RMB121,383,000 was

payable to the vendor.

On 1 January 2022, the vendor of Value Link and the Group signed a borrowing
agreement to fransfer the consideration liabilities of approximately
HK$148,163,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB121,383,000] to other

borrowing which is inferest bearing at 6% per annum and repayable on 31

December 2022.

32. AMOUNTS DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amounts due to a director is unsecured, inferest bearing at

12% per annum and is repayable on demand.

33. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The amount represents government grants received from the
Provincial Finance Bureau, Hunan Province. These government
grants are assefs related and are amortised over the useful life of

the related assets, which is fen years since July 2014.

R20184F 448 AEAKBHERES
BAE(THED) REMBAR ([HELE])
100% B3 #E - R (B A 741,175,000 7T (48
EWNARBES594,229,000T) » H
287,647,000 L (HER AR
230,618,0007L) AR S HEE &
453,528, 0008 L (HMERARM
363,611,000) &% WL % R BETRERKR D
(T RAR1D 1) B E - RIBEFI N2 B (118
FETEZBE] - RERT T HAE - AR ER
RN EBEEHZE2020F 12 A31BIE=
FEMMF -

R2021F12A31 0 BAXNREEEAR
¥ 121,383,000 L FEF -

R2022F 1 A1 A WEEHTBAEEER
& 7K 1p 2 1% 49 148,163,000 7t (FH&E R K
AR¥121,383,00070) zREEBEERE
E A5 AR A R 6% AT H W AR 2022
FI12A31REE-

32. BN —REENE

33.

BN —RERFIRERT  RENE
12% st B BILBSKIERE -

3 SIE XY 8 BY

%R IEI R B E A B BRI
FTHEB) - % ST B Y& E AR &
REBEERERFHANE2014F7
AT HF A -



34. DEFERRED TAX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e HHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

34, IR IH

Depreciation/
amortisation
allowances in
excess of
related
depreciation/ Provision
amortisation  and accruals Total
BHEE
wER/
B BER
e #e FESTE A @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T AREF T
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H (1,697) 6,493 4,796
Credit/|charge] o profit or loss A (R FRER
for the year 761 (6,493) (5,732
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31B K
1 January 2022 2022 1H1H (@306)] - (@36)
Charge to profit or loss for the year B FRER (2106) - (216)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H (1,152 - (1,152)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

AT R ER A B B0 R BT A BV AR A
IR R (RIHR) DA

Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEEE

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T T NS
(1,152) (@36)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB655,493,000 (2021: RMB233,357,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of such losses (2021: RMBnil)
due fo the unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised
tax losses are losses of RMB655,493,000 (2021:
RMB233,357,000) that will expire in 2027. {2021: 2026).

RB|ERR  NEBEARERHEIARE
BARY655493,0007T (2021 £ :
AR ¥ 233,357,0007T) AI A LA 4K 8
R A o R AREHEREN DA
FEORIME - RELZEE (2021 F AR
BT MABRLERAEE - RIERBM
EEBEBRARK 655,493,000t
(20214 : AR¥233,357,0007T) &
B 2027 % (2021 £ : 2026 %) FI
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

34. DEFERRED TAX (Coniinved) 34. EFEBLIE (4)
At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of MRBEHR  BARERRLERBEE
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of B B B 1% A R IR 3 2 N AR B O B
subsidiaries and associates for which deferred tax liabilities have HREAEARK626,670,0007T
not been recognised is RMB626,670,000 (2021 (20214 : AR#G26,124,0007T) °
RMB926,124,000). No liability has been recognised in respect MEBGERZSEZHERR AR
of these differences because the Group is in a position to control AEEBFRENENBOE R EZRANK
the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is MNZEEZRRA RGRAIE I SE
probable that such differences will nof reverse in the foreseeable o -
future.
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. kA
Notes Number of shares RMB'000
P & RO #E ARETFT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FKRO.1 %fﬁﬁﬁ H
At 1 January 2021, 31 December n2021 %1 A
2021, 1 January 2022 and 2021412 ﬂ 3] El :
31 December 2022 2022% 1 A1
2022512 A 3] El 100,000,000,000 8,071,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BRO.1 BT L B
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A1 H 2,631,603,838 211,741
Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant — HRAFF G ZH E 1T
fo annual procurement agreement T (a) 33,882,652 2,829
Issuance of ordinary shares under FRIRERTERTEBR
specific mandate (b) () 790,533,577 65,891
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31 8K
1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 3,456,020,067 280,461
Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant o AR AR (& AT AR (B 25
setflement of convertible bonds BITLER (d) [e] 1,025,537,194 83,150
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31RH 4,481,557,261 363,011
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continved)

Notes:

(a)

(o)

[c)

(d]

15 June 2018, the Company, each of the relevant suppliers and each of the
relevant subscribers entered info an annual procurement agreement, pursuant fo
which each of the suppliers agreed to supply a targeted amount of copper scrap
raw materials to the Group from 16 June 2018 to 15 June 2019, the purchase
price of which shall be partly satisfied with cash and partly safisfied with

consideration shares.

On 1 March 2021, pursuant to the annual procurement agreements, based on
the copper scrap raw materials supplied to the Group, 33,882,652
consideration shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted fo the Directors by a resolution of the shareholders passed at the annual
general meeting held on 5 September 2020. RMB2,829,000 and
RMB135,657,000 had been transferred from consideration share reserve to

share capital and share premium respectively.

On 18 March 2021, 618,490,566 ordinary shares were allotied and issued at
HK$0.465 each to Mianyang Fule Investment Co., ltd (“Mianyang Fule”)
pursuant fo the specific mandate granted at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 26 February 2021 (the “Subscription”). The aggregate subscription price
for all 618,490,566 subscription shares amounted to approximately
HK$287,598,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB261,453,000) was sefiled
by Mianyang Fule by way of setoff against other borrowings of approximately
RMB261,453,000 owed by the Group to Mianyang Fule. Accordingly, there
was no proceeds from the Subscription. RMB51,667,000 and
RMB209,786,000 had been transferred from other borrowings to share capital
and share premium respectively. Since Mianyang Fule held certain exisfing issued
share capital of the Company before completion of the Subscription, there is no

gain on settlement of borrowings by way of issuing shares.

On 19 October 2021, 172,043,011
at HK$0.465 each to Peaceful Wealth International Limited (“Peaceful Wealth”).
The aggregate subscription price for all 172,043,011 subscription shares
amounted to HK$80,000,000 (equivalent to RMB66,143,000) was setiled by
Peaceful Wealth by way of setoff against note payables of HK$80,000,000
owed by the Group to Peaceful Wealth. Accordingly, there was no proceeds
from the subscription and resulted in gain on seftlement of RMB34,985,000.
RMB14,224,000 and RMB17,069,000 had been transferred from note

payables to share capital and share premium respectively.

ordinary shares were allotted and issued

On 24 February 2022, 525,537,194 ordinary shares were allotied and issued
at HK$0.465 each to Prosper Rich. The aggregate subscription price for all
525,537,194 subscription shares amounted to approximately
HK$244,375,000 was settled by Prosper Rich by way of setoff against the
Prosper Rich CBs of approximately RMB198,137,000 owed by the Group to
Prosper Rich. Accordingly, no proceeds have been received by the Group from
the subscription. RMB42,610,000 and RMB155,527,000 had been transferred
from convertible bonds to share capital and share premium respectively. Since
Prosper Rich held certain exisfing issued share capital of the Company before
comp\eﬁon of the subscripﬁon, there is no gain on sefflement of the Prosper Rich

CBs by way of issuing shares.

35. BA& (&)

BiaE

(a]

(c)

MN20185F6R158  KDA - FBEHAHE
Pﬁ&xﬁfeﬁwﬁ%ﬁuTiif g Rk - UL

HEFRBENL2018F6AT16HE20194F
éﬂ]SEH & B IR B2 MY BE B IR H T AR
SE FHRBEARSRRERNES -

M2021 631 R - REFREHRERZ &
e T 7S 55 B A B 5 IR MR - AR 8 70 2020
FORSAETHRRBFARE LEKRER
BHORZERTESEN —RE#E
33,882,652 R ERMN D ELERET - AR
¥ 2,829,0007C & A R ¥ 135,657,000 7T X
BROBEFHC D HIEBEEBRARBEDEE -

R2021 3188  RIK2021F2A26H
BITHREFR ARG R EOFRE KR
0.465# TR 618,490,566 % & i i% B 7 43

EACERRAR ([EEE%]) M RE
T ((REEIE]) ° 618,490,566 I R 1 B 1D
M 4R B EY /287,598,000 T (FHE R
ANREE261,453,00070) * E AR5 E %
HHASEBERBEELEZEMEROAR
?!?526] 453,000 CHI T R&EH - At - #EE

REEHZFBRIE - ARMES],667,000
E&/\E’%ZOQ7BOOOOEEI\M%#\ /\EIJ
ERERARBRGREE BHRGHEELENR
BEEEKAFEE TARA BB BITR
AN PABEATRRAD B T 2 A A BRI S o

2021108198 - §KR0.465F T
172,043 01T REBERERAEREERAER D
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35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continuved)

Notes: (Continued)

le) On 24 February 2022, 500,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
at HK$0.465 each to Huarong. The aggregate subscription price for all
500,000,000 subscription shares approximately amounted to
HK$232,500,000 was setfled by Huarong by way of set-off against the
Huarong CBs of approximately RMB188,509,000 owed by the Group to
Huarong. Accordingly, no proceeds have been received by the Group from the
subscription. RMB40,540,000 and RMB147,969,000 had been transferred
from convertible bonds to share capital and share premium respectively. Since
Huarong held certain existing issued share capital of the Company before
completion of the subscription, there is no gain on seflement of the Huarong CBs
of approximately RMB 188,509,000 by way of issuing shares.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the refurn to the shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants include director or employee of
the Group and any other person (including a consultant or
advisor) who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed
or will confribute to the Group. The Company has a share option
scheme which was adopted on 28 January 2014 and has come
into effect upon the Company’s listing on 21 February 2014
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue af any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible parficipant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

35.

36.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved)

Share options granted fo a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject fo approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted fo a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or fo any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of
the grant] in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences affer a certain vesting period and ends
on a dafe which is not lafer than five years from the date of the
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; [ii] the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
fo vofe af shareholders’ meetings.

36. LRI AERNSR @)

AEESE ARAEEBTHRABRE
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved) 36. LR AEBNSR &)
Defails of the specific categories of options are as follows: BREZ BB BHBOT
Exercise price
Tranche Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period HK$
e
it REBH FEH gcd B
Options granted to executive directors and employees
RYuTESREENERE
A 2 uly 2014 One third on the first anniversary, one third on 10 years 1.13
the second anniversary, and the remaining on
the third anniversary of the grant
R201457 A28 ZHZ-RELNE-BEF ZpZ-REZEF 10F
RESRE=BF
B 7 May 2015 Same as above 10 years 1.68
R2015%5R78 Eis 105
C 31 May 2016 Same as above 10 years 3.66
R201655H 318 Eis 105
Options granted to certain eligible participants
RYETRERSHENBRE
D On 12 December 2017 On 31 March 2019, subject fo the graniees achieving 6.3 years 3.7

the pre-defermined performance farget for the period
from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2018
and the grantees remaining as eligible persons
at the date of vesfing

201712/ 128 MN2019F3A31 B EARABTRRN 2017 6.3F
12ATRZE2018F12A31 HMETEERE
BABARGERABESREERAL

E On 14 December 2021 One third on the first anniversary, one third on 10 years 0.465

the second anniversary, and the remaining on
the third anniversary of the grant

R20215128 148 SHZ-REENE-BE =pz-RE-BE 10F
REBRE=EEF

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. BE—BBAAEE HBRENR
FR e
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved) 36. LRI AERNSR @)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as FARARAITEBBREFBHT
follows:

2022 2021

20225 2021 F
Weighted Weighted
Number of LECETN Number of average
YT SIS share optfions — exercise price
il S it B2
BREHE TEE Wi TE(E
'000 HKS 000 HKS
T8’ B TR BT

Qutstanding at the beginning RENRETE

of the year 164,808 0.68 126,835 2.09
lapsed/forfeited during the year — FRKE/ HFEA (15,325) (0.47) (99,027 [2.19)
Cranted during the year RERE > = 137,000 0.47
Outstanding af the end of the year A ERARETTE 149,483 L 164,808 0.68
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RERA] 1T 68,367 ] 27,808 1.74

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted S 2R 1 AR 1T 5 B UM 2 I 15 84
average remaining confractual life of 8 years (2021: 9 vyears) TEXNFHREF (2021 F : 9F) »
and the exercise prices range from HK$0.465 to HK$3.7 mATEBRIN 0465 BLE 3.7 AT

(2021: HK$0.465 to HK$3.7). (2021 % - 0.465BTLEI7BTT) °
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37. RESERVE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the Company and certain subsidiaries with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
nofe 4 fo the consolidated financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly capital contributions
from shareholders in respect of the contingent considerations
for the acquisition of Jinxin and Xiangbei in November
2010 and August 2011 amounted to RMB33,226,000
and RMB11,555,000 respectively borne by the
shareholders and deemed capital contribution of
RMB77,700,000 being the amount due to the shareholders
waived by the shareholders on 31 December 2012.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are disfributable fo
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off ifs
debits as they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

37. &

4 55 (B A AN 4F 8 BB AE F IS M BE 1 2
EREDIGAPBRROEA S
B85 27 -

(i)

(iii)

BE 5tk
EXFEERREYIFUNARE
RGN ARRA NETHE
RAEINM B HRERAELNFAB I
KEHE ZHBREBEAVHR
RMTEARTE A S S BOREIE ©

BEXRMEHE
EXAREIZEERERR
2010F 11 AKR2011 F8 AUiE
TEMMIENIARE (DHIA
AR 33,226,000 & A R ¥
11,555,0007T © BARR SR AHE) &
B UARBRERR2012F 12 A 31
PHEENBRRRBEBARE
77,700,0007T » ERIEITE °

g
BEERNEAXFAESESA
AEEE -REMAEFS QA
o ARAIRMEERNESA
DIRTARABRE - HEEBEER
DIRBEZB& - NRABIZABEE
WX BEXRBGERTBERHE
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37. RESERVE (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
law applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the
subsidiaries are required to make appropriations to the
Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF”). At least 10% of the affer
tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable
PRC accounting standards and regulations must be
allocated to the SRF until the cumulative total of the SRF
reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. Subject
to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not
available for dividend distribution to shareholders.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the portion of the
fair value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group at grant date that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-sefled share option expense in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the option is exercised, or be released
directly fo retained profits if the option is lapsed or forfeited.

Consideration share reserve

Consideration share reserve arises from the issue of
consideration shares less cash consideration incurred
perfaining fo the consideration shares issued. Upon the
allotment of the consideration shares, the consideration
share reserve will be transferred fo share capital and share
premium.

37. #E @

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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37. RESERVE (Continued)

(vi) Consideration share reserve (Confinved)

On 15 August 2017, the Company, each of the relevant
suppliers and each of the relevant subscribers entered into
an Annual Procurement Agreement (“the APA#1"), pursuant
fo which each of the suppliers agreed to supply a targeted
amount of copper scrap raw materials to the Group from
15 August 2017 to 14 August 2018. For each fon of
copper scrap raw materials supplied under the APA#1, the
Company will pay up to RMB3,000 by way of issuance of
a maximum number of 1,172 consideration shares at an
issue price of HK$3.00 per consideration share and settle
the remainder in cash. For defails, please refer to the

Company's announcement on 15 August 2017.

As the targeted amount of supply of copper scrap raw
materials from the suppliers is 56,000 fons in aggregate,
the maximum number of consideration shares that the
Company may issue pursuant to the APA#1 is 65,632,000

shares.

On 15 June 2018, the Company, each of the relevant
suppliers and each of the relevant subscribers entered into
an Annual Procurement Agreement (“the APA#2"), pursuant
fo which each of the suppliers agreed to supply a targeted
amount of copper scrap raw materials to the Group from
16 June 2018 to 15 June 2019. For each ton of copper
scrap raw materials supplied under the APA#2, the
Company will pay up to RMB3,000 by way of issuance of
a maximum number of 734 consideration shares at an issue
price of HK$5.00 per consideration share and seftle the
remainder in cash. For details, please refer to the

Company's announcement on 15 June 2018.

37. #E @)

(vi)
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37. RESERVE (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Consideration share reserve (Confinved)

As the targeted amount of supply of copper scrap raw
materials from the suppliers is 160,000 tons in aggregate,
the maximum number of consideration shares that the
Company may issue pursuant to the APA#2 is
117,440,000 shares. The outstanding consideration
shares will be allotted and issued to the subscribers in one
lot within 10 business days from 15 June 2019. A
supplemental agreement was signed, the outstanding
consideration shares allotted and issued to the subscribers
in one lot would be deferred by 6 months or a date
mutually agreed by both parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
purchased 24,6306 tons of copper scrap raw materials from

these suppliers and respectively, the Group recognised
consideration share reserve of RMB/3,210,000.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve arises from the residual
amount of the net proceeds of convertible bonds less the
fair value of the liability component and the derivative
component at the dafe of issuance. The equity component
will remain as a separate line item within equity unfil the
conversion option is exercised (in which case the
corresponding portion of the equity component will be
fransferred to share capital and share premium). VWhere the
conversion opfion remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance will be released to the accumulated losses.

37. #E @

(vi)

(vii)
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. IRAR

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group was in progress of various legal litigations
relating to bank and other borrowings and trade and other
payables. As a result of these litigations, various bank accounts
were frozen and various properties, right-of-use assets and
invenfories were seized. The amount of aforesaid relevant bank
balance, property, plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and
inventories as af 31 December 2022 are stated as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

REEATHHERALEBT $‘§IIE
HERZHARRITREMERRE S
Ko oAl &SRR Z AR AR AR © EEE/\\lit
FR - ZERTPOCHRE AR
ZIEME ERAREERFECDRKE
B o M2022% 128310 LaltiReT
B WX BELRE EAEE
ERTFEZEEMT

R20225 12831 H

RMB’000

AR®T T

Bank balance RITHE 261
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRR 78,856
Rightof-use assets EREEE 43,317
Inventories 78 2,384

124,818

Save for the above-mentioned litigations, the Group did not have
any significant confingent liabilities at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

B Lt e b 2 SRRASN - AREE R 2022
FR2021 12431 AW EEMEX
SARBIE -

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EARAEYE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Contracted but provided for: ERINEBEERE -

— Property, plant and equipment —ME - BEERB 19,752
— land-use-rights — TR AR 12,545

32,297
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BB AR S
(@) In oddition to those related party tfransactions and balances (@) BRRGEMBmEREMBYEE
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial W F R 5 RERIN - NEE
statements, the Group had the following material MAFEEREM T IATRS
fransactions with ifs related parties during the year:

2022 2021

2022 2021 F

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt ARBTF T ARBTT

Delivery cost charged by Mianyang  #8F5 & 1838 & B & f#

Jin Xunhuan Finance Storage AR AF(—FfHHA
limited, a private company AMEMEEZR
controlled by a daughter of Mr. Yu  FT#ZE#IEYFLA R R])
Jiangiu FIT Y B B 32455 AR (i) 7013
loan secured by the property, plant & # R & A28 B
and equipment of Gushan (—EmaEREE
Vegetable, a private company 2 B LA R R]) #Y
controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu ME - BERREER (if) 12,000
loan secured by the property, plant B 5% H 48 F5 4R FI{E
and equipment of Baohe Jiahao, o (— ] R 2 5= B Bt & 12 =)
private company controlled by an EHIEIFLA R T]) 2
associate of the Group M - BB LR EER (iii) 41,000
Loan secured by the property, plont Bk LG BRE (—FH
and equipment by Shanghai HETEREELR
Mengjun, a private company ZHIFLARTR]) 2
confrolled by a daughter of Mr. Yu  #12% ~ R E KRB EIR
Jiangjiu (iv) 5,000
Notes: M &E -
(i) The delivery cost is charged at a rafe ranging from RMB28 to RMB680 (i) TRNRARBWARB28TEAR
per ton (2021: RMB28 to RMB390 per fon). ¥ 6807T (2021 F - §HEARE 28 7T
EAREKI0TT) -
(ii) At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB12,000,000 (2021: (i) R2022F12A31 8 BRITEZAR
RMB12,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of #12,000,0007T (20214 : AR
Gushan Vegetable. 12,000,0007T) By A2 AE 2 ¥ %

BB R AR EAR -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)
(a) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB4 1,000,000 (2021
RMB41,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of

Baohe Jiahao.

(iv) At 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMBnil (2021: RMB5,000,000)
were secured by property, plant and equipment of Shanghai Mengjun
Investment Management Co. (“Shanghai Mengjun”), a private company

controlled by a daughter of Mr. Yu Jiangiu.

(b) Other related party fransactions:

(i) Entrusted loans of RMB299,116,000 (2021:
RMB299,116,000] were secured by an aggregate
amount of 310,317,000 ordinary shares (2021
310,317,000 ordinary shares) in the Company held
by Ocean Through limited, First Harvest Global
Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, which are
companies wholly owned by Mr. Huang Weiping,
key management personnel of the Group.

(i)  The Huarong CBs of RMB231,720,000 (2021:
RMB385,952,000) were secured by 278,000,000
ordinary shares in the Company held by Epoch Keen,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu Jiangiu, the
chairman and an executive director of the Company.

(i) During the year, the Group was granted unconditional
government subsidies of RMB12,591,000 (2021
RMB3,600,000) from Youxian District Finance
Bureau, Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. The
subsidies were received through Boahe Fushan.
Baohe Fushan has the discretionary right to allocate
and distribute the government subsidies, with
reference fo the amounts of tax payments made by the
entities.

(a)

(b)

40. BB AR H (&)

(%)

Wit (&)

li)  F2022F12A318  RITERAR
#41,000,0007¢ (2021 6 : AR
41,000,0007T) BERMEE 2 W% -
B RAREER -

(iv) R2022F12A31 B - RITERAR
¥Z T (20214 : AR# 5,000,000
TR EBEEREEEERAR( L
BEED (—HaaEREELEM
EHIEFAARE) PR o

HMEETRS

il 2 & 8B X AR &
299,116,0007t (2021 £ -
AR#299,116,0007T) T3
HFEBRAR - ELRIK
ERABIEREBEEBRA
AFAENALRQA AR
310,317,000 i & i@ AX
(20214 : 310,317,000 I&
BaEk) IREEM - A%
FRAHAREETEEEE
AEEREFREZEHRS -

i) EMAIBEREFARE
231,720,0007t (2021 £ -
AR #385,952,0007T) T3
HARRERANTESH
BNEER2EHRERRIRE
A AR 7F 278,000,000
P 3 A ER (LR R

i) FA- NEEESO)IER
55 T bt {1 [ B B R HE 9% )
R fF BT R AR®
12,591,0007¢ (2021 % :
AR % 3,600,0007T) ° #%
SR E B BRNE L
YCER o RANE LLIJES BT /8
AW DB TAREHE - (RIE
LERSBREEROTRE
BB D BERFAHA -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Coniinved)

() Compensation of key management personnel

HFEMBERRME

40. BB AR H (&)

) EZEEZAEHMH

Shortterm employee benefits
Postemployment benefits
Equitysetiled share opfion expense  #E % A5 H REARHE R X

75 Hi{R B 48 F
BERRIR 18 F

2022 2021

2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
9,030 8,868

150 147

2,318 275
11,498 9,290

Remuneration for the Company’s directors and five highest
paid employees, is disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial stafements.

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transaction

(i

(i)

On 24 February 2022, 525,537,194 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.465 each
fo Prosper Rich. The aggregate subscription price for
all 525,537,194 subscription shares amounted to
approximately HK$244,375,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB198,137,000) was seftled by
Prosper Rich by way of setoff against the Prosper Rich
CBs of approximately RMB198,137,000 owed by
the Group to Prosper Rich. Accordingly, there was no
proceeds from the subscription.

On 24 February 2022, 500,000,000 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.465 each
fo Huarong. The aggregate subscription price for all
500,000,000 subscription shares approximately
amounted to HK$232,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB188,509,000) was seftled by
Huarong by way of setoff against the Huarong CBs
of approximately RMB188,509,000 owed by the
Group to Huarong. Accordingly, there was no
proceeds from the subscription. RMB40,540,000
and RMB147,269,000 had been transferred from
convertible bonds to share capital and share premium
respectively.

ARRMEERDERSHHESR
ZHHREAM B RERMEE2
PR EE -

4. ZEREREBRME

(o) EEBHREXRS

(]  72022F2H24B 8K
0.4657% 7T 89 525,537,194
P& B AR E A7 B A 3 N 3%
17 © 525,537,194 IR R HE R
W #ERBELDLR
244,375,000% 7T (HE R
AR #¥198,137,0007T) -
EHTFEREEASES
FTEZFEABRRESFNT
AEE - At BIEABES
TBZ PTG RA

i) M2022%F 28248 8K
0.465 7% 7T #) 500,000,000
% 378 A% B 1) 2 i Bic 2% % B
1T » 500,000,000 A% 57 8% i%
mHBeREEDH A
232,500,000/ 7T (¥ &
AR #188,509,0007T) °
EHERNEEAERS
Er o ERAIBRRESOA
R ¥ 188,509,000 Ly 77
NEE A SIERES
HZFBEHRE - AR
40,540,000t X A R
147,969,000 7t 2 9 Bl A]
MR EHE AR R D &

go
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Maijor non-cash transaction (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 1 January 2022, the vendor of Value link and the
Group signed a borrowing agreement fo transfer the
consideration liabilities of approximately
HK$148,163,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB121,383,000] to other borrowing with interest
rate of 6% per annum and repayable on 31
December 2022. Up fo the date of this report, the
amount has not been paid.

On 18 March 2021, 618,490,566 ordinary shares
were allotted and issued at HK$0.465 each to
Mianyang Fule Investment Co., lid ("Mianyang Fule”)
pursuant to the specific mandate granted at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 26 February
2021 [the “Subscription”). The aggregate subscription
price for all 618,490,566 subscription shares
amounted to approximately HK$287,598,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB261,453,000) was
setled by Mianyang Fule by way of setoff against
other borrowings of approximately
RMB261,453,000 owed by the Group to Mianyang
Fule. Accordingly, there was no proceeds from the
Subscription.

On 19 October 2021, 172,043,011 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued at HK$0.465 each
to Peaceful Wealth International Limited (“Peaceful
Wealth”). The aggregate subscription price for all
172,043,011 subscription shares amounted to
HK$80,000,000 (equivalent to RMB66, 143,000)
was seftled by Peaceful Wealth by way of setoff
against note payables of HK$80,000,000 owed by
the Group to Peaceful Wealth. Accordingly, there
was no proceeds from the subscripfion.

41. ZERERERKT @)

(a)

TEFRRERS (E)

(iii)

(iv)

2022F 1 A1 H @ HED
87 ER R E RS K W
% 0 8% 148,163,000% 7T
(HERHOARE
121,383,0007T) R (ESE
BEEBEEEAMER  FHX
6% WA 2022F 12
ASITHEZR BEAMSE
B8 - SZFRIERE AR ©

M2021F3 18R RIE
2021 2 A26 A #1789 R
R R K & & o Rl
- FRO0.465F TH
618,490,566 k& B E M)
mEERRERGRAR (T4
GE]) & RET (R
FEEIE]) 2 618,490,506 /%
REBEOPNERBEOR
287,598,0007% 7T (#& R
AR#¥261,453,0007T) -
Bl ERENEEAEE
EREGEE 2 EMERLY
AR ®261,453,000 7T &Y
FAEE - Fit - ERE
EIRZFI1FHRIA -

MR2021E10H 198 - &
0.4657% T8 172,043,011
EBERE R EREERER
AE([EFE])BC%EMET-
172,043,011 BB R 17 22
i {8 42 58 % 80,000,000 #
T (HERARTE
66,143,0007T) B H & A
AEAKEELERE R
80,000,000 7T &) JE 1+ =
BRI AEE - Bt HE
REBERZ PSR ©
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

41. ZERERERKT @)

METBDELZAEEH

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

The following table shows the Group's changes in liabilities

TR AEBFARE RS E

£Z8

E #h

arising from financing activities during the year: Bl
Interest- Amounts Total
bearing dueto  liabilities
bank and Amounts  associates from
Other Noe other  Convertible leose  duetoa andrelatled  financing
accruals  payables  borrowings bonds liabilities director porties  achivifies
[
2t FTRETR Eft HEARR BEZDH
EfER EMEE  HAER TRRER HE8E EERE BYELIRE BafE
RMB'OO0  RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMB'00O0  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETLT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARET:
Asat T January 2021 202151818 26,713 89479 1,232,104 553,004 11,122 - 294,183 2,206,605
Changes in cash flows Benedy 135,183 - 222825 - (5,031) - 45438 228,049
Non-cash changes FHEE
— finance costs — BERA 110,603 - - 49234 1,581 - - 161418
— reclassification fo ot i E
other payable Hi 3B - - (7922 - - - [158,637)  (166,559)
— seftlement of - BBETRD
nofe payables by EEENRE
issuing shares - 66,143 - - - - - [66,143)
— disposal of an - HE-H
associates YN - - - — - - (1250000 (125,000)
— seftlement of - BBETRN
borrowings by BEER
issuing shares - - (261453 - - - - (261453
— exchange differences -EREER - (1.817) - (16,505) (514) - [207)  (19,043)
As ot 31 December 2021 #2021
and 1 January 2022 12A318 K
202F1A718 102,133 21519 1185554 585733 7,158 - 55777 1957874
Changes in cash flows ReREsy (16,951) - 20,199 - (4,398) 200 5,585 4,635
Non-cash changes ¥ReEH
— finance costs — R 119,062 - - 17,072 1,042 7 - 137,183
— additions of -ENHEasE
lease liabilifies - - - - 953 - - 953
— reclassification from - BHOE
consideration REEE
liabilties - - 121,383 - - - - 121,383
— termination of lease - &IIHEE - - - - (2767) - - (2.767)
— seflement of - BEETRG
converfible bonds EERR
by issuing shares &% - - - (386,646) - - - (386,646)
— exchange differences -ERER 1,578 1,092 11,234 15,561 242 - 723 31,330
As at 31 December 2022 W2022%128318 205,822 23511 1,338,370 231,720 2,230 207 62,085 1,863,945
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) ZADBFBMRREK

2022

2022 F
RMB’000
AR®T R

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Inferests in associates

FRBEE
RHTE R BRI E

B E AR

47,106

47,106

193
66

259

47,365

44,053
23,511
212,014
8,477
231,720

519,775

(519,516

(472,410)

(472,410)

363,611
(836,021)

Current assets REEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries VNGRS
Amounts due from associates JE U B N B FRIE
Cash and cash equivalents RehBHEeFHEEE
Total assets WEE

Current liabilities rEa s

Other payables Hfth FE A FRIR

Note payables JENRIE

Amounts due fo subsidiaries VRl EENGIE S
Amount due to a related party J& < — & BB B 75 RRIR
Convertible bonds AR E

Net current (liabilities)/assets ERE(AE)BE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBERE
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS F(Am), AE
Capital and reserves EXK

Share capital P&

Reserves {1

TOTAL EQUITY R

(472,410)

42. HBRAREAE D AHE

2021

2021 %
RMB'O00
ARETT

887,319
48,001

@35,320

1,341,841
472
123

1,342,436
2,277,756
28,613
21,519
194,054

7,889
585,733

837,808
504,628
1,439,948
1,439,948
280,461
1,159,487

1,439,948
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. RN KR A QB FEE =)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) A2RATEFE
Share-based  Convertible
Share Exchange Capital payment  bonds equity Consideration  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  share reserve losses Total
NERHA
28K TBRRES &
RAEE ERfE BARAE DES1 REEE R it EE @z

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREBTT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR

Asat 1 Jonuary 2021 R2021E1818 1,538,800 122,438 289 836 76,004 22,285 138,486 (1,068,777 974,205
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - [17,397) 117,397)
Exchange differences on translafion  #EEEMELER - 121,620) - - - - - 121,620)
Total comprehensive loss FRRABREE

for the year - 121,620) - - - - (17,397) 139,017)
Share opfions lapsed/forfeited BREXR/ BRA - - - 161,339) - - 61,339 -
Issuance of share opfions B{7iiE - - - 273 - - - 273
Issuance of ordinary shares BTEAk 362,512 - - - - (138,486) - 224,026
Transfer o accumulated losses HEREZHER - - - - (22,285 - 22,285 -

As ot 31 December 2021 and R2021E12R31 Bk

1 January 2022 2021818 1,901,321 44,058 289 836 14,938 - - (1,002,550 1,159,487
Loss for the year FREER - - - - - - (2,385,322 (2,385,322
Exchonge differences on fonslofion BB E £ HER £ - 81,495 - - - - - 81,495
Total comprehensive loss FRREBRLEE

for the year - 81495 - - - - (2,385,322)  (2,303,827)
Share options lapsed/forfeited BREAUW/ HREL - - - (33) - - 33 -
Equitysetfed sharebased INEREEURG A

payments B2 H7 - - - 4,939 - - - 4,939
Issuance of ordinary shores BTLER 303,496 - - - - - - 303,496
Issuance cost BITRA [116) - - - - - - [116)

As at 31 December 2022 R®2022%12A318 2,204,701 37,437 289,836 19,844 - - [3,387,839) (836,021]
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE A3. ZREM B A RNEE
COMPANY

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022

Place of R2022%12A31H
incorporation/ AATEGEEZE L
Name of the subsidiary establishment Paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
&L
KEARAE AMRERBE HRBRA H# HE FEEB
Engen Invesiments Limited [‘Engen’) BV United States dollars 100% - Invesiment holding
('USD"} 10,225
BeRERRAR(BE]) HBRAHE 10,225%7 100% - REER
(T%&x))
True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
[“True Excel’)
REERERAR (X&) 5 1T - 100% HREER
Alpha Legend Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
["Alpha Legend"’)
BEERER AT ([RE]) EE BT - 100% H®EER
Alpha Business Invesiments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Invesiment holding
["Alpha Business’)
SHREFRAR(5H]) BB BT - 100% REZRK
Alpha Universe Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Invesiment holding
["Alpha Universe’)
BasEaRAR ((BH)) B 1T - 100% HREER
Fanmay Limited ["Fanmay’) BVI HK$1 100% - Investment holding
ZXERAR(TEE) HERAES BT 100% - REER
China Recycling Aluminium Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
["Recycling Aluminium’)
TEERAFARAR ((FREX]) 53 1T - 100% HREER
Cosmo Hope Limited ["Cosmo"| BVI usD1 100% - Investment holding
Cosmo Hope Limited ([ Cosmo]) RERLHS 17 100% - REZR
China Mefal Resources Corporation BV USD1 100% - Investment holding
Limited ("CMR’|
China Metal Resources Corporation £ BRZ & 1% 100% - REBRR
Limited (TCMR )
Hong Kong Jin Xunhuan Group limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Invesiment holding
["HKJXH')
EECEREERRAA 5 1T - 100% HREER
([BBREER])
China Metal Resources (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Invesiment holding
Limited ("CMR HK’)
TEEBER(FE)BERAF 5 1B - 100% HREER

((HEEBERERE])
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

43. XD T B LTINS &)

COMPANY [(Continved)
Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022
Place of R2022%12A318
incorporation/ ARAREGESZE D
Name of the subsidiary establishment Paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
R
WEARAE AMRERbE HERE =§:3 BE IEXB
China Zhaofeng Copper Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Invesiment holding
["Zhaofeng’|
FEDKEREERAA([XE])  FE 1T - 100% REZRK
Value Link Developments Limited BVI Usb100 100% - Invesiment holding
["Value Link")
HEERAHRLA ([HE]) REBRAEE 100% 7T 100% - REER
Silver Eminent Group Limited BVI usb100 100% - Investment holding
|"Silver Eminent’)
PIHEMARAR ([ RERIES 100% 7T 100% - REER
Sky Harvest Global Limited BVI Usb100 100% ~ Investment holding
|"Sky Harvest')
RERFARAR ([RE)) HEBRAEE 1007 100% - REER
China Sanmei Copper Limited Hong Kong usD100 - 100%  Invesiment holding
PE=XHEBRAF EE 100%7T - 100% REER
China Rongsheng Metal Limited Hong Kong usD100 - 100%  Invesiment holding
TEBREBARAF 5 100%7T - 100% HREER
Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., lid. The PRC RMB 100,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap copper and
["Jinxin"| Limited liability electrolytic copper for the
company manufacturing of copper
[Hong Kong, Macau related products
and Taiwan legal
person sole
investment)
BHeERNXARAR (&8 mEAREE AR¥ - 100% MIAEFEBERMBRN
RAl(BRE 100,000,0007T FE 5 [ B 5
EABE)
Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap copper and
Co., Lid. ["Xiangbei")* Limited liability electrolytic copper for the
company manufacturing of copper
[Hong Kong, Macau related products
and Taiwan legal
person sole
investment)
AR R AR AT mEAREE AR¥ - 100% MIAEFEBERMBRN
(¥4 1) RAl(BRE 80,000,0007¢ FE S [ B 5

ENEE)
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. P EIMB A RS @)
COMPANY [Continved)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022

Place of R2022%12A318
incorporation/ ARAREGESZE D
Name of the subsidiary establishment Paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
HEmBL
MELASERE AMREEDE HERE =§:3 BE IEXB
Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., lid.  The PRC RMBS50,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap copper and
["Tongxin")* limited liability electrolytic copper for the
company (sole manufacturing of copper
proprieforship related products

invested or controlled
by natural person|

whaiEmERRAR([RHE) FEBERET ARE - 100% MIAEREEERFAD
NE(BA 50,000,000 7T E3 )& 4
ARERER
HEANBE)
Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Lid.  The PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
|"Baohe Xinshiji’|* Limited liability power fransmission and
company distribution cables

[Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan legal

person sole
investment)
M)A R EER AT mEBREE AR - 100% HAERHEXEKES
(TRMztEAR]) DEI(BRZ 150,000,0007¢
EANBE)
Mianyang Bache Taiyue The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Communications Cable Co., Lid. Limited liability communication cables
|"Baohe Taiyue')* company (Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan
legal person sole

investment)
BERNFUBEEEERLA HPHEERAE ARE - 100% HERHEEREES
([RAZM]) RA(BRE 80,000,0007¢
EABE)
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials  The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., lid. ["Jin Xunhuan")* Limited liability anodic copper and frading of
company (sole electrolytic copper
proprieforship

invested or controlled
by natural person|

BEeEREBMHERAF REARAL AR - 100% AENHEGEEMN
([&fER)) RE(BAA 30,000,0007¢ BE R
REFEB

ENBE)
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY [Continved)

Name of the subsidiary
MELASERE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HFMKEL
AR R

Paid up capital
HERE

43. XD T B LTINS &)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022
720225128318
ARAREGESZE D

Direct Indirect

=R LiE=3

Principal activity

IREHR

Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal Trading
Co., lid. ("Shanghai Shijian")*

LERREBHEERR AR
([LERE))

Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Co., Lid.
["Xinhuan Aluminium")*

BHEERRFARLR ((BREX))

Shanghai Bujiang Mefal Material

Co., Lid. ("Bujiang’)*

LESTEBMHARAR ([HI))

Sichuan Boxin copper Co., lid
["Boxin")*

mIEERxERAR ((BE])

The PRC
Limited liability

company (Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

legal person sole
investment)
mEERAE
RA|(BRE
EANBE)

The PRC
Limited liability

company Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

legal person sole

investment)
mEAREE

RAl(BRE

ENEE)

The PRC
Limited liability
company (sole
proprieforship

invested or controlled
by nonnatural person|

REARAE
AFGEERA
RAHIZBRE
ENEE)

The PRC
Limited liability
company (sole
proprieforship

invested or controlled
by nonnatural person|

REARAE
AFGEERA
RAHIZBRE
ENEE)

RMB60,000,000

AR
60,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000

AR¥
30,000,000

RMB30,000,000

AR
30,000,0007T

RMB10,500,000

AR
10,500,0007¢

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Trading of copper related
products

BEEMRHEER

Trading of aluminium related
products

BERBHABER

Inactive

B EET

Processing of scrap copper and
electrolytic copper for the
manufacturing of copper
related products

T E AR E T A R
3 % B % 5
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. P EIMB A RS @)
COMPANY [Continved)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022
Place of R2022612A31H
incorporation/ ARAREGESZE D
Name of the subsidiary establishment Paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
HEmBL
MELASERE AMREEDE HERE =§:3 BE IEXB

Mianyang Yuxin Recycling The PRC RMBS50,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Development Co., lid. ("Yuxin']* Limited liability products
company (sole
proprieforship
invested or controlled
by natural person|

BEEEBLERAEARLT REBRAE AR - 100% EBEFEHER
(T8&)) DE(BAA 50,000,0007T
RE SRR
ENEE)
Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Nonferrous ~ The PRC RMBS50,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Metal Co., Lid. ["Xiangbei Youse')*  Limited liability products

company (foreign
investment company
as sole proprietor)

HMARERILE RSB R mEAREE AR¥ - 100% EEFAEER
ARAF(THLER]) RAI(MERE 50,000,0007t
LEEABE)
Sichuan Zhixin Metal Materials The PRC RMB49,470,300 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., lid. ["Zhixin"|* Limited liability products

company {Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan
legal person sole

investment)
W HEeBEAERAR ((HE]) FEERERT AR - 100% EBEHABER
RE|(BRZE 49,470,3007C
EANBE)
Fuging Zhongjin Nonferrous Mefal The PRC RMB 100,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., lid. |"Fuqing Zhongjin")* Limited liability products

compoany Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan
legal person sole

investment)
BETSECLBMEERARA FEBERET ARE - 100% EBERBHEER
([BEHR&]) DA (BRE 100,000,000 7T

ENBE)
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43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY [Continved)

Name of the subsidiary
MELASERE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HFMKEL
AR R

Paid up capital
HERE

43. XD T B LTINS &)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022
720225128318
ARAREGESZE D

Direct Indirect

=R LiE=3

Principal activity

IREHR

Chengxin Copper Co., Lid
|"Chengxin’|*

RERNFERAF (RE])

Ganzhou Sanmei Copper Co., Lid.

BIN=XHEERDA

Mianyang Zhaofeng Copper Co., Lid.
[Zhaofeng’|

BEXEHXERAF(KE])

Hubei Rongsheng Copper Co., Lid
["Rongsheng’)

The PRC
Limited liability
company (sole
proprieforship

invested or controlled

by natural person|
mEERAE
RA(BAA
RAIERE
ENBE)

The PRC
Limited liability

compoany Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

legal person sole
investment)
mEERAE
RAE(BRE
EABE)

The PRC
Limited liability

company (Taiwan,

Hong Kong or

Macau joint venture|

REERAE
RE(EER
a&)

The PRC
Limited liability

compoany Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

legal person sole
investment)

MtRREBREERAR ((MR]) TEERAE

LR (BRE
ENBE)

RMB10,000,000

AR
10,000,0007T

HK$12,000,000

12,000,000/ 7T

RMB10,000,000

AR
10,000,0007T

RMB7,602,000

AR
7,602,0007T

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Processing of scrap copper for
the manufacturing of
copper related products

MTAERBBERRBN
FE$

Investment holding

REZR

Trading of copper related
products

BEMAHER

Processing of scrap copper for
the manufacturing of
copper related products

MTAERBBERRBN
FE$



176 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited « Bl & B & R F A AR A 7
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e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. P EIMB A RS @)
COMPANY [Continved)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022

Place of R2022612A31H
incorporation/ ARAREGESZE D
Name of the subsidiary establishment Paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
HEmBL
MELASERE AMREEDE HERE =§:3 BE IEXK
Ningbo Jinxuan Nonferrous Metal The PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., lid* Limited liability products

company (foreign
investment company
as sole proprietor)

ENcEAesBMAARRA HEARAE AR - 100% ERFHBER
NAE (M 60,000,000t
RELFEA
BE)
Ningbo Xiangbei Supply Chain The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Management Co., lid * Limited liability products

company (foreign
investment company
as sole proprietor]
BRI HERERERAR TEARET ARE - 100% BEREHER
RE(SME 80,000,0007¢
BARZEA
BE)

Fujian Zhongijin Aluminum Technology ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., lid * Limited liability products
company (sole
proprieforship
invested or conirolled
by nonnatural person|

BERERENRARAF mEBREE AR - 100% EEFEHER
DA GEEAA 100,000,0007t
RAHIZBRE
EABE)
Huili Boxin Copper Manufaciuring The PRC RMB 18,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., Lid* Limited liability products

company (foreign
investment company
as sole propriefor]

SRESFEMHEBRAT mEBRAE AR - 100% EBEFEHER
REl (M 18,000,000 7t
REGEEA
BE)

Chongging Yuming Steel Distribution  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related

Co., lid* Limited liability products

company (legal
person sole
investment)

BERMSHAMERERAF mEAREE AR¥ - 100% EEFAEER
RAECEA 100,000,000 7T

BE)
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COMPANY [Continved)

Name of the subsidiary
MELASERE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HFMKEL
AR R

HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

43. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

Paid up capital
HERE

43. XD T B LTINS &)

Equity interest attributable fo the
Company at 31 December 2022
720225128318
ARAREGESZE D

Direct Indirect  Principal activity

=R BE IEXB

Chongging Yuming Aluminum
Co., lid*

EEAKIRERRAF

Chongging Yuming Recycling
Resources Development Co., Lid*

EEA#BLEERAEERAA

Chongging Yuming Metal materials
Co., lid*

ERR#EBYHARARF

Hubei Pangxin Nonferrous Metals

Co., lid*

HIEREFEEBERAA

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official names of

these companies are in Chinese.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which

The PRC
Limited liability
companyllegal
person sole
investment)

mEAREE
RAEICEA
BE)

The PRC
Limited liability
company (legal
person sole
investment)

mEBRAE
NAICEA
BE)

The PRC
Limited liability
company {legal
person sole
investment)

mEBREE
RECEA
BE)

The PRC
Limited liability

company (foreign

investment company

as sole proprietor)

mEAREE
RE (5N
RELFEA
BE)

RMB50,000,000

AR

50,000,000t

RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR

50,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR¥
10,000,000t

principally offected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

- 100%  Trading of copper related

products

- 100% ERFHBER

- 100%  Trading of copper related

products

- 100% EEHFEBER

- 100%  Trading of copper related

products

- 100% EEFEHER

- 100%  Trading of copper related

products

- 100% EEFHBER

* HRWOEEEEL2H - ZERENE S
HRERH

ERAJNEEAEEERE BEEXE
BEREEEXENMB QRS-

177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z 20224F 12 A 31 HILFE

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

i) On 19 May 2023, the Company received a leffer issued
by the Stock Exchange, which sefs out the guidance in
relation to the resumption of trading in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange. The Stock Exchange
requires the Company fo meet all Resumption Guidance,
remedy the issues causing the Company's frading
suspension and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the
Stock Exchange’s satisfaction before trading in the
Company's securities is allowed to resume. Under Rule
6.01A(1) of the Llisting Rules, the Stock Exchange may
cancel the listing of any securities that have been suspended
from trading for a continuous period of 18 months. In the
case of the Company, the 18-month period expires on 2
October 2024. If the Company fails to remedy the
substantive issues causing the Company’s trading
suspension, fulfill the Resumption Guidance and fully comply
with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange's safisfaction
and resume frading in its shares by 2 October 2024, the
Listing Division of the Stock Exchange will recommend the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange to proceed with

the cancellation of the Company’s listing.

The Group is in the process of restructuring the debt.
Tongxin and Jin Xunhuan were both undergoing a
restructuring with the existing debt holders in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Llaw in the PRC. The restructuring involved the filing of a
voluntary application for bankruptey reorganisation with the
Youxian Court in the Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, the
PRC. Subsequently, on 3 January 2023, the Company
received from the Youxian Court Documents regarding the
reorganisation. Pursuant to which, the Youxian Court
Documents indicated that the Youxian Court accepted the
application from Tongxin and Jin Xunhuan for bankruptcy
reorganisation in accordance with the Enferprise Bankruptcy
Law in the PRC. The first creditors’ meeting was held on 28

March 2023.

In addition to the bankruptcy reorganisations of Tongxin
and Jin Xunhuan, Taiyue also intends fo restructure ifs
existing indebtedness through the applicable provisions of
the Enterprise Bankruptcy Law of the PRC. A voluntary
application for Taiyue Bankruptcy Reorganisation
Application has been filed with the Youxian Court on 18
May 2023. On 24 May 2023, the Company received the
Youxian Court's civil ruling dated 23 May 2023.
According to the civil ruling dated 23 May 2023, the
Court has accepted the Taiyue Bankruptcy Reorganisation

Application.

44, BEBRREE

(i)

MN2023E5A198 AR T
BB EST  EhHE
BRARRRDEBIATREE
BEWIES| - BT BSRARAF
BFTEEMIES B AQA
TEEEMNEEFELER TR
AABBHFEEREEER A
B EMEE2EET TR
Al - iRIE EM A BIE6.01A(T)
I BXFA AR EEEE
BEE 18AANESFRIE - BEAQ
AIM=E - BR18EAB HEER
2024510 A28 @M - AR
BIRBEMN 2024 10 A2 H Al
BYARNREEEBENELEEE
ER R - ZERIEMIES]  KE
BXEME2mET ETAEL
WIRERNEE B EmHE
BRI EMEZEgREBA
NEIBRIE ©

AEBIEETESEE - WEN
T RERAZRTEREEFELER
X EEREERAEE -FTE
EFmh B A &SI IDE
REXEBREEERF M
& 720231 H3H » XA F
Y 21 2k B B Il B A B & E H) XX
o Ut BFADE BT XM R BRI
AR D E M E RS BIRIRE
TERCERELECWNESEER
meBE - REBRAEZRER
2023 3 A28 &7 -

RITERSERIWESE 3
BINE BE R EEXRELRE
PG EEERBER - AR7A
B 202345 A 18 A M ILIE
iR FHBWESEAMERS °
R2023F5H248 KRR
BB EIR2023F5 A23R 2
IERREHEE -RIEAHAR
2023F 5 A23B 2 AR R E#H
EE HIDER SRR B E
BEEHF-
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HFEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Conrinved)

(i)

(Continved)

Yinlian Xiangbei, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received the Civil Ruling from the Court of Miluo
City in relafion to a petition for winding-up against Yinlian
Xiangbei filed by Miziyuan, a creditor of Yinlian Xiangbei,
on the ground that Yinlian Xiangbei was unable to repay
the debts falling due. The debts involved were in the
amount of approximately RMB11.9 million. Yinlian
Xiangbei opposed the petition and applied to the Court of
Miluo City for bankruptcy reorganisation instead. According
fo the Civil Ruling, ofter taking info account the situation of
Yinlian Xiangbei and the bankruptcy reorganisation of the
Company’s other three subsidiaries in Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province, the Court of Miluo City rejected
Miziyuan's petition for winding-up and accepted Yinlian
Xiangbei's bankruptcy reorganisation application on 21 July

2023.

Hubei Rongsheng, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, received a decision dated 12 September
2023 and notice to Hubei Rongsheng dated 12 September
2023 from the People’s Court of Yunmeng County, Hubei
Province in relation to Hubei Rongsheng's application for
pre-restructuring in accordance with the pre-restructuring
procedure under the applicable provisions of the Enterprise
Bankruptcy Law of the People’s Republic of China to
prepare for its intended bankruptcy reorganisation
application an 12 September 2023. After considering the
opinions of Hubei Rongsheng, its main creditors and
interesfed investors and the relevant government authorities,
the court approved the Pre-restructuring of Hubei Rongsheng
and designated Hubei Gongshun Accounting Firm* (J#4t
NIEEETRIEFT) as provisional administrator of the Pre-
resfructuring per the discussion of Hubei Rongsheng and its
main creditors. Please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 15 September 2023 for further
details.

Save as disclosed in above and disclosed in other sections
in this report, there is no material significant event
undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.

45. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January

2024.

44, S{EHEREE ()

45.

(i)

(%)

ARBIZEEEZEMBR
AL R| 2R BORE AT - AA
BRH 2 IRIE R IR A AL RO R4
A B SRESE MR AL R BE 10 2 HA Al
BEGEH M HRBAMILIRZE
BREFNWREREE - %HEEH
BROAREINOBET - R
ML R ¥ 5% 2 75 30 AR 2 AT
FRRESE REZRFHTE
£ gERR sp/fﬁinJ’E%&K
REARBEHEM=HNBLQ
IWESE 55%‘&%%5%@?@55
z;rz;ﬂ%;%‘- W7 2023 F 7

TREMRBOAIL CRESE
%Eﬁuﬁ °

7] $R

ARBZEEEENB AR
BRUFREAILEEZZAR
Al BHIR2023F9 A 128 /)
REEKR BB R2023F9A12
BrBEE  ARAILRRRETR
AR HMBE b SR EEE A 5
XM EEBREFZEEEHF -
NEBHAEEZHEEEHF -
RERHAILLBR < ER EX B

EREA N REBE I EE A NE
BT RE - ORBe Ht A I B R

ZEBEYMNAILLHELE TR
BERANWER  EHEHILRIES
AR EB RTAERNGRER
A E—FFHIBEFLRALQAFH
HiIm2023FQH15BZz A E o

B Lt B AN ¥ 5 E s BF 0 PR
B-mM2022%F12A31HEER
AFEZBH  AEEMEEX

SFETH -

HERE M B E|R

HEMBRREN20244%1 A
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AFEMBME

31 December 2022 20224 12 A 31 H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets BWERE
Total liabilities FES=R

Net (liabilities)/assets F(BE)/EE

Results E

Profit/{loss) for the year FREH,/(EE)

Total comprehensive FRN2EWE
income/|loss| for the year  (E518) 2 %8

2022

2022
RMB’000
ARBTR

2,398,071
(5,100,071)

(2,702,000)

(4,763,152)

(4,802,866)

EEREE

2021 2020 2019 2018
20214 20205 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARE®TZE
6,733,999 6,257,670 5,200,642 4,703,524
(5,024,602) (4,769,535] (3,390,555) (2,797,747)
1,709,397 1,488,135 1,810,087 1,905,777
(95,477)  (387,249)  (217,3306) 20,123
(71,757)  (344,237)  (242,271) (31,131)
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